
 

1 of 4 
 

NOTICE OF REGULAR COUNCIL MEETING 
 

NOTICE IS HEREBY GIVEN THAT THE CITY COUNCIL OF THE CITY OF ROSENBERG, FORT BEND 
COUNTY, TEXAS, WILL MEET IN REGULAR SESSION OPEN TO THE PUBLIC AS FOLLOWS: 

 
DATE:   Tuesday, September 15, 2015 

 
TIME:   7:00 p.m.  

 
PLACE:  Rosenberg City Hall 

City Hall Council Chamber 
2110 4th Street 
Rosenberg, Texas  77471 
 

PURPOSE:  Regular City Council Meeting, agenda as follows: 
 

The City Council reserves the right to adjourn into Executive Session at any time during the course of this meeting to 
discuss any of the matters listed below, as authorized by Title 5, Chapter 551, of the Texas Government Code. 
 

Call to order:  City Hall Council Chamber 
 
Invocation and Pledge of Allegiance. (Reverend Deborah Prihoda, First Assembly of God, Rosenberg) 
 
Announcements. 
 
GENERAL COMMENTS FROM THE AUDIENCE. 
Citizens who desire to address the City Council with comments of a general nature will be received at this time.  Each 
speaker is limited to three (3) minutes.  In accordance with the Texas Open Meetings Act, the City Council is restricted 
from discussing or taking action on items not listed on the agenda.  It is our policy to have all speakers identify 
themselves by providing their name and residential address when making comments. 
 
COMMENTS FROM THE AUDIENCE FOR CONSENT AND REGULAR AGENDA ITEMS. 
Citizens who desire to address the City Council with regard to matters on the Consent Agenda or Regular Agenda will 
be received at the time the item is considered.  Each speaker is limited to three (3) minutes.  Comments or discussion by 
the City Council Members will only be made at the time the agenda item is scheduled for consideration.  It is our policy 
to have all speakers identify themselves by providing their name and residential address when making comments. 
 

CONSENT AGENDA 
 

1. Review of Consent Agenda. 
All Consent Agenda items listed are considered to be routine by the City Council and may be enacted by one 
(1) motion.  There will be no separate discussion of Consent Agenda items unless a City Council Member has 
requested that the item be discussed, in which case the item will be removed from the Consent Agenda and 
considered in its normal sequence on the Regular Agenda. 
 

 A. Consideration of and action on Regular Meeting Minutes for August 18, 2015, Special Meeting Minutes 
for August 25, 2015, Workshop Meeting Minutes for August 25, 2015, and Regular Meeting Minutes for 
September 01, 2015. (Linda Cernosek, City Secretary)  
 

 B. Consideration of and action on Resolution No. R-2037, a Resolution authorizing the City Manager to 
execute, for and on behalf of the City, a Termination Agreement by and between the City and 
Rosenberg FM 2218 LTD. (Randall Malik, Economic Development Director) 
 

 C. Consideration of and action on Resolution No. R-2035, a Resolution authorizing the City Manager to 
execute, for and on behalf of the City, an Agreement and Acknowledgement of Termination of Water 
Supply and Wastewater Services Contract between the City of Rosenberg, Texas, and 2218 
Rosenberg, L.P. (Randall Malik, Economic Development Director) 
 

 D. Consideration of and action on Resolution No. R-2036, a Resolution authorizing the City Manager to 
execute, for and on behalf of the City, an Assignment and Assumption of Utility Commitment Letter by 
and between Fort Bend County Municipal Utility District No. 150 (Wind Meadows) and the City of 
Rosenberg. (Randall Malik, Economic Development Director) 
 



 

2 of 4 
 

 E. Consideration of and action on Resolution No. R-2034, a Resolution authorizing the City Manager to 
execute, for and on behalf of the City, the Assignment of Public Infrastructure, 10' Sanitary Sewer 
Easement, dated December 5, 2013, which assigns to the City the Easement Agreement (10’ Sanitary 
Sewer Easement) dated February 1, 2006, from WM Commercial, L.P., a Texas limited partnership to 
Fort Bend County Municipal Utility District No. 150 recorded under Document No. 2006012967 of the 
Official Public Records of Fort Bend County, Texas, for the sum of $10.00. (Randall Malik, Economic 
Development Director) 
 

 F. Consideration of and action on Ordinance No. 2015-28, an Ordinance providing for the disannexation 
from the corporate boundaries of the City of Rosenberg, Texas, of 1.393 acres (60,689 square feet) 
located in the Wiley Martin League, A-56, Fort Bend County, Texas (Fort Bend County Municipal Utility 
District No. 155 – Bonbrook Plantation), pursuant to the petition for disannexation; adjusting the 
boundaries of Council District No. 4 to exclude the tract disannexed hereby; containing certain 
findings; providing for non-severability; and establishing an effective date.  (Travis Tanner, Executive 
Director of Community Development) 
 

REGULAR AGENDA 
 

2.  Review and discuss the proposed renaming of Community Park after Tony Becerra, and take action as 
necessary. (Jimmie J. Peña, Councilor, District 1)  
 

3.  Consideration of and action on Resolution No. R-2030, a Resolution awarding Bid No. 2015-13 for the 
Airport Avenue Phase II Reconstruction Project (Louise Street to West of Graeber Road); and, 
authorizing the City Manager to negotiate and execute, for and on behalf of the City, appropriate 
documents and/or agreements regarding same. (John Maresh, Assistant City Manager of Public 
Services) 
 

4.  Consideration of and action on Resolution No. R-2042, a Resolution authorizing the City Manager to 
execute, for and on behalf of the City, a Memorandum of License Agreement and License 
Agreement, by and between the City and GTE Mobilnet of South Texas Limited Partnership d/b/a 
Verizon Wireless, allowing for the installation of antennae, associated cabling and equipment on the 
City-owned elevated water storage tank located at 2214 Ruby Street. (John Maresh, Assistant City 
Manager of Public Services) 
 

5.  Consideration of and action on Resolution No. R-2038, a Resolution authorizing the Mayor to execute 
a resale deed for real property generally located at Brazos Street and described as Tract 1:  Geo 
Number:  4415000120050901: Lot No. Five (5) in Block No. Twelve (12), of the Kaffenberger Addition to 
the City of Rosenberg, as more particularly described in Volume 236, Page 562 of the Deed Records of 
Fort Bend County, Texas.  (Joyce Vasut, Executive Director of Administrative Services) 
 

6.  Consideration of and action on Resolution No. R-2032, a Resolution accepting and approving the 
Investment Policy of the City of Rosenberg. (Joyce Vasut, Executive Director of Administrative Services) 
 

7.  Consideration of and action on Resolution No. R-2039, a Resolution authorizing publication of Notice 
of Intention to Issue Certificates of Obligation, in an aggregate principal amount not to exceed 
$10,000,000, for the acquisition, construction and improvement of certain public works, and 
authorizing certain other matters relating thereto. (Joyce Vasut, Executive Director of Administrative 
Services) 
 

8.  Consideration of and action on Resolution No. R-2033, a Resolution authorizing the City Manager to 
execute, for and on behalf of the City, Budget Amendment 15-13, in the amount of $605,000 for 
certain maintenance and operations expenditures. (Joyce Vasut, Executive Director of Administrative 
Services) 
 

9.  Consideration of and action on Resolution No. R-2041, a Resolution authorizing the City Manager to 
execute, for and on behalf of the City, Budget Amendment 15-14, in the amount of $1,364,281 for 
certain Capital Improvement Projects. (Joyce Vasut, Executive Director of Administrative Services) 
 

10.  Consideration of and action on Resolution No. R-2015, a Resolution awarding Bid No. 2015-14 for 
Mosquito Control Services; and, authorizing the City Manager to negotiate and execute, for and on 
behalf of the City, a General Services Contract related thereto, and/or all necessary documentation 
regarding same. (Jeff Trinker, Executive Director of Support Services) 
 

11.  Consideration of and action on Resolution No. R-2016, a Resolution awarding Bid No. 2015-15 for 
Janitorial Services; and, authorizing the City Manager to negotiate and execute, for and on behalf of 
the City, a General Services Contract related thereto, and/or all necessary documentation regarding 
same. (Jeff Trinker, Executive Director of Support Services) 
 



 

3 of 4 
 

[EXECUTION PAGE TO FOLLOW] 

12.  Hold Executive Session to consult with City Attorney on pending or contemplated litigation, namely 
Texas Department of Transportation v. Rosenberg condemnation proceedings, pursuant to Section 
551.071 of the Texas Government Code. 
 

13.  Adjourn Executive Session, reconvene into Regular Session, and take action as necessary as a result of 
Executive Session. 
 

14.  Adjournment. 
 



 

4 of 4 
 

 
 

DATED AND POSTED this the ___________ day of ____________________ 2015, at _______________m.,  
 
 
by ____________________________________. 

 
 
 

____________________________________________ 
Attest:       

     Anne Stark, Assistant City Secretary  
 
 
 

____________________________________________ 
Approved for Posting:   
Robert Gracia, City Manager 

  
 
 

____________________________________________ 
Approved:   
Cynthia A. McConathy, Mayor 

 
Reasonable accommodation for the disabled attending this meeting will be available; persons with disabilities in need of 
special assistance at the meeting should contact the City Secretary at (832) 595-3340.   

 
Executive Sessions: The City Council may retire to executive session in accordance with the Texas Government Code, 
any time between the meeting’s opening and adjournment for the purposes of: 

 consultation with legal counsel (Section 551.071); 
 deliberation regarding real property (Section 551.072); 
 deliberation regarding economic development negotiations (Section 551.087) 
 deliberation regarding the deployment or specific occasions for implementation of security personnel or 

devices (Section 551.076) 
 
Attendance by other elected or appointed officials: It is anticipated that members of other city boards, commissions or 
committees whose meetings may be governed by the Texas Open Meetings Act may attend this meeting in numbers 
that may constitute a quorum of the other city boards, commissions or committees.  Notice is hereby given that the 
meeting, to the extent required by law, is also noticed as a possible quorum/meeting of the other boards, commissions 
or committees of the City, whose members may be in attendance.  The members may speak as recognized by the 
presiding officer, but no action may be taken by any board, commission or committee unless such item is specifically 
provided for on an agenda designated for that board, commission or committee and posted in compliance with the 
Texas Open Meetings Act. 
 
This Agenda has been reviewed and approved by the City’s legal counsel and the presence of any subject in any 
Executive Session portion of the agenda constitutes a written interpretation of Texas Government Code Chapter 551 by 
legal counsel for the governmental body and constitutes an opinion by the attorney that the items discussed therein may 
be legally discussed in the closed portion of the meeting considering the available opinions of a court of record and 
opinions of the Texas Attorney General known to the attorney.  This provision has been added to this agenda with the 
intent to meet all elements necessary to satisfy Texas Government Code Chapter 551.144(c) and the meeting is 
conducted by all participants in reliance on this opinion. 



 

 
 
 

 
 

Announcements. 
 



General Comments from the Audience: 
 

Citizens who desire to address the City Council with comments 
of a general nature will be received at this time.  Each speaker 
is limited to three (3) minutes.  In accordance with the Texas 
Open Meetings Act, the City Council is restricted from 
discussing or taking action on items not listed on the agenda.  
It is our policy to have all speakers identify themselves by 
providing their name and residential address when making 
comments. 



Comments from the Audience for 
Consent and Regular Agenda Items: 

 
 

Citizens who desire to address the City Council with regard to 
matters on the Consent Agenda or Regular Agenda will be 
received at the time the item is considered.  Each speaker is 
limited to three (3) minutes.  Comments or discussion by the 
City Council Members will only be made at the time the agenda 
item is scheduled for consideration.  It is our policy to have all 
speakers identify themselves by providing their name and 
residential address when making comments. 



ITEM 1 
 

Review of Consent Agenda. 
 

All Consent Agenda items listed are considered to be routine by the 
City Council and may be enacted by one (1) motion.  There will be no 
separate discussion of Consent Agenda items unless a City Council 
Member has requested that the item be discussed, in which case the 
item will be removed from the Consent Agenda and considered in its 
normal sequence on the Regular Agenda. 



ITEM A 
 

Minutes: 
 

1. Regular City Council Meeting Minutes – August 18, 2015 
2. Special City Council Meeting Minutes – August 25, 2015 
3. City Council Workshop Meeting Minutes – August 25, 2015 
4. Regular City Council Meeting Minutes – September 01, 2015 

 



Page 1 of 10 * Regular City Council Meeting * August 18, 2015 * DRAFT* 
 

CITY OF ROSENBERG 
REGULAR COUNCIL MEETING MINUTES *DRAFT* 

 
On this the 18th day of August, 2015, the City Council of the City of Rosenberg, Fort Bend County, Texas, 
met in a Regular Session, in the Rosenberg City Hall Council Chamber, located at 2110 4th Street, 
Rosenberg, Texas. 
 
PRESENT 
Cynthia A. McConathy Mayor 
William Benton   Councilor at Large, Position 1 
Amanda Barta  Councilor at Large, Position 2 
Jimmie Pena   Councilor, District 1  
Susan Euton   Councilor, District 2 
Lisa Wallingford  Councilor, District 3 
Lynn Moses   Councilor, District 4 
 
STAFF PRESENT 
Robert Gracia   City Manager 
Scott M. Tschirhart  City Attorney 
Linda Cernosek  City Secretary 
John Maresh    Assistant City Manager of Public Services 
Jeff Trinker   Executive Director of Support Services 
Joyce Vasut   Executive Director of Administrative Services 
Travis Tanner   Executive Director of Community Development 
Lisa Olmeda   Human Resources Director 
Dallis Warren   Police Chief 
Wade Goates   Fire Chief 
James Lewis   Director of Technology 
Jenny Pavlovich  Communications Manager 
Darren McCarthy  Parks and Recreation Director 
Randall Malik   Economic Development Director 
Rigo Calzoncin  Public Works Director 
Jackie Jurasek   Animal Control Supervisor 
Renee McAnally  Animal Control Officer 
Kaye Supak   Executive Assistant 
 
The City Council reserves the right to adjourn into Executive Session at any time during the course of this 
meeting to discuss any of the matters listed below, as authorized by Title 5, Chapter 551, of the Texas 
Government Code. 
 
CALL TO ORDER. 
Mayor McConathy called the meeting to order at 7:00 p.m. 
 
INVOCATION AND PLEDGE OF ALLEGIANCE.  
Pastor Dave Hodges, Grace Community Bible Church, Richmond, gave the invocation, and Nick 
Poncik of Troop 801 led the pledge of allegiance to the flag. 
 
PRESENTATION OF CERTIFICATE OF RECOGNITION TO MR. NICK PONCIK OF TROOP 801 FOR HIS EAGLE 
SCOUT PROJECT BENEFITTING THE ROSENBERG ANIMAL SHELTER.  
Jackie Jurasek, Animal Control Supervisor, presented a Certificate of Recognition to Mr. Nick Poncik of 
Troop 801 for His Eagle Scout Project Benefitting the Rosenberg Animal Shelter. 
 
GENERAL COMMENTS FROM THE AUDIENCE. 
Citizens who desire to address the City Council with comments of a general nature will be received at 



Page 2 of 10 * Regular City Council Meeting * August 18, 2015 * DRAFT* 
 

this time.  Each speaker is limited to three (3) minutes.  In accordance with the Texas Open Meetings 
Act, the City Council is restricted from discussing or taking action on items not listed on the agenda.  It is 
our policy to have all speakers identify themselves by providing their name and residential address 
when making comments. 
 
COMMENTS FROM THE AUDIENCE FOR CONSENT AND REGULAR AGENDA ITEMS. 
Citizens who desire to address the City Council with regard to matters on the Consent Agenda or 
Regular Agenda will be received at the time the item is considered.  Each speaker is limited to three (3) 
minutes.  Comments or discussion by the City Council Members will only be made at the time the 
agenda item is scheduled for consideration.  It is our policy to have all speakers identify themselves by 
providing their name and residential address when making comments. 
 

CONSENT AGENDA 
 

1.  Review of Consent Agenda. 
All Consent Agenda items listed are considered to be routine by the City Council and may 
be enacted by one (1) motion.  There will be no separate discussion of Consent Agenda 
items unless a City Council Member has requested that the item be discussed, in which case 
the item will be removed from the Consent Agenda and considered in its normal sequence 
on the Regular Agenda. 
 

 A.  CONSIDERATION OF AND ACTION ON WORKSHOP MEETING MINUTES FOR JULY 28, 
2015, AND REGULAR MEETING MINUTES FOR AUGUST 04, 2015. 
 

 B.  CONSIDERATION OF AND ACTION ON ORDINANCE NO. 2015-25, AN ORDINANCE 
AMENDING THE CODE OF ORDINANCES BY DELETING ALL OF SECTION 28-41 (A) AND 
(C), STOP SIGNS DESIGNATED, OF ARTICLE II, DIVISION 2 OF CHAPTER 28, STOP STREETS, 
AND SUBSTITUTING THEREFOR A NEW SECTION 28-41 (A) AND (C) OF ARTICLE II, 
DIVISION 2 OF CHAPTER 28 THEREOF; PROVIDING FOR A THREE-WAY STOP AT THE 
INTERSECTION OF CALLENDER STREET AND HOUSTON STREET; PROVIDING A PENALTY IN 
AN AMOUNT OF NOT LESS THAN $1.00 OR MORE THAN $200.00 FOR VIOLATION OF ANY 
PROVISION HEREOF; REPEALING ALL ORDINANCES OR PARTS OF ORDINANCES 
INCONSISTENT OR IN CONFLICT HEREWITH; PROVIDING FOR AN EFFECTIVE DATE; AND 
PROVIDING FOR SEVERABILITY.  
Executive Summary: City Council discussed the need for a 3-way stop at the 
intersection of Callender Street and Houston Street during the July 28, 2015 Workshop. 
As directed by City Council, staff has prepared Ordinance No. 2015-25 that would 
designate the intersection of Callender Street and Houston Street as a three-way 
stop. The intersection currently functions as a one-way stop with Houston Street 
having the stop condition and Callender Street being uncontrolled. 
 
This item has been placed on the Agenda for consideration and action by City 
Council.  Staff recommends approval of Ordinance No. 2015-25. 
 

 C.  Item C was pulled from the Consent Agenda and moved to Item 2A on the Regular 
Agenda. 
CONSIDERATION OF AND ACTION ON RESOLUTION NO. R-2027, A RESOLUTION 
AUTHORIZING THE MAYOR TO EXECUTE, FOR AND ON BEHALF OF THE CITY, A 
DEDICATION OF UNOBSTRUCTED DRY PUBLIC UTILITY AND AERIAL EASEMENTS AND 
RELEASE OF EASEMENT FROM ROSENBERG BUSINESS PARK, LTD., CONTAINING A 3.811 
ACRE TRACT OF LAND, AND A 0.196 ACRE TRACT OF LAND, MORE OR LESS, IN THE S. B. 
PENTECOST SURVEY, A-362 AND A-378, FOR THE PROVISION OF PUBLIC UTILITY 
EASEMENTS TO SERVE THE ROSENBERG BUSINESS PARK.  
 

 D.  Item D was pulled from the Consent Agenda and moved to Item 2B on the Regular 



Page 3 of 10 * Regular City Council Meeting * August 18, 2015 * DRAFT* 
 

Agenda. 
CONSIDERATION OF AND ACTION ON A SHORT FORM FINAL PLAT OF READING ROAD 
OFFICE PARK REPLAT NO. ONE, A TOTAL OF 0.3756 ACRES BEING A REPLAT OF LOT 13, 
READING ROAD OFFICE PARK IN THE JAMES LOWERY 1/3 LEAGUE, A-275, CITY OF 
ROSENBERG, FORT BEND COUNTY, TEXAS, RECORDED UNDER FORT BEND COUNTY PLAT 
NO. 20110006; 2 LOTS, 1 BLOCK, 0 RESERVES. 
 

 E.  CONSIDERATION OF AND ACTION ON QUARTERLY FINANCIAL REPORT AND QUARTERLY 
INVESTMENT REPORT FOR THE QUARTER ENDED JUNE 30, 2015. 
Executive Summary: Overall, the financial status of the City is stable.  Most funds have 
positive variances when compared to budget and prior year actual.  The largest 
revenues of sales tax and property tax are positive when compared to budget and 
expenses are within the 75% benchmark for the third quarter of FY2015.  

Staff will continue to monitor the revenues and expenses.  At this time, no major changes 
need to be made to meet budget projections.  Additionally, the Quarterly Investment 
Report is included in the agenda packet for review as required by the Public Funds 
Investment Act. 
 
Staff recommends the acceptance of the Quarterly Financial Reports and the 
Investment Report for the third quarter of Fiscal Year 2015. 
 

 Action: Councilor Benton made a motion, seconded by Councilor Euton, to approve 
Consent Agenda Items A, B, and E. The motion carried by a unanimous vote. 

 
REGULAR AGENDA 

 
2A. Previously Item C on Consent Agenda. 

CONSIDERATION OF AND ACTION ON RESOLUTION NO. R-2027, A RESOLUTION AUTHORIZING 
THE MAYOR TO EXECUTE, FOR AND ON BEHALF OF THE CITY, A DEDICATION OF UNOBSTRUCTED 
DRY PUBLIC UTILITY AND AERIAL EASEMENTS AND RELEASE OF EASEMENT FROM ROSENBERG 
BUSINESS PARK, LTD., CONTAINING A 3.811 ACRE TRACT OF LAND, AND A 0.196 ACRE TRACT OF 
LAND, MORE OR LESS, IN THE S. B. PENTECOST SURVEY, A-362 AND A-378, FOR THE PROVISION 
OF PUBLIC UTILITY EASEMENTS TO SERVE THE ROSENBERG BUSINESS PARK.  
Executive Summary: On February 17, 2015, the City of Rosenberg formally accepted two (2) 
public utility easements:  one (1) generally located around the perimeter of the Rosenberg 
Business Park to allow for utilities to be provided within the Business Park, and a second 
easement specifically providing for power to the lift station to be located along Business Park 
Drive. CenterPoint Energy is requiring a separate easement for utilities to service the 
Rosenberg Business Park.  The document serves to both dedicate an unobstructed dry public 
utility and aerial easement and release and abandon the previous easements accepted by 
the City. What were previously two (2) separate easements have been consolidated into a 
single document.  Resolution No. R-2027 is necessary to allow for CenterPoint Energy to 
service the Rosenberg Business Park.  
 
Staff recommends approval of Resolution No. R-2027, authorizing the City Manager to 
execute and accept a Dedication of Unobstructed Dry Public Utility and Aerial Easements 
and Release of Easement from Rosenberg Business Park, Ltd. If approved, the fully executed 
easement will be attached to the Resolution as Exhibit “A”. 
 
Key Discussion Points: Randall Malik, Director of Economic Development, explained that this 
easement was required by CenterPoint Energy to service the Rosenberg Business Park with 
utilities.  
 
Action: Councilor Benton made a motion, seconded by Councilor Euton, to approve 



Page 4 of 10 * Regular City Council Meeting * August 18, 2015 * DRAFT* 
 

Resolution No. R-2027, a Resolution authorizing the Mayor to execute, for and on behalf of 
the City, a Dedication of Unobstructed Dry Public Utility and Aerial Easements and Release of 
Easement from Rosenberg Business Park, Ltd., containing a 3.811 acre tract of land, and a 
0.196 acre tract of land, more or less, in the S. B. Pentecost Survey, A-362 and A-378, for the 
provision of public utility easements to serve the Rosenberg Business Park. The motion carried 
by a unanimous vote. 
 

2B. Previously Item D on the Consent Agenda. 
CONSIDERATION OF AND ACTION ON A SHORT FORM FINAL PLAT OF READING ROAD OFFICE 
PARK REPLAT NO. ONE, A TOTAL OF 0.3756 ACRES BEING A REPLAT OF LOT 13, READING ROAD 
OFFICE PARK IN THE JAMES LOWERY 1/3 LEAGUE, A-275, CITY OF ROSENBERG, FORT BEND 
COUNTY, TEXAS, RECORDED UNDER FORT BEND COUNTY PLAT NO. 20110006; 2 LOTS, 1 BLOCK, 0 
RESERVES.  
Executive Summary: The Short Form Final Plat of Reading Road Office Park Replat No. One is a 
replat of Lot 13, Reading Road Office Park in the James Lowery 1/3 League, A-275, City of 
Rosenberg, Fort Bend County, Texas, recorded under Fort Bend County Plat No. 20110006.  The Plat 
consists of 0.3756 acres.   
 
The original Plat was recorded in 2011 and the developer now proposes to subdivide one of the 
existing lots into two (2).  There is not an issue with the lot size (with it being commercial, not 
residential) or anything else in conflict with City ordinances.  It should be noted that to have a 
three-foot (3’) interior building line, a firewall will be required.  However, this is not uncommon in the 
development; there are other lots with 3’ building lines.  A minimum ten-foot (10’) building line is 
generally required (for commercial buildings) to not have a firewall per the International Building 
Code (IBC). 
 
Also of note is that the development, per an Agreement established in 2010, required the 
installation of a traffic signal at Reading Road and Town Center Boulevard, which is partially 
funded by the City.  The developer previously submitted a request to City Council to delay the 
signal installation until Phase II of the development.  This request was considered and approved by 
City Council on July 21, 2015 (Resolution No. R-2009), therefore this contingency for Final Plat 
approval has been met.   
 
The Planning Commission and staff recommend approval of the Short Form Final Plat of 
Reading Road Office Park Replat No. One. 
 
Key Discussion Points: Travis Tanner, Executive Director of Community Development, 
explained that they are taking a lot that was platted in 2011 and are subdividing into two 
plats. Thomas Juarez,  Richwest Investors, LLC, restated that, in his opinion, the installation of a 
traffic signal at Reading Road and Town Center Boulevard is unnecessary.  
 
Action: Councilor Benton made a motion, seconded by Councilor Barta, to approve a Short 
Form Final Plat of Reading Road Office Park Replat No. One, a total of 0.3756 acres being a 
replat of Lot 13, Reading Road Office Park in the James Lowery 1/3 League, A-275, City of 
Rosenberg, Fort Bend County, Texas, recorded under Fort Bend County Plat No. 20110006; 2 
lots, 1 block, 0 reserves.  
The motion carried by a vote of 6 to 1 as follows:  Yeses:  Mayor McConathy, Councilors 
Benton, Barta, Pena,  Wallingford , and Moses. No:  Councilor Euton. 
 

2.  HOLD FIRST PUBLIC HEARING TO CONSIDER COMMENTS RELATING TO FISCAL YEAR 2015-2016 
PROPOSED BUDGET, WHICH INCLUDES THE CITY OF ROSENBERG’S CAPITAL IMPROVEMENT PLAN 
(CIP), AND TAKE ACTION AS NECESSARY.  
Executive Summary: Section 9.06 of the Rosenberg City Charter requires the Rosenberg City 
Council to hold a public hearing on the proposed Budget submitted; and, all interested 
persons shall be given an opportunity to be heard for or against any item or the amount of 



Page 5 of 10 * Regular City Council Meeting * August 18, 2015 * DRAFT* 
 

any item contained in the proposed Budget. 
 
Notice of this public hearing was published in the newspaper on Sunday, August 09, 2015.  
The second public hearing on the proposed Budget will be held on Tuesday, August 25, 2015. 
 
This public hearing is held to provide the citizens the opportunity to present their comments 
regarding the proposed FY2015-2016 Budget. 
 
Key Discussion Points:  

• Joyce Vasut, Executive Director of Administrative Services, read the Executive 
Summary. 

• Mayor McConathy opened the public hearing at 7:16:54 p.m.  
• There were no speakers. 
• Mayor McConathy closed the public hearing at 7:17:04   p.m. 

 
3.  REVIEW AND DISCUSS FISCAL YEAR 2015-2016 BUDGET AS SUBMITTED BY THE CITY MANAGER 

ON JULY 21, 2015, PURSUANT TO ROSENBERG CITY CHARTER, AND TAKE ACTION AS NECESSARY 
TO DIRECT STAFF.  
Executive Summary: Section 9.08 of the Rosenberg City Charter requires that after the 
conclusion of the public hearing on the proposed Budget, the City Council may insert new 
items or may increase or decrease the items of said Budget, except items in proposed 
expenditures fixed by law.  However, if City Council requests to increase the total proposed 
expenditures, it shall also provide for an increase in the total anticipated revenue to at least 
equal such proposed expenditures. 
 
City staff will present the changes that were recommended by City Council during the 
August 08, 2015 Budget Workshop.  At this time, City Council shall have an opportunity to 
discuss the proposed FY2015-2016 Budget, any changes thereto, and by a majority vote 
direct staff to make additional changes. 
 
City Council may vote to direct staff to make changes to the Budget.  A second public 
hearing and Budget discussion will be held on Tuesday, August 25, 2015, to finalize the 
Budget.  The final FY2015-2016 Budget will be considered for adoption at the September 01, 
2015 City Council Meeting. 
 
Key Discussion Points: Joyce Vasut read the Executive Summary and further explained that, 
by lowering the Property Tax Rate to an even $0.47, the budget was decreased by an 
approximate additional $90,000; however, she wants to see the CAD appraisals before 
making those changes. 
 
Action: Councilor Benton made a motion, seconded by Councilor Moses, to direct staff to 
include the changes requested during the August 08, 2015 Budget Workshop, and reflect 
these changes during the second public hearing and budget discussion to be held on 
Tuesday, August 25, 2015. The motion carried by a unanimous vote. 
 

4.  CONSIDERATION OF AND ACTION ON A SECOND READING OF RESOLUTION NO. R-2024, A 
RESOLUTION PROVIDING FOR THE AMENDMENT OF THE CITY COUNCIL RULES OF PROCEDURE 
(NINTH EDITION), NAMELY ARTICLE V., ENTITLED AGENDA ORDER, BY REVISING THE ORDER OF 
ANNOUNCEMENTS BY MOVING ANNOUNCEMENTS TO APPEAR AFTER THE INVOCATION AND 
PLEDGE OF ALLEGIANCE ON REGULAR CITY COUNCIL MEETING AGENDAS.  
Executive Summary: As discussed at the July 28, 2015 City Council Workshop Meeting, a 
revision has been made to the City Council Rules of Procedure for placement of 
Announcements to appear after the Invocation and Pledge of Allegiance on Regular City 
Council Meeting agendas.  Included in the agenda packet is a redlined version of the 
proposed revision.  The first reading of Resolution No. R-2024 on August 04, 2015, was 



Page 6 of 10 * Regular City Council Meeting * August 18, 2015 * DRAFT* 
 

approved unanimously by City Council. 
 
Staff recommends approval of this second reading of Resolution No. R-2024 as presented.  
Should City Council approve the revision, attached to the Resolution as Exhibit “A”, it will 
serve as the City Council Rules of Procedure, Ninth Revision. 
 
Key Discussion Points: Scott M. Tschirhart, City Attorney, gave an overview of the item. 
 
Action: Councilor Barta made a motion, seconded by Councilor Benton, to approve 
Resolution No. R-2024, a Resolution providing for the amendment of the City Council Rules of 
Procedure (Ninth Edition), namely Article V., entitled Agenda Order, by revising the order of 
Announcements by moving Announcements to appear after the Invocation and Pledge of 
Allegiance on Regular City Council Meeting Agendas. The motion carried by a unanimous 
vote. 
 

5.  CONSIDERATION OF AND ACTION ON RESOLUTION NO. R-1965, A RESOLUTION AUTHORIZING 
THE CITY MANAGER TO COMBINE CITY-OWNED REAL PROPERTY AND TO ADD THE 
AFOREMENTIONED REAL PROPERTY TO COMMUNITY PARK, WITH SAID PROPERTY BEING 
DESCRIBED AS LOTS 4-7, BLOCK 2, THAT PORTION OF 3RD STREET (80-FOOT WIDE) BETWEEN 
BLOCK 2 AND BLOCK 3, NORTH OF AND ADJACENT TO AVENUE A, LOTS 1-9, BLOCK 3 THAT 
CERTAIN 20-FOOT WIDE ALLEY WITHIN BLOCK 3, THAT PORTION OF 4TH STREET (80-FOOT WIDE) 
BETWEEN BLOCK 3 AND 4, NORTH OF AND ADJACENT TO AVENUE A, LOTS 1-3, BLOCK 4, AND 
THAT CERTAIN 20-FOOT WIDE ALLEY WITHIN BLOCK 4, LOTS 11-20, BLOCK 11, AND THAT 
PORTION OF AVENUE A (80-FOOT WIDE) NORTH OF AND ADJACENT TO, LOT 11, BLOCK 11, CITY 
OF ROSENBERG TOWNSITE, ACCORDING TO A MAP OR PLAT THEREOF RECORDED IN VOLUME P, 
PAGE 146, DEED RECORDS, FORT BEND COUNTY, TEXAS, INCLUDING ANY ACCRETED PROPERTY 
BETWEEN SAID PROPERTY; AND, CONTAINING OTHER PROVISIONS RELATING TO THE SUBJECT. 
Executive Summary: On May 22, 2014, the Parks and Recreation Board (Board) reviewed a 
proposal to add two (2) City-owned parcels to Community Park.  After the motion passed by 
a unanimous vote of those present, staff presented the proposal to City Council at the 
September 30, 2014 Workshop Meeting.  City Council advised staff to move forward, allowing 
time to perform due diligence regarding the right-of-way access, utility issues, and to request 
a title search for each parcel. 
 
After reviewing the title searches with the City Engineer and Executive Director of Community 
Development, it has been confirmed that the parcels belong to the City and are able to be 
added to Community Park.  These two (2) additional parcels will allow the Parks Department 
to potentially build a trail around the park, similar to other parks throughout the City and 
provide an additional off-street parking area for Community Park patrons. 
 
Should City Council choose to dedicate the two tracts as a part of Community Park, the 
properties will not be able to be divested from the City in the future without putting them on a 
ballot for consideration during a public referendum.  
 
Staff recommends approval of Resolution R-1965, a Resolution to grant the addition of two (2) 
adjacent City-owned lots to Community Park; and, authorizing the City Manager to execute 
any and all necessary documentation to facilitate same. 
 
Key Discussion Points: Darren McCarthy, Parks and Recreation Director, read the Executive 
Summary, and explained that the City is currently already mowing and maintaining both 
parcels. Addition 1 could potentially be used for overflow parking as necessary, and Addition 
2 could be used in the development of a walking trail. 
 
Action: Councilor Euton made a motion, seconded by Councilor Wallingford, to approve 
Resolution No. R-1965, a Resolution authorizing the City Manager to combine City-owned real 



Page 7 of 10 * Regular City Council Meeting * August 18, 2015 * DRAFT* 
 

property and to add the aforementioned real property to Community Park, with said 
property being described as Lots 4-7, Block 2, that portion of 3rd Street (80-foot wide) 
between Block 2 and Block 3, north of and adjacent to Avenue A, Lots 1-9, Block 3 that 
certain 20-foot wide alley within Block 3, that portion of 4th Street (80-foot wide) between 
Block 3 and 4, north of and adjacent to Avenue A, Lots 1-3, Block 4, and that certain 20-foot 
wide alley within Block 4, Lots 11-20, Block 11, and that portion of Avenue A (80-foot wide) 
north of and adjacent to, Lot 11, Block 11, City of Rosenberg Townsite, according to a map or 
plat thereof recorded in Volume P, Page 146, Deed Records, Fort Bend County, Texas, 
including any accreted property between said property; and, containing other provisions 
relating to the subject. The motion carried by a unanimous vote. 
 

6.  CONSIDERATION OF AND ACTION ON RESOLUTION NO. R-1982, A RESOLUTION AUTHORIZING 
THE CITY MANAGER TO EXECUTE, FOR AND ON BEHALF OF THE CITY, A LETTER OF INTENT FOR 
PARTICIPATION IN A PROJECT REGARDING RAILROAD CROSSINGS AND DIRECTIONAL HORNS 
AND/OR QUIET ZONES, BY AND AMONG THE CITY OF ROSENBERG, THE CITY OF RICHMOND, 
AND FORT BEND COUNTY, TEXAS.  
Executive Summary: City Council previously discussed the Letter of Intent submitted by Fort 
Bend County Precinct 1 Commissioner Richard Morrison during the May 26, 2015 City Council 
Workshop. Commissioner Morrison was unable to attend the Workshop due to an unexpected 
emergency; therefore, City Council requested the item be placed onto the next Agenda for 
continued discussion.  
 
During the Workshop discussion, staff did point out that signing the Letter of Intent would 
obligate the City to fund a portion of the consultant fees necessary to design and estimate 
construction costs for the directional horns and/or quiet zones. Included in the packet is a 
Wayside Horn Implementation Proposal provided by Commissioner Morrison’s office. The 
proposal includes consultant fees, construction cost and on-going insurance/maintenance 
cost estimates. Commissioner Morrison subsequently provided the Engineering Cost sheet 
(included in the agenda packet) which identifies the total fee amount for the crossings along 
with the proposed cost allocation per entity.  Should City Council choose to support the 
Project, sample correspondence to notify affected commercial property owners of a 
proposed special assessment levy has also been provided for review.  The Commissioner is 
scheduled to present the Project proposal to City Council.   
 
Resolution No. R-1982 does include a provision authorizing the expenditure of funds for said 
purpose in an amount not to exceed, which has not yet been determined. If Resolution No. R-
1982 is approved to authorize the City Manager to execute the Letter of Intent, a dollar 
amount will need to be included, or the provision may be deleted from the Resolution. If 
approved, a subsequent budget adjustment will also be required. 
 
City Council action on Resolution No. R-1982 will authorize the City Manager to execute the 
Letter of Intent, included as Exhibit “A”, and provide staff with the direction necessary to 
proceed.         
 
Key Discussion Points: John Maresh, Assistant City Manager of Public Services, read the 
Executive Summary and introduced Fort Bend County Precinct 1 Commissioner Richard 
Morrison, who gave a presentation regarding the wayside horns. After discussion, the general 
consensus of Council was in support of the Resolution, amended to include an amount not to 
exceed $100,000, an added contingency on participation by the City of Richmond, Fort 
Bend County, and the Henderson-Wessendorff Foundation, and the deletion of references to 
the Letter of Intent (Section 3). Further, the consensus of Council was to exclude the West Fort 
Bend Management District from any contracts and future maintenance in Rosenberg.  
 
Action: Mayor McConathy made a motion, seconded by Councilor Pena, to approve 
Resolution No. R-1982, a Resolution authorizing the City Manager to execute, for and on 



Page 8 of 10 * Regular City Council Meeting * August 18, 2015 * DRAFT* 
 

behalf of the City signifying its intent for participation in a project regarding railroad crossings 
and directional horns and/or quiet zones, by and among the City of Rosenberg, the City of 
Richmond, Fort Bend County, Texas, and the Henderson-Wessendorff Foundation, in an 
amount not to exceed $100,000. The motion carried by a unanimous vote. 
 

7.  CONSIDERATION OF AND ACTION ON RESOLUTION NO. R-2018, A RESOLUTION AUTHORIZING 
THE CITY MANAGER AND/OR MAYOR TO EXECUTE, FOR AND ON BEHALF OF THE CITY, A 
STANDARD UTILITY AGREEMENT, AND ANY REVISIONS THEREOF, BY AND BETWEEN THE CITY AND 
TEXAS DEPARTMENT OF TRANSPORTATION (TXDOT) FOR WATER AND SANITARY SEWER UTILITY 
LINE RELOCATIONS NECESSITATED BY THE U.S. HWY 59/I-69 EXPANSION PROJECT.  
Executive Summary: The Texas Department of Transportation (TxDOT) U.S. Hwy 59/I-69 
Expansion Project has created numerous conflicts with existing City water and sanitary sewer 
utility lines. The utility lines must be relocated in order to eliminate the conflicts. This Standard 
Utility Agreement (Agreement) specifically addresses the remaining segments of water and 
sanitary sewer lines that will have to be relocated between Reading Road and FM 762. City 
Council previously approved similar Agreements on September 02, 2014 (Resolution Nos. R-
1852 and R-1853) for utility relocations located between Spur 10 and Reading Road.  Please 
note that Resolution Nos. R-1852 and R-1853 have been included without Exhibit “A” due to 
their size.  Should City Council wish to review either Resolution Nos. R-1852 or R-1853 in their 
entirety, both are available in the City Secretary’s office. 
 
Due to the short timeline, TxDOT did contract with an outside engineering firm to prepare the 
construction plans on behalf of the City. The plans were fully reviewed and approved by City 
staff. TxDOT is also including the water and sanitary sewer utility line relocation work as a part 
of the TxDOT road construction contract. By doing so, the TxDOT Contractor assumes full 
responsibility for scheduling the work and the City does not have to assume the risk of 
monetary penalties if a delay were to occur in meeting the relocation deadline. This 
Agreement, attached as Exhibit “A” to Resolution No. R-2018, specifies that TxDOT will fully 
fund/reimburse the City for all eligible costs associated with the relocation, including 
engineering and construction costs. The Agreement will also provide reimbursement to the 
City for expenses associated with both staff and consultant time spent for tasks such as plan 
reviews, construction inspections and attending TxDOT meetings directly associated with the 
Project. Staff would also note that said Agreement and attached exhibits may require minor 
revisions or clarifications during the TxDOT review and approval process.  
 
Staff recommends approval of Resolution No. R-2018 as presented. 
 
Key Discussion Points: John Maresh read the Executive Summary. The project is estimated to 
take about three and a half years. 
 
Action: Councilor Barta made a motion, seconded by Councilor Euton, to approve 
Resolution No. R-2018, a Resolution authorizing the City Manager and/or Mayor to execute, 
for and on behalf of the City, a Standard Utility Agreement, and any revisions thereof, by and 
between the City and Texas Department of Transportation (TxDOT) for water and sanitary 
sewer utility line relocations necessitated by the U.S. Hwy 59/I-69 Expansion Project. The 
motion carried by a unanimous vote. 
 

8.  CONSIDERATION OF AND ACTION ON RESOLUTION NO. R-2025, A RESOLUTION AWARDING BID 
NO. 2015-11 FOR LIME SUBGRADE STABILIZATION, WAIVING INFORMALITIES IN BIDDING; AND, 
AUTHORIZING THE CITY MANAGER TO NEGOTIATE AND EXECUTE, FOR AND ON BEHALF OF THE 
CITY, APPROPRIATE DOCUMENTS AND/OR AGREEMENTS REGARDING SAME.  
Executive Summary: The list of streets for the proposed FY2015 Street Overlay and 
Reconstruction Project was presented to City Council during the March 24, 2015 Workshop, 
and was approved on April 07, 2015. The Priority Project List is included in the supporting 
documentation for this item. The cost estimate for the recommended streets included is 



Page 9 of 10 * Regular City Council Meeting * August 18, 2015 * DRAFT* 
 

approximately $848,477. The FY2015 Budget includes $800,000.00, which should fully fund the 
FY2015 project, provided staff is able to control the actual material quantities used 
compared to the estimates provided. During the Workshop, staff recommended the use of a 
contractor to transport and place the asphalt in lieu of submitting a request to Fort Bend 
County Road and Bridge. The contractor would be selected utilizing the current Fort Bend 
County bids. Due to the County’s workload, this would allow the Project to be completed 
much sooner.  
 
Fort Bend County does not have a bid for the lime subgrade stabilization labor and materials 
that are necessary for the Rosenberg streets requiring reconstruction. Therefore, staff 
prepared specifications and sealed bids were received on Wednesday, July 29, 2015, for Bid 
No. 2015-11 for Lime Subgrade Stabilization.  A total of two (2) bids were received and 
tabulated as indicated on the bid summary form included in the agenda packet.  
 
Angel Brothers Enterprises, Ltd. (Angel Brothers), submitted a base bid in the amount of 
$415,265.00, which is $17,677.43 higher than the base bid amount of $397,587.57 submitted by 
Gonzalez Construction Enterprise, Inc. Staff recommends awarding Bid No. 2015-11 to the 
higher bidder Angel Brothers for the following reasons: 
 

1. Century Asphalt currently has the Fort Bend County Contract for asphalt material and 
the labor to lay down the asphalt. Angel Brothers is a subsidiary of Century Asphalt.  
By awarding the Bid No. 2015-11 to Angel Brothers, the City would have contractors 
from the same parent company performing all phases of the work.  This will minimize 
conflicts that are typically encountered when there are multiple contractors working 
on the same project. In this scenario, Angel Brothers would be performing the lime 
subgrade stabilization and would also overlay the street with asphalt provided by 
Century Asphalt under Fort Bend County’s Contract. 
 

2. The sealed bid submitted by Gonzalez Construction Enterprise, Inc., included an 
unusually high unit price for the Performance and Payment Bond in a lump sum 
amount of $152,500.00. Whereas, the sealed bid submitted by Angel Brothers included 
a unit price in the lump sum amount of $7,500.00 for the Performance and Payment 
Bond, which is in-line with the costs submitted by other contractors on similar type 
projects. Staff does not recommend acceptance of a bid with a pay item that 
includes an unusually large disparity. 

 
During the bid review process, it was also noted that the “Description of Unit” for Bid Item Nos. 
1 and 2 were inadvertently swapped on the bid form. However, both of the bidding 
contractors based the bid prices on the appropriate unit cost, not the description. Therefore, 
informalities in bidding will need to be waived in order to correct the descriptions and accept 
the bid.   
     
Staff recommends Bid No. 2015-11 be awarded to Angel Brothers Enterprises, Ltd., for the unit 
price bid item amounts for an initial term of one (1) year, with the option to automatically 
renew up to three (3) additional one (1) year terms based on these unit prices. Should the bid 
be awarded as recommended, the Angel Brothers Enterprises, Ltd., proposal will be attached 
and serve as Exhibit “A” to Resolution No. R-2025.  
 
In summary, staff recommends waiving informalities in bidding, and approval of Resolution 
No. R-2025 which will award Bid No. 2015-11 and provide authorization for the Mayor and/or 
City Manager to negotiate and execute all appropriate documents and/or agreements 
regarding same. 
 
Key Discussion Points: Rigo Calzoncin, Public Works Director, read the Executive Summary. 
Scott Tschirhart explained that an unusually high price for a bid bond is a red flag, generally 



Page 10 of 10 * Regular City Council Meeting * August 18, 2015 * DRAFT* 
 

 
 
 

 
 ____________________________________________ 
 Linda Cernosek, TRMC, City Secretary  

 

because of claims. 
 
Action: Councilor Pena made a motion, seconded by Councilor Barta, to approve Resolution 
No. R-2025, a Resolution awarding Bid No. 2015-11 for Lime Subgrade Stabilization to  Angel 
Brothers Enterprises, Ltd., in the amount of $415,265.00, waiving informalities in bidding; and, 
authorizing the City Manager to negotiate and execute, for and on behalf of the City, 
appropriate documents and/or agreements regarding same. The motion carried by a 
unanimous vote. 
 

9.  HOLD EXECUTIVE SESSION TO CONSULT WITH CITY ATTORNEY ON PENDING OR CONTEMPLATED 
LITIGATION, NAMELY TEXAS DEPARTMENT OF TRANSPORTATION V. ROSENBERG 
CONDEMNATION PROCEEDINGS, PURSUANT TO SECTION 551.071 OF THE TEXAS GOVERNMENT 
CODE; TO DELIBERATE THE POTENTIAL PURCHASE, EXCHANGE, LEASE, OR VALUE OF REAL 
PROPERTY PURSUANT TO SECTION 551.072 OF THE TEXAS GOVERNMENT CODE; TO DELIBERATE 
THE APPOINTMENT, EMPLOYMENT, AND EVALUATION OF THE CITY MANAGER PURSUANT TO 
SECTION 551.074 OF THE TEXAS GOVERNMENT CODE; AND, TO DELIBERATE THE APPOINTMENT, 
EMPLOYMENT, EVALUATION, REASSIGNMENT, DUTIES, DISCIPLINE, OR DISMISSAL, OR TO HEAR A 
COMPLAINT OR CHARGE AGAINST AN OFFICER OR EMPLOYEE AS IT RELATES TO THE 
COMMUNICATIONS DIRECTOR PURSUANT TO SECTION 551.074 OF THE TEXAS GOVERNMENT 
CODE. 
Action: Councilor Euton made a motion, seconded by Councilor Wallingford, to adjourn to 
Executive Session. The motion carried by a unanimous vote. 
 
An Executive Session was held  to consult with City Attorney on pending or contemplated 
litigation, namely Texas Department of Transportation v. Rosenberg condemnation 
proceedings, pursuant to Section 551.071 of the Texas Government Code; to deliberate the 
potential purchase, exchange, lease, or value of real property pursuant to Section 551.072 of 
the Texas Government Code; to deliberate the appointment, employment, and evaluation 
of the City Manager pursuant to Section 551.074 of the Texas Government Code; and, to 
deliberate the appointment, employment, evaluation, reassignment, duties, discipline, or 
dismissal, or to hear a complaint or charge against an officer or employee as it relates to the 
Communications Director pursuant to Section 551.074 of the Texas Government Code. 
 

10.  ADJOURN EXECUTIVE SESSION, RECONVENE INTO REGULAR SESSION, AND TAKE ACTION AS 
NECESSARY AS A RESULT OF EXECUTIVE SESSION. 
Mayor McConathy adjourned the Executive Session and reconvened into Regular Session at 
10:02 p.m. 
 
Action:  Mayor McConathy made a motion, seconded by Councilor Pena, to give the City 
Manager direction to immediately terminate the current Communications Director.  
The motion carried by a vote of 6 to 1 as follows:  Yeses:  Mayor McConathy, Councilors 
Benton, Barta, Pena, Euton, and Moses. No:  Councilor Wallingford. 
 

11.  ANNOUNCEMENTS. 
• There were no announcements. 

 
12.  ADJOURNMENT. 

There being no further business, Mayor McConathy adjourned the meeting at 10:03 p.m. 



Page 1 of 3 * City Council Special Meeting Minutes * August 25, 2015 * DRAFT* 
 

CITY OF ROSENBERG 
SPECIAL COUNCIL MEETING MINUTES *DRAFT*  

 
 
On this the 25th day of August, 2015, the City Council of the City of Rosenberg, Fort Bend County, 
Texas, met in a Special Session, in the Rosenberg City Hall Council Chamber, located at 2110 4th 
Street, Rosenberg, Texas. 
 
PRESENT 
Cynthia A. McConathy Mayor 
William Benton   Councilor at Large, Position 1 
Amanda J. Barta  Councilor at Large, Position 2 
Jimmie J. Pena  Councilor, District 1  
Susan Euton   Councilor, District 2 
Lisa M. Wallingford  Councilor, District 3 
Lynn Moses   Councilor, District 4 
 
ABSENT 
Susan Euton   Councilor, District 2 
 
STAFF PRESENT 
Robert Gracia   City Manager 
Scott M. Tschirhart  City Attorney 
Linda Cernosek  City Secretary 
John Maresh    Assistant City Manager of Public Services 
Jeff Trinker   Executive Director of Support Services 
Joyce Vasut   Executive Director of Administrative Services 
Travis Tanner   Executive Director of Community Development 
Tonya Palmer   Building Official 
Lisa Olmeda   Human Resources Director 
Dallis Warren   Police Chief 
Cody Davis   Police Officer 
John Thetford   Police Officer 
Wade Goates   Fire Chief 
Darrell Himley   Assistant Fire Chief 
Justin Jurek   Fire Marshal 
Darren McCarthy  Parks and Recreation Director 
Lydia Acosta   Recreation Program Coordinator 
Randall Malik   Economic Development Director 
James Lewis   Director of Technology 
Jenny Pavlovich  Communications Manager 
Luis Garza   Accounting Supervisor 
Daniel Kelleher  Main Street Manager 
Kaye Supak   Executive Assistant 
 
The City Council reserves the right to adjourn into Executive Session at any time during the course of 
this meeting to discuss any of the matters listed below, as authorized by Title 5, Chapter 551, of the 
Texas Government Code. 
 
CALL TO ORDER. 
Mayor McConathy called the meeting to order at 6:00 p.m. 
 
GENERAL COMMENTS FROM THE AUDIENCE. 
Citizens who desire to address the City Council with comments of a general nature will be received at 
this time.  Each speaker is limited to three (3) minutes.  In accordance with the Texas Open Meetings 



Page 2 of 3 * City Council Special Meeting Minutes * August 25, 2015 * DRAFT* 
 

Act, the City Council is restricted from discussing or taking action on items not listed on the agenda.  It 
is our policy to have all speakers identify themselves by providing their name and residential address 
when making comments. 
 
COMMENTS FROM THE AUDIENCE FOR CONSENT AND REGULAR AGENDA ITEMS. 
Citizens who desire to address the City Council with regard to matters on the Consent Agenda or 
Regular Agenda will be received at the time the item is considered.  Each speaker is limited to three 
(3) minutes.  Comments or discussion by the City Council Members will only be made at the time the 
agenda item is scheduled for consideration.  It is our policy to have all speakers identify themselves by 
providing their name and residential address when making comments. 
 

 
AGENDA 

1.  HOLD SECOND PUBLIC HEARING TO CONSIDER COMMENTS RELATING TO FISCAL YEAR 2015-2016 
PROPOSED BUDGET, WHICH INCLUDES THE CITY OF ROSENBERG’S CAPITAL IMPROVEMENT PLAN 
(CIP), AND TAKE ACTION AS NECESSARY.  
Executive Summary: Section 9.06 of the Rosenberg City Charter requires the Rosenberg City 
Council to hold a public hearing on the proposed Budget submitted; and, all interested persons 
shall be given an opportunity to be heard for or against any item or the amount of any item 
contained in the proposed Budget. 
 
Notice of this public hearing was published in the newspaper on Sunday, August 9, 2015.  The 
first public hearing on the proposed Budget was held on Tuesday, August 18, 2015.  This is the 
second public hearing on the Budget. 
 
This public hearing is held to provide the citizens the opportunity to present their comments 
regarding the proposed FY2015-2016 Budget. 
 
Key Discussion Points:  

• Joyce Vasut, Executive Director of Administrative Services, read the Executive Summary. 
• Mayor McConathy opened the public hearing at 6:03:15 p.m.  
• There were no speakers. 
• Mayor McConathy closed the public hearing at 6:03:31p.m. 

 
2.  HOLD DISCUSSION BY CITY COUNCIL ON THE FISCAL YEAR 2015-2016 PROPOSED BUDGET, WHICH 

INCLUDES THE CITY OF ROSENBERG’S CAPITAL IMPROVEMENT PLAN (CIP), AND TAKE ACTION AS 
NECESSARY. 
Executive Summary: Section 9.08 of the Rosenberg City Charter states that after the conclusion 
of the public hearing on the proposed Budget, the City Council may insert new items or may 
increase or decrease the items of said Budget, except items in proposed expenditures fixed by 
law.   
 
The second public hearing on the proposed FY2015-2016 Budget was held immediately 
preceding this Agenda item.  City staff will present the changes that were recommended by 
City Council during the August 08, 2015 Budget Workshop.  At this time, City Council shall have 
an opportunity to discuss the proposed FY2015-2016 Budget, any additional changes thereto, 
and by a majority vote direct staff to make additional changes.  The final FY2015-2016 Budget 
will be considered for adoption at the September 01, 2015 City Council Meeting. 
 
Key Discussion Points: Joyce Vasut read the Executive Summary and presented the final list of 
changes as previously discussed. The final FY2015-2016 Budget and Effective Tax Rate will be 
considered for adoption at the September 01, 2015 City Council Meeting. 
 
Action: Councilor Benton made a motion, seconded by Councilor Moses, to approve and 
include the changes to the Fiscal Year 2015-2016 Proposed Budget, which includes the City of 



Page 3 of 3 * City Council Special Meeting Minutes * August 25, 2015 * DRAFT* 
 

Rosenberg’s Capital Improvement Plan (CIP). The motion carried by a unanimous vote of those 
present. 
 

3.  ADJOURNMENT. 
There being no further business, Mayor McConathy adjourned the meeting at 6:08 p.m. 
 

 
 
 

  ____________________________________________ 
  Linda Cernosek, TRMC, City Secretary   



Page 1 of 5 * Workshop City Council Meeting * August 25, 2015 * DRAFT* 
 

CITY OF ROSENBERG 
WORKSHOP COUNCIL MEETING MINUTES *DRAFT*  

 
 
On this the 25th day of August, 2015, the City Council of the City of Rosenberg, Fort Bend County, 
Texas, met in a Workshop Session, in the Rosenberg City Hall Council Chamber, located at 2110 4th 
Street, Rosenberg, Texas. 
 
PRESENT 
Cynthia A. McConathy Mayor 
William Benton   Councilor at Large, Position 1 
Amanda J. Barta  Councilor at Large, Position 2 
Jimmie J. Pena  Councilor, District 1  
Susan Euton   Councilor, District 2 
Lisa M. Wallingford  Councilor, District 3 
Lynn Moses   Councilor, District 4 
 
STAFF PRESENT 
Robert Gracia   City Manager 
Scott M. Tschirhart  City Attorney 
Linda Cernosek  City Secretary 
John Maresh    Assistant City Manager of Public Services 
Jeff Trinker   Executive Director of Support Services 
Joyce Vasut   Executive Director of Administrative Services 
Travis Tanner   Executive Director of Community Development 
Tonya Palmer   Building Official 
Lisa Olmeda   Human Resources Director 
Dallis Warren   Police Chief 
Cody Davis   Police Officer 
John Thetford   Police Officer 
Wade Goates   Fire Chief 
Darrell Himley   Assistant Fire Chief 
Justin Jurek   Fire Marshal 
Darren McCarthy  Parks and Recreation Director 
Lydia Acosta   Recreation Program Coordinator 
Randall Malik   Economic Development Director 
James Lewis   Director of Technology 
Jenny Pavlovich  Communications Manager 
Luis Garza   Accounting Supervisor 
Daniel Kelleher  Main Street Manager 
Kaye Supak   Executive Assistant 
 
During a City Council Workshop, the City Council does not take final action on the agenda items and 
any consideration of final action will be scheduled at a Regular or Special City Council Meeting. 
Public comments are welcomed at Regular or Special City Council Meetings. No public comments will 
be received at a Workshop Meeting. 

 
The City Council reserves the right to adjourn into Executive Session at any time during the course of 
this meeting to discuss any of the matters listed below, as authorized by Title 5, Chapter 551, of the 
Texas Government Code. 
 
CALL TO ORDER. 
Mayor McConathy called the meeting to order at 6:15 p.m. 

 



Page 2 of 5 * Workshop City Council Meeting * August 25, 2015 * DRAFT* 
 

 
AGENDA 

1.  REVIEW AND DISCUSS A PRESENTATION ON DIGITAL BILLBOARDS BY LEE VELA OF CLEAR CHANNEL 
COMMUNICATIONS, AND TAKE ACTION AS NECESSARY TO DIRECT STAFF.  
Executive Summary: This item has been included to allow for City Council to hear a presentation by Lee 
Vela of Clear Channel Communications regarding digital billboards. 
 
Key Discussion Points: Cynthia A. McConathy, Mayor, introduced Lee Vela of Clear Channel Outdoor, 
who gave a presentation on Outdoor Digital Advertising (digital billboards). Digital Billboards have a 
static message that changes every eight seconds, with controls on light output in accordance with 
TxDOT regulations. Sign owners coordinate with local officials to display emergency information, such as 
Amber Alerts, hurricane-related emergency messages, regional FBI alerts, and local crime fighting 
messages. Clear Channel will remove static billboards at a 3:1 ratio, should this project be approved. 
The majority consensus of Council was to move forward with an amendment to the existing sign 
Ordinances, allowing for digital billboards with accompanying regulation language built in.  
 

2.  REVIEW AND DISCUSS PROPOSED POLICY FOR REIMBURSEMENT OF COSTS ASSOCIATED WITH REQUIRED 
CERTIFICATION OR OTHER TRAINING PROVIDED TO A CITY EMPLOYEE IN THE EVENT THAT THE EMPLOYEE’S 
EMPLOYMENT SHOULD BE VOLUNTARILY TERMINATED BEFORE COMPLETING A REASONABLE PERIOD OF 
SERVICE, AND TAKE ACTION AS NECESSARY TO DIRECT STAFF.  
Executive Summary: Cities often expend time and money providing training to certain newly hired 
personnel. The resources may be considered well-spent when the employee remains on the job. 
However, when they give notice and leave soon after they are hired, the City may wish to consider 
ways to recover the training costs expended on behalf of such employees.  
 
Should City Council agree that reimbursement of costs associated with certification/training is 
appropriate if an employee does not complete a reasonable period of service, then it will be necessary 
to develop a policy to address the method of recovery of such funds. Thus, this item has been added to 
the Agenda to facilitate such discussion and for City Council to provide direction to staff. 
 
Key Discussion Points: William A. Benton, Councilor, gave background on the item, explaining that, in 
many cases, the City hires employees who go through a training program at the cost of the City, only to 
move elsewhere quickly upon completion of certification training. He recommended amending the 
Employee Policies to allow for reimbursement for training costs, should an employee voluntarily 
terminate employment. Other recommendations during conversation included increasing incentive 
pay for completion of certification programs, increasing base salaries in line with the compensation 
study results in order to retain employees, or delaying incentive pay until a certain amount of time has 
passed after completion of training. The general consensus was to have the City Attorney work with 
Human Resources to develop policy language to address the concerns of Council. 
 

3.  REVIEW AND DISCUSS THE UTILITIES DEPARTMENT TEMPORARY BUILDING PROPOSAL, AND TAKE ACTION AS 
NECESSARY TO DIRECT STAFF.   
Executive Summary: This item has been included to provide City Council with an update on the Utilities 
Building Project and to solicit direction from City Council. 
 
As part of the Facilities Master Plan Project, the Blue Ribbon Facilities Task Force (Task Force) and City 
staff toured various City facilities.  During the course of these tours, both the Task Force and staff noticed 
that Utilities employees were officing in the same building that houses high pressure chlorine cylinders, a 
situation which presented a possible safety risk to the employees in the event of a chlorine release.  
Utilities staff have since been moved to an open room (primarily used as the break room) in the storage 
building, an arrangement that is not workable for the medium to long term.  At the March 24, 2015 City 
Council Workshop Meeting, staff presented the City Council with a recommendation to investigate the 
possibility of acquiring temporary office space in which to house the Utilities employees.  City Council 
directed staff to continue investigating options. 
 
The Utilities Department decided on a portable office concept.  The  building is a traditional office 
space including an eight (8) seat conference room, four (4) offices, workstations for up to five (5) 
employees, a workstation for a secretary, a drafting room with room for a plotter printer/copier, a small 
breakroom and men’s and women’s restrooms.  The requirements for this office space were determined 
by the Utilities Department and then incorporated into the design of the building in order to meet the 
Department’s medium term needs.  A second building for field personnel was designed and considered 



Page 3 of 5 * Workshop City Council Meeting * August 25, 2015 * DRAFT* 
 

by staff; however, due to cost concerns, staff only recommends the consideration of the single office 
building concept at this time.  Space has been identified in the site plan that would allow for the 
placement of an additional building should funding be made available at a later time.  
 
Staff interviewed a number of temporary/modular building suppliers and decided to work with Ilcor 
Builders (Ilcor) to develop a design and price quote for several reasons:  1) Ilcor allows for complete 
customization as opposed to more limited customization options with the modular companies; 2) Ilcor 
constructs the buildings onsite as opposed to modules that are manufactured offsite and transported to 
the location; 3) Lamar Consolidated I.S.D. highly recommended Ilcor buildings and stated that they do 
not have the maintenance issues with Ilcor that they have experienced with products from other 
companies.  Ilcor is also a member of the BuyBoard purchasing cooperative and offers pre-negotiated 
prices for services.  Staff proposes funding this Project through the utilization of Water/Wastewater Fund 
balance. 
 
Key Discussion Points: Jeff Trinker, Executive Director of Support Services, read the Executive Summary 
and presented a proposal for a temporary office building to relocate the utilities staff. John Maresh, 
Assistant City Manager of Public Services, confirmed that, even after the eventual conversion from 
chlorine gas to bleach, the showers will still be required by TCEQ. After discussion, Council directed staff 
to pursue more cost effective means of acquiring building space, such as getting another company's 
cost quote, or investigating the purchase of a used building. 
 
Mayor McConathy adjourned the meeting for a break at 7:35 p.m., and reconvened the meeting at 
7:45 p.m. 
 

4.  REVIEW AND DISCUSS THE FIRE DEPARTMENT ADMINISTRATION BUILDING, AND TAKE ACTION AS 
NECESSARY TO DIRECT STAFF.  
Executive Summary: This item has been placed on the Agenda to offer an opportunity for City Council 
and Fire Department staff to discuss what may be a possible short-term solution to the space needs that 
currently exist at the Fire Administration’s location at 1012 5th Street. 
  
Recently, the Mayor and staff toured a building located at 4336 Highway 36 South. The building is 
owned by Fort Bend County and is currently vacant. Fort Bend County had planned to raze the building 
in January of 2016 but may consider staying the demolition to allow the City’s Fire Administration to 
occupy the building.  
 
Staff is seeking City Council’s direction as the building is in need of repair and funding was not included 
in the proposed FY2016 Budget for building repair or relocation costs. Should City Council look favorably 
upon this proposal to relocate Fire Administration, it will be necessary to ascertain the extent to which 
the building needs repair, the cost of said repairs, relocation costs, and ongoing operational costs for 
the new location. Once this information has been gathered, staff will report back to City Council. 
 
Key Discussion Points: Wade Goates, Fire Chief, gave an overview of the space needs of the Fire 
Department and the possibility of entering into an Interlocal Agreement with Fort Bend County for the 
use of their building. The building has been inspected by Code Enforcement, which identified some 
maintenance issues that will need to be addressed before committing resources, but there were no 
structural issues. The lease agreement for the current Fire Administration building expires in March, 2016. 
The general consensus of Council was in favor of further investigation into the use of this building, 
associated costs, and necessary agreements. 
 

5.  REVIEW AND DISCUSS PROPOSED AMENDMENTS TO THE “RENTAL REGISTRATION AND INSPECTION” 
ORDINANCE, AND TAKE ACTION AS NECESSARY TO DIRECT STAFF.  
Executive Summary: After discussions with rental property owners, the Fire Department is proposing 
changes to the “Rental Registration and Inspection” Ordinance to revise the registration requirement 
from an annual registration to a one-time registration, along with a few other minor administrative 
adjustments. 
 
A redlined Code excerpt has been included in the agenda packet for review and discussion.  Should 
City Council direct staff to proceed, an ordinance will be brought forward for consideration on a future 
meeting Agenda. 
 
 



Page 4 of 5 * Workshop City Council Meeting * August 25, 2015 * DRAFT* 
 

Key Discussion Points: Justin Jurek, Fire Marshal, read the Executive Summary, and the Councilmembers 
gave direction on amending the Ordinance before bringing it back before Council for approval. 
 

6.  REVIEW AND DISCUSS PROPOSED AMENDMENTS TO THE “SMOKING” ORDINANCE AS IT RELATES TO CITY 
PARKS, AND TAKE ACTION AS NECESSARY TO DIRECT STAFF.  
Executive Summary: At the July 25, 2015 regular meeting, Parks and Recreation Board members made a 
recommendation requesting staff to pursue an amendment to the City’s current “Smoking” Ordinance 
which would include electronic smoking/vaping devices.  
 
Staff research resulted in unanimous findings from the American Lung Association and the Center for 
Disease Control, stating concern over lack of government oversight for electronic smoking devices.  
Further, these organizations widely agree that the products used in electronic smoking devices often 
contain harmful chemicals which pose serious health risks to children and adolescents.  Research also 
indicates that these devices are often used in conjunction with illegal drugs.  On occasion, Parks 
Department staff has discovered evidence of such illicit use within Rosenberg parks.  If parks exist to 
promote healthy, physical activities then it stands to reason that electronic smoking devices should be 
included in the City’s existing ban on tobacco products, which is in line with the trend among many 
municipal agencies in Texas and across the country.   
 
Staff is seeking direction from Mayor and City Council on whether or not to proceed with this request.  
Should City Council direct staff to proceed, a proposed amendment to the “Smoking” Ordinance as it 
relates to City parks will be placed on a future Agenda for consideration. 
 
Key Discussion Points: Lydia Acosta, Recreation Program Coordinator, read the Executive Summary and 
gave an overview of recent State legislation passed regarding Electronic Cigarettes, requesting 
direction from Council as to whether they would like to follow suit. The general consensus of Council 
was that, if the parks are going to have language against smoking, all forms of smoking should be 
consistently prohibited, including E-cigarettes. 
 

7.  REVIEW AND DISCUSS UN-MANNED DRONE USE IN CITY PARKS, AND TAKE ACTION AS NECESSARY TO 
DIRECT STAFF.  
Executive Summary: At the regular May 28, 2015 meeting, staff presented a discussion item to the Parks 
and Recreation Board regarding the utilization of un-manned drones in City parks. In June of 2014, the 
National Park Service publicly announced the ban of all drones in National Parks due to the numerous 
complaints of drones disturbing visitors, wildlife, and interfering with emergency rescue situations. The 
House of Representatives has a bill in committee review, HB 1481, to ban drones in specified areas. 
Some states have already moved forward banning drones in public places. In an effort to protect all 
who participate in the parks and events held in parks, staff believes it is in the City’s best interest to 
consider taking the necessary steps to ban all personal unmanned drone use in all Rosenberg City parks. 
 
This item has been added to the Agenda to discuss unmanned drone use in City parks and take action 
as necessary to direct staff. 
 
Key Discussion Points: Darren McCarthy, Parks and Recreation Director, read the Executive Summary 
and gave an overview of the item. Scott Tschirhart, City Attorney, confirmed that the City has the 
authority to ban drone use in the parks. Mr. McCarthy stated that he has concerns for preservation of 
nature and the respect of privacy, but would recommend providing language for the professional use 
of drones for special circumstances as permitted by Council, such as during a City-sponsored event in 
one of the parks. The general consensus was to work with the City Attorney to create an Ordinance 
addressing drone use in City Parks, to be reviewed by the Parks Board in September, and to return to 
City Council for final approval in October. 
 

8.  REVIEW AND DISCUSS THE PARKS GROUNDS MAINTENANCE CONTRACT, AND TAKE ACTION AS NECESSARY 
TO DIRECT STAFF.  
Executive Summary: Currently, the Parks Grounds Maintenance is being provided by A’s Camo Cutters. 
The parks covered by the Contract are Harwood, Brazos, Community, and Riverbend Parks.  Resolution 
No. R-1831 was approved by City Council on October 21, 2014, to provide services for one (1) year with 
an option for an additional one-year term.  Per the current Contract, the extension option for the one-
year term is $40,080.00. 
 
Staff recommends exercising the one-year Contract extension option.  This item has been placed on 



Page 5 of 5 * Workshop City Council Meeting * August 25, 2015 * DRAFT* 
 

the Workshop Agenda for City Council to direct staff. 
 
Key Discussion Points: Darren McCarthy read the Executive Summary, and Council advised him to 
move forward with the contract extension.  
 

9.  REVIEW AND DISCUSS THE SEABOURNE CREEK REGIONAL SPORTS COMPLEX GROUNDS MAINTENANCE 
CONTRACT, AND TAKE ACTION AS NECESSARY TO DIRECT STAFF.  
Executive Summary: Currently, the Seabourne Creek Regional Sports Complex Grounds Maintenance 
Contract is being provided by NRI Brokerage, LLC, dba Earth First Landscapes.  Resolution No. R-1832 
was approved by City Council on October 21, 2014, to provide services for one (1) year with an option 
for an additional one-year term.  Per the current Contract, the extension option for the one-year term is 
$52,980.00. 
 
Staff recommends exercising the additional one-year Contract extension option.  This item has been 
placed on the Workshop Agenda for City Council to direct staff. 
 
Key Discussion Points: Darren McCarthy read the Executive Summary and addressed the single concern 
that happened with the contractor, which was immediately and fully rectified. Council advised him to 
move forward with the contract extension.  
 

10.  ADJOURNMENT. 
There being no further business, Mayor McConathy adjourned the meeting at 8:35 p.m. 

 
 
 
 

  ____________________________________________ 
       Linda Cernosek, TRMC, City Secretary  
 
 



Page 1 of 9 * Regular City Council Meeting Minutes * September 1, 2015 * DRAFT 
 

CITY OF ROSENBERG 
REGULAR CITY COUNCIL MEETING MINUTES *DRAFT* 

 
On this the 1st day of September, 2015, the City Council of the City of Rosenberg, Fort Bend County, 
Texas, met in a Regular Session, in the Rosenberg City Hall Council Chamber, located at 2110 4th Street, 
Rosenberg, Texas. 
 
PRESENT 
Cynthia A. McConathy Mayor 
William Benton   Councilor at Large, Position 1 
Amanda J. Barta  Councilor at Large, Position 2 
Jimmie J. Pena  Councilor, District 1  
Susan Euton   Councilor, District 2 
Lisa M. Wallingford  Councilor, District 3 
Lynn Moses   Councilor, District 4 
 
STAFF PRESENT 
Robert Gracia   City Manager 
Scott M. Tschirhart  City Attorney 
Linda Cernosek  City Secretary 
John Maresh    Assistant City Manager of Public Services 
Jeff Trinker   Executive Director of Support Services 
Joyce Vasut   Executive Director of Administrative Services 
Travis Tanner   Executive Director of Community Development 
Tonya Palmer   Building Official 
Lisa Olmeda   Human Resources Director 
Dallis Warren   Police Chief 
Justin Rodgers   Police Officer 
Wade Goates   Fire Chief 
Randall Malik   Economic Development Director 
James Lewis   Director of Technology 
Jenny Pavlovich  Communications Manager 
Kaye Supak   Executive Assistant 
 
The City Council reserves the right to adjourn into Executive Session at any time during the course of this 
meeting to discuss any of the matters listed below, as authorized by Title 5, Chapter 551, of the Texas 
Government Code. 
 
CALL TO ORDER. 
Mayor McConathy called the meeting to order at 7:00 p.m. 
 
INVOCATION AND PLEDGE OF ALLEGIANCE.  
Pastor Bob Sinclair, First United Methodist Church, Rosenberg, gave the invocation and led the pledge of 
allegiance to the flag. 
 
ANNOUNCEMENTS. 

• The funeral for Sheriff Deputy Darren Goforth will take place Friday at 11 a.m. at Second Baptist 
Church in Houston. Please include his family in your prayers that day. 
 

PRESENTATION OF ROSENBERG IMAGE COMMITTEE BEAUTIFICATION AND RENOVATION AWARDS.  
Mayor McConathy and Councilor Benton presented Rosenberg Image Committee Beautification and 
Renovation Awards to: 
 

• Agnes Helm, Ryan and Jade Ohl 1122 Lawrence Street 
• Ryan and Cheryl Duran 503 Houston Street 
• Rosenberg Station 5101 Avenue H 

  
 



Page 2 of 9 * Regular City Council Meeting Minutes * September 1, 2015 * DRAFT 
 

PRESENTATION OF PROCLAMATION PROCLAIMING SEPTEMBER 14, 2015, AS STAR-SPANGLED BANNER DAY 
IN THE CITY OF ROSENBERG.  
Mayor McConathy presented a Proclamation Proclaiming September 14, 2015, as Star-Spangled Banner 
Day in the City of Rosenberg. 
 
GENERAL COMMENTS FROM THE AUDIENCE. 
Citizens who desire to address the City Council with comments of a general nature will be received at 
this time.  Each speaker is limited to three (3) minutes.  In accordance with the Texas Open Meetings 
Act, the City Council is restricted from discussing or taking action on items not listed on the agenda.  It is 
our policy to have all speakers identify themselves by providing their name and residential address when 
making comments. 

• Carol Reed, 1126 Sally Anne - There have been improvements on Sally Anne Street, but the 
speeding problem still persists and she hopes that the City will do more to control the traffic. 
 

COMMENTS FROM THE AUDIENCE FOR CONSENT AND REGULAR AGENDA ITEMS. 
Citizens who desire to address the City Council with regard to matters on the Consent Agenda or 
Regular Agenda will be received at the time the item is considered.  Each speaker is limited to three (3) 
minutes.  Comments or discussion by the City Council Members will only be made at the time the 
agenda item is scheduled for consideration.  It is our policy to have all speakers identify themselves by 
providing their name and residential address when making comments. 
 

CONSENT AGENDA 
 

1.  Review of Consent Agenda. 
All Consent Agenda items listed are considered to be routine by the City Council and may be 
enacted by one (1) motion.  There will be no separate discussion of Consent Agenda items 
unless a City Council Member has requested that the item be discussed, in which case the item 
will be removed from the Consent Agenda and considered in its normal sequence on the 
Regular Agenda. 
 

 A.  CONSIDERATION OF AND ACTION ON SPECIAL MEETING MINUTES FOR AUGUST 08, 2015, 
AND WORKSHOP MEETING MINUTES FOR AUGUST 08, 2015.  
 

 B.  CONSIDERATION OF AND ACTION ON RESOLUTION NO. R-2028, A RESOLUTION 
AUTHORIZING THE MAYOR TO EXECUTE, FOR AND ON BEHALF OF THE CITY, AMENDMENT 4 
TO: SECURITY SERVICES CONTRACT BETWEEN LAMAR CONSOLIDATED INDEPENDENT 
SCHOOL DISTRICT AND THE CITY OF ROSENBERG FOR POLICE SERVICES PROVIDED BY 
ROSENBERG POLICE OFFICERS.  
Executive Summary: Amendment 4 to the Security Services Contract (Contract) with 
Lamar Consolidated Independent School District (LCISD) is to provide for one (1) 
additional one-year extension to the current Contract.  
 
LCISD and Rosenberg mutually agree that the terms and provisions of the original 
Agreement, executed by a representative of LCISD on March 22, 2012, and by the City 
on August 21, 2012, shall renew automatically for a term of one (1) year, ending on 
August 31, 2016.  One (1) additional one-year renewal remains upon mutual agreement 
of the parties 
 
Amendment 4 is included as Exhibit “A” to Resolution No. R-2028. Staff recommends 
approval of Resolution No. R-2028 as presented. 
 

 Action: Councilor Euton made a motion, seconded by Councilor Moses, to approve Consent 
Agenda Items A and B. The motion carried by a unanimous vote. 
 

REGULAR AGENDA 
 

2.  CONSIDERATION OF AND ACTION ON ORDINANCE NO. 2015-26, AN ORDINANCE APPROVING 
AND ADOPTING THE CITY OF ROSENBERG, TEXAS, BUDGET FOR THE FISCAL YEAR 2015-2016; 



Page 3 of 9 * Regular City Council Meeting Minutes * September 1, 2015 * DRAFT 
 

MAKING APPROPRIATIONS FOR THE CITY FOR SUCH YEAR AS REFLECTED IN SAID BUDGET; AND 
MAKING CERTAIN FINDINGS AND CONTAINING CERTAIN PROVISIONS RELATING TO THE SUBJECT.  
Executive Summary: Ordinance No. 2015-26 provides City Council with the opportunity to consider 
adopting the FY2015-2016 Budget as prepared and presented by staff and adjusted by City Council 
during the recent Budget workshops.   
 
The proposed operating Budget as shown in the Combined Budget Summary, or Exhibit “A” of 
Ordinance No. 2015-26, appropriates those monies necessary to fund City operations, including 
general operations, water and wastewater operations, debt service obligations, special revenue 
fund operations, internal service fund operations and capital outlays for FY2015-2016. 
 
This Budget, as presented in Exhibit “A”, is based on the proposed FY2015-2016 Budget that was 
originally presented to City Council on July 21, 2015, and includes the changes presented in the 
memorandum dated August 26, 2015.  
  
Staff recommends approval of Ordinance No. 2015-26, providing for and adopting the City of 
Rosenberg, Texas, Budget for the Fiscal Year 2015-2016. 
 
Key Discussion Points: Joyce Vasut, Executive Director of Administrative Services, read the 
Executive Summary. 
 
Action: Councilor Euton made a motion, seconded by Councilor Barta, to approve Ordinance 
No. 2015-26, an Ordinance approving and adopting the City of Rosenberg, Texas, Budget for 
the Fiscal Year 2015-2016; making appropriations for the City for such year as reflected in said 
Budget; and making certain findings and containing certain provisions relating to the subject. 
The motion carried by a unanimous vote. 
 

3.  CONSIDERATION OF AND ACTION ON ORDINANCE NO. 2015-27, AN ORDINANCE PROVIDING 
FOR THE LEVY AND COLLECTION OF AD VALOREM TAXES OF THE CITY OF ROSENBERG, TEXAS, FOR 
THE YEAR 2015; PROVIDING FOR THE DATE ON WHICH SUCH TAXES SHALL BE DUE AND PAYABLE; 
PROVIDING FOR PENALTY AND INTEREST ON ALL TAXES NOT TIMELY PAID; REPEALING ALL 
ORDINANCES OR PARTS OF ORDINANCES INCONSISTENT OR IN CONFLICT HEREWITH; AND 
PROVIDING FOR SEVERABILITY.  
Executive Summary: Staff recommends the adoption of Ordinance No. 2015-27.  This 
Ordinance levies an ad valorem tax rate of $0.470000 per $100 valuation for Tax Year 2015, the 
collection of which falls in FY2015-2016, beginning October 01, 2015, and ending September 30, 
2016.  The maintenance and operation tax rate will be set at $0.253742 per $100 valuation and 
the debt service tax rate will be set at $0.216258 per $100 valuation. 
 
To approve Ordinance No. 2015-27, it will be necessary for City Council to consider three (3) 
separate motions in accordance with specific statutory requirements applicable to the 
adoption of the tax rate, and indicated as follows: 
 

1. Motion: I move that a tax rate of $0.253742 for the purpose of funding the 
maintenance and operation expenses of the City be approved;  

2. Motion: I move that a tax rate of $0.216258 for the purpose of paying the accruing 
interest and to provide a sinking fund for the payment of the indebtedness of the City 
be approved; and,  

3. Motion: I move that the property tax rate be adopted at a tax rate of $0.470000 per 
$100 valuation, and I move to adopt Ordinance No. 2015-27. 

 
Key Discussion Points: Joyce Vasut read the Executive Summary. 
 
Action: Councilor Euton made a motion, seconded by Councilor Moses, that a tax rate of 
$0.253742 for the purpose of funding the maintenance and operation expenses of the City be 
approved. The motion carried by a unanimous vote. 
 
Action: Councilor Euton made a motion, seconded by Councilor Barta, that a tax rate of 



Page 4 of 9 * Regular City Council Meeting Minutes * September 1, 2015 * DRAFT 
 

$0.216258 for the purpose of paying the accruing interest and to provide a sinking fund for the 
payment of the indebtedness of the City be approved. The motion carried by a unanimous 
vote. 
 
Action: Councilor Euton made a motion, seconded by Councilor Barta, that the property tax 
rate be adopted at a tax rate of $0.470000 per $100 valuation, and to adopt Ordinance No. 
2015-27, with an amendment to section 4 correcting the date from 2015 to 2016. The motion 
carried by a unanimous vote. 
 

4.  CONSIDERATION OF AND ACTION ON RATIFICATION OF ADOPTION OF A BUDGET THAT WILL 
REQUIRE RAISING MORE REVENUE FROM PROPERTY TAXES THAN IN THE PREVIOUS YEAR DUE TO 
AN INCREASE IN NEW DEVELOPMENT. 
Executive Summary: In accordance with the requirements of Section 102.007 of the Texas Local 
Government Code, the City Council is required to have a separate vote to ratify the adoption 
of a Budget that will require raising more revenue from property taxes than in the previous 
year.   The City Council plans to adopt a tax rate of $0.47 per $100, which is less than the 
effective rate and the rollback rate.  Therefore according to Truth-in-Taxation, the City Council 
is not adopting a tax increase.  However, due to the amount of new development, there will 
be an increase in the amount of taxable property and the City anticipates the collection of 
more property tax revenue than in the previous year.  The 2015-2016 Budget as adopted also 
anticipates this increase. 
  
In order to ratify the adoption of a Budget that will raise more revenues from property taxes 
than the previous year, it will be necessary for City Council to indicate such ratification with the 
following motion:   
 
Motion:  I move to ratify the adoption of the 2015-2016 Budget that will require raising more 
revenue from property taxes than in the previous year due to the increase in new 
development. 
 
Key Discussion Points: Joyce Vasut read the Executive Summary.  
 
Action: Councilor Pena made a motion, seconded by Councilor Wallingford, to ratify the 
adoption of the 2015-2016 Budget that will require raising more revenue from property taxes 
than in the previous year due to the increase in new development.  
The motion carried by a vote of 6 to 1 as follows:  Yeses:  Mayor McConathy, Councilors Barta, 
Pena, Euton, Wallingford, and Moses. No:  Councilor Benton. 
 

5.  CONSIDERATION OF AND ACTION ON RESOLUTION NO. R-2029, A RESOLUTION AWARDING BID 
NO. 2015-07 FOR CONSTRUCTION OF THE COMMUNITY DEVELOPMENT BLOCK GRANT (CDBG) 
PROJECT RELATED TO CONSTRUCTION SERVICES FOR THE NORTH SIDE WATERLINE IMPROVEMENTS 
PHASE II; AND, PROVIDING AUTHORIZATION FOR THE CITY MANAGER TO NEGOTIATE AND 
EXECUTE, FOR AND ON BEHALF OF THE CITY, APPROPRIATE DOCUMENTS AND/OR AGREEMENTS 
REGARDING SAME.  
Executive Summary: Proposals were received on Wednesday, August 19, 2015, for Phase II of 
the Community Development Block Grant (CDBG) waterline improvements. The bids were 
opened and tabulated as indicated on the Bid Summary included in the agenda packet. A 
total of nine (9) bids were received. 
 
Staff recommends Bid No. 2015-07 be awarded to Scohil Construction Services, LLC, for the 
Base Bid amount of $ 179,760.00 and Alternate Bid No.1 in the amount of $ 63,520.00, for a total 
amount of $ 243,280.00 with a term of thirty (30) working days. The attached correspondence 
from Kelly R. Kaluza & Associates, Inc., recommends same. Should the bid be awarded as 
recommended, the Scohil Construction proposal will be attached and will serve as Exhibit “A” 
to Resolution No. R-2029. 
 
CDBG funding of $210,000.00 has been provided for this project; $39,900.00 is provided for 
engineering reimbursement and $170,100.00 is provided for construction. The City would 



Page 5 of 9 * Regular City Council Meeting Minutes * September 1, 2015 * DRAFT 
 

provide local matching funds in the amount of $73,180.00 to fully fund the remaining 
construction cost that is above the grant amount.  The City had budgeted $61,000.00 for the 
local matching funds; therefore, a budget adjustment in the amount of $12,180.00 will be 
presented at a future meeting.  
 
Staff recommends approval of Resolution No. R-2029 which will award Bid No. 2015-07 and 
provide authorization for the City Manager to negotiate and execute all required documents 
necessary to facilitate the Project. 
 
Key Discussion Points: John Maresh, Assistant City Manager of Public Services, read the 
Executive Summary, and explained that Scohil Construction Services is already in Rosenberg 
working on Avenues H and I, which is why their total working days are significantly lower than 
the other bidders. Mr. Maresh stated his confidence that Scohil can meet that schedule, and 
Llarence Turner with Kelly Kaluza Engineering reiterated his confidence that the contractor can 
complete the job in the 30 day time period as bid.  
 
Action: Councilor Pena made a motion, seconded by Councilor Benton, to approve Resolution 
No. R-2029, a Resolution awarding Bid No. 2015-07 for construction of the Community 
Development Block Grant (CDBG) Project related to construction services for the North Side 
Waterline Improvements Phase II; and, providing authorization for the City Manager to 
negotiate and execute, for and on behalf of the City, appropriate documents and/or 
agreements regarding same. The motion carried by a unanimous vote. 
 

6.  CONSIDERATION OF AND ACTION ON RESOLUTION NO. R-2017, A RESOLUTION AUTHORIZING THE 
CITY MANAGER TO EXECUTE, FOR AND ON BEHALF OF THE CITY, AN INTERLOCAL AGREEMENT BY 
AND BETWEEN THE CITY AND THE FORT BEND SUBSIDENCE DISTRICT REGARDING PARTICIPATION 
AS A SPONSOR IN THE WATER CONSERVATION EDUCATION PROGRAM.  
Executive Summary: The City of Rosenberg has participated in the Fort Bend Subsidence District 
(District) Water Conservation Education (Learning to be Water Wise) Program (Program) 
annually since FY2006-2007. Per the correspondence from Mr. Mike Turco, General Manager, 
the District is preparing for FY2015-2016 and has provided an Interlocal Agreement to formalize 
the City’s continued sponsorship of the Program. This Agreement, attached to Resolution No. R-
2017 as Exhibit “A”, will require renewal on an annual basis. The proposed FY2016 Budget 
Water/Wastewater Fund 514 includes a $20,000 appropriation for said purpose. This is the same 
dollar amount as the current FY2014-2015 Budget.  
 
The City receives a Certificate of Deposit water conservation credit equal to 84,000 gallons of 
groundwater for each student, at a cost of $35.40 per student. Each Certificate of Deposit can 
be held for up to 20 years after the issuance date. These water conservation credits are a 
valuable asset that can be used by the City to help meet the District’s 30% groundwater 
reduction requirement, or they can be sold to other public or private entities that must also 
comply with the groundwater reduction requirement. Based on the current construction 
schedule to begin taking delivery of treated surface water from the Brazosport Water Authority, 
staff does anticipate having to use said credits to help meet the 30% groundwater reduction 
requirement effective on October 01, 2016.  
 
Staff recommends approval of Resolution No. R-2017 as presented. 
 
Key Discussion Points: John Maresh read the Executive Summary, and members of Council 
expressed their favor of this credit. 
 
Action: Councilor Euton made a motion, seconded by Councilor Benton, to approve 
Resolution No. R-2017, a Resolution authorizing the City Manager to execute, for and on behalf 
of the City, an Interlocal Agreement by and between the City and the Fort Bend Subsidence 
District regarding participation as a sponsor in the Water Conservation Education Program. The 
motion carried by a unanimous vote. 
 
 



Page 6 of 9 * Regular City Council Meeting Minutes * September 1, 2015 * DRAFT 
 

7.  REVIEW AND DISCUSS PROPOSED CANCELLATION OF THE OCTOBER 06, 2015 REGULAR CITY 
COUNCIL MEETING, TO ACCOMMODATE THE NATIONAL NIGHT OUT ACTIVITIES, AND TAKE 
ACTION AS NECESSARY. 
Executive Summary: Last year, the first Regular City Council Meeting in October was cancelled 
in order to allow for the members of City Council to have time to attend the “National Night 
Out” events that are planned in the City.  This item will offer City Council the opportunity to 
discuss cancelling the Regular City Council Meeting scheduled for October 06, 2015.   
 
Key Discussion Points: Linda Cernosek, City Secretary, read the Executive Summary. 
 
Action: Councilor Benton made a motion, seconded by Councilor Moses, to cancel the 
October 06, 2015 Regular City Council Meeting to accommodate the National Night Out 
activities. The motion carried by a unanimous vote. 
 

8.  CONSIDERATION OF AND ACTION ON VARIANCE DECISION AND ORDER NO. V2015-01, A 
VARIANCE REQUEST BY VICTOR MACHA TO THE REQUIREMENTS OF SECTION 25-68 OF THE CODE 
OF ORDINANCES RELATING TO THE BUILDING LINES FOR SINGLE-FAMILY RESIDENTIAL LOTS, 
ALLOWING FOR A PROPOSED CARPORT ADDITION TO THE PROPERTY LOCATED AT 1509 GEORGE 
STREET (ALLENDALE MANOR, BLOCK 12, LOT 3).  
Executive Summary: A Variance Request has been submitted for a proposed carport addition at 
1509 George Street (Allendale Manor, Block 12, Lot 3).  A vicinity map of the property, application 
materials, and photos are included in the agenda packet for review.  The property is located on the 
east side of George Street between Avenue M and Dyer Street, and across the street from Holy 
Rosary Church. 
 
The subdivision, Allendale Manor, was originally platted in 1949.  Due to the age of the subdivision, 
an image of the plat is not available on the County website.  However, based on adjoining plats 
and other subdivisions platted around the same time and for which images are available, it is 
unlikely that there are platted building lines (or setbacks).  The current “Subdivision” Ordinance 
(Code of Ordinances, Ch. 25, Sec. 25-68) requires a 25’ front building line on single-family residential 
lots.  This requirement appears to have been in place since 2005 and, to staff’s knowledge, has 
been enforced consistently since that time. 
 
The property itself appears to have an approximately 23’ front setback and the owner wishes to 
construct a carport approximately 5’ from the right-of-way line.  Upon further investigation of the 
area, staff found the following: 

 There are ten (10) nonconforming carports within approximately three (3) blocks, or within 
approximately 1,000’, on George Street. 

 There are eighteen (18) nonconforming carports within approximately five (5) blocks, or 
within approximately 1,500’, on George Street. 
 

The above is likely because many of the homes either have no garage, have a relatively small 
garage (i.e., one-car), or have a garage that has been enclosed.  Setbacks and building lines are 
generally applied to maintain a consistent residential character.  However, in this case, the 
residential character to date includes a relatively high number of carports. 
 
Variances must be evaluated by the Planning Commission and City Council based on the four (4) 
criteria outlined in the Code (Sec. 25-8).  The following is staff’s analysis of each of the criteria. 
 
(1) There are special circumstances or conditions affecting the land involved such that the strict 
application of the provisions of this chapter would deprive the applicant of the reasonable use of his 
land;  
 
The applicant has claimed in their application a lack of protection from rain and extreme 
temperatures.  It could also be claimed that the neighborhood being highlighted by many 
existing/nonconforming carports is unique.  Further, it could be argued that it is unreasonable to not 
allow the property owner to use their land consistently with surrounding properties, unless the Council 
believes the proposed and existing carports are in any way detrimental to the area (and thus their 



Page 7 of 9 * Regular City Council Meeting Minutes * September 1, 2015 * DRAFT 
 

existence should not be promoted in the future). 
 
(2) The granting of the variance will not be detrimental to the public safety or welfare, or injurious to 
other property in the area;  
 
Staff cannot identify any safety concerns or specific negative impacts associated with this request 
(based in part on many of the nearby properties also having carports without any apparent issues).  
The applicant claims it will be structurally sound; additionally, it will be required to comply with 
applicable international codes and would be inspected by the City. 
 
(3) The granting of the variance will not have the effect of preventing the orderly subdivision of other 
lands in the area in accordance with the provisions of this chapter; and  
 
The granting of the variance should not prevent orderly subdivisions in the area.  New subdivisions 
are required to have building lines in accordance with City codes and in that way are not the same 
as older subdivisions with lesser or nonexistent building lines.  Applicant claims no existing carports in 
the neighborhood are close to meeting the required setback, which is an accurate statement.  They 
(carports) appear to range from zero (0) to five (5) feet from the street right-of-way. 
 
(4) A more appropriate design solution exists which is not currently allowed in this chapter. 
 
The proposed design solution does not appear to be inappropriate for the particular area.  It has 
apparently not been deemed inappropriate for the area in the past (pre-2005). 
 
Staff has no objection to the proposed variance with the condition of a minimum five (5) foot 
setback from the right-of-way.  Lack of objection is based on the surrounding residential 
character and not being inconsistent with the four (4) criteria as outlined in the Code.  The 
condition of having a five (5) foot setback is recommended to comply with international code 
requirements.  With the latter condition in place, staff sees no further issues. 
 
The Planning Commission recommended approval to City Council of the variance on August 
19, 2015.  Per the Code, City Council has the ultimate authority to grant variances if it finds that 
a hardship exists. 
 
Key Discussion Points: Travis Tanner, Executive Director of Community Development, read the 
Executive Summary and gave a presentation on the proposed carport. The consensus of 
Council was supportive of the variance, and staff was instructed to review the current 
Ordinances to accommodate some of the older neighborhoods. 
 
Action: Councilor Barta made a motion, seconded by Councilor Wallingford, to approve 
Variance Decision and Order No. V2015-01, a Variance Request by Victor Macha to the 
requirements of Section 25-68 of the Code of Ordinances relating to the building lines for single-
family residential lots, allowing for a proposed carport addition to the property located at 1509 
George Street (Allendale Manor, Block 12, Lot 3). The motion carried by a unanimous vote. 
 

9.  REVIEW AND DISCUSS A PETITION FOR DISANNEXATION OF 1.393 ACRES (60,689 SQUARE FEET) 
LOCATED IN THE WILEY MARTIN LEAGUE, A-56, FORT BEND COUNTY, TEXAS (FORT BEND COUNTY 
MUNICIPAL UTILITY DISTRICT NO. 155), AND TAKE ACTION AS NECESSARY TO DIRECT STAFF.   
Executive Summary: City staff has received a request from Beazer Homes and current property 
owners/residents regarding the disannexation of approximately 1.393 acres from the City of 
Rosenberg City Limits and in Fort Bend County MUD No. 155 (Bonbrook Plantation).  It should also be 
noted that the petition suggests making said disannexation retroactive prior to January 01, 2015.  
However, staff has consulted with the City Attorney and we do not believe the latter can be done 
legally. 
 
As discussed, the petition involves a 1.393-acre tract of land.  The tract was originally annexed by the 
City in 1990 and happens to intersect with a small portion of what is now MUD No. 155, or Bonbrook 
Plantation.  The property in question was platted in 2014 as part of Bonbrook Plantation North 



Page 8 of 9 * Regular City Council Meeting Minutes * September 1, 2015 * DRAFT 
 

Section Nine.  In many cases, lots were subsequently built on and sold, resulting in homeowners or 
residents being part in and part out of the City. 
 
While the City did not develop the property or necessarily create the situation, having lots in multiple 
jurisdictions is not a situation that staff recommends continuing.  Further, the estimated fiscal impact 
or loss of ad valorem tax revenue is only approximately $900 annually based on 2014 City taxes 
levied. 
 
While staff does not object to releasing the property from the City’s jurisdiction based on the 
circumstances, it is a more rigorous process than if the land was unoccupied.  If unoccupied, such a 
disannexation can be initiated simply by a petition from the property owner.  If occupied, however, 
per state law (Local Government Code, Ch. 43) and City Charter (Sec. 1.04), it requires a petition 
from the majority of voters residing in the area and additional notification requirements to be 
completed by petitioner/s. 
 
It appears at this time all registered voters (7 out of 7) have signed the petition.  This has been verified 
by Fort Bend County as of August 24, 2015.  Additionally, the petition specifically waives the right for 
petitioner/s to recover any City property taxes paid to date, so there should not be a negative fiscal 
impact from that standpoint. 
 
This request was initially submitted in May 2015, with the City Attorney commenting that the 
disannexation needed to follow publication, posting, voting and timing requirements per state law.  
According to a letter received from Beazer Homes, dated August 13, 2015, the publishing, posting, 
voting and timing requirements have been fulfilled.  The City Attorney has reviewed the resubmitted 
petition and attached exhibits and found them to be in conformance with the requirements of the 
City Charter and the Local Government Code. 
 
Staff believed it was important to first bring this item to City Council for discussion purposes 
since it will set a precedent for how the City deals with future potential disannexation of 
occupied property.  Therefore it is important to review the requirements per state law. 
 
Key Discussion Points: Travis Tanner gave an overview and presentation of the item. Scott 
Tschirhart, City Attorney, explained that the petition has been reviewed and is binding, but the 
ultimate decision of whether to disannex this property is at the discretion of Council. After 
discussion, Council directed staff to move forward with the disannexation of the property. This 
item will be brought before Council in the form of an Ordinance at a future meeting. 
 

10.  CONSIDERATION OF AND ACTION ON RESOLUTION NO. R-2031, A RESOLUTION WITHDRAWING 
CONSENT TO THE ESTABLISHMENT OF ANY DEVELOPMENT STANDARDS OR GUIDELINES OF THE 
WEST FORT BEND MANAGEMENT DISTRICT AND REPEALING ALL PRIOR DEVELOPMENT STANDARDS 
AND GUIDELINES ADOPTED BY THE WEST FORT BEND MANAGEMENT DISTRICT.  
Executive Summary: This item has been added to the Agenda to provide City Council with an 
opportunity to consider Resolution No. R-2031 (Resolution).  Standard and guideline adoption 
by the West Fort Bend Management District (District) must be approved by the cities of 
Rosenberg and Richmond.  This Resolution will withdraw consent by the City of Rosenberg from 
all previously adopted development standards and guidelines so that no such development 
standards and guidelines will be enforceable within the District. 
 
Resolution No. R-2031 was attached in the agenda packet for review and consideration. 
 
Key Discussion Points: Mayor McConathy gave an overview of the item. Scott Tschirhart 
explained his concern that we would not want to leave a space where there are no 
development standards whatsoever. He recommended delaying the effective date of the 
Resolution, and providing interim standards before reaching a final solution during a workshop 
meeting. After discussion, Council requested that an amendment be made to Section 2 to 
include the following language: "This Resolution shall be effective sixty (60) days from passage." 
 
 



Page 9 of 9 * Regular City Council Meeting Minutes * September 1, 2015 * DRAFT 
 

 
 
 

  ___________________________________________ 
   Linda Cernosek, TRMC, City Secretary  

 
 

Action: Councilor Pena made a motion, seconded by Councilor Moses, to approve Resolution 
No. R-2031, a Resolution withdrawing consent to the establishment of any development 
standards or guidelines of the West Fort Bend Management District and repealing all prior 
development standards and guidelines adopted by the West Fort Bend Management District, 
with amendment to Section 2, making the Resolution effective 60 days from passage. The 
motion carried by a unanimous vote. 
 

11.  HOLD EXECUTIVE SESSION TO DELIBERATE THE APPOINTMENT, EMPLOYMENT, AND EVALUATION OF 
THE CITY MANAGER PURSUANT TO SECTION 551.074 OF THE TEXAS GOVERNMENT CODE.  
Action: Councilor Barta made a motion, seconded by Councilor Wallingford, to adjourn to 
Executive Session. The motion carried by a unanimous vote. 
 
An Executive Session was held to deliberate the appointment, employment, and evaluation of 
the City Manager pursuant to Section 551.074 of the Texas Government Code. 
 

12.  ADJOURN EXECUTIVE SESSION, RECONVENE INTO REGULAR SESSION, AND TAKE ACTION AS 
NECESSARY AS A RESULT OF EXECUTIVE SESSION. 
Mayor McConathy adjourned the Executive Session and reconvened into Regular Session at 
8:52 p.m. 
 

13.  ADJOURNMENT. 
There being no further business, Mayor McConathy adjourned the meeting at 8:52 p.m. 
 



CITY COUNCIL COMMUNICATION 
 
September 15, 2015  
 

ITEM # ITEM TITLE 

B Resolution No. R-2037 – Termination Agreement Rosenberg FM 2218 

ITEM/MOTION 

Consideration of and action on Resolution No. R-2037, a Resolution authorizing the City Manager to 
execute, for and on behalf of the City, a Termination Agreement by and between the City and Rosenberg 
FM 2218, LTD.  

FINANCIAL SUMMARY ELECTION DISTRICT 

Annualized Dollars: 

[   ] One-time 
[   ] Recurring 
[X] N/A 

Budgeted: 

[   ] Yes  [   ] No  [X] N/A 

Source of Funds:   N/A 

 

[   ] District 1 
[   ] District 2 
[   ] District 3 
[   ] District 4 
[   ] City-wide 
[X] N/A 

SUPPORTING DOCUMENTS: 
 

MUD #:  150 (Wind Meadows) 

1. Resolution No. R-2037 
2. MUD No. 150 – Development Agreement 15.0069 Acres – 11-01-05 
3. MUD No. 150 - Certificate for Order Dissolving the District – 12-05-13 
4. MUD No. 167 - Certificate for Order Add Land – 12-05-13 
5. Ordinance No. 2005-31 – 12-13-05 
6. Ordinance No. 2013-46 – 12-03-13 
7. City Council Meeting Minute Excerpt – 11-01-05 
8. City Council Meeting Minute Excerpt – 12-13-05 
9. City Council Meeting Minute Excerpt – 12-03-13  

 

APPROVALS 

Submitted by:   

 
Randall Malik 
Economic Development 
Director 

Reviewed by:   
[   ] Exec. Dir. of Administrative Services   
[   ] Asst. City Manager of Public Services  
[X] City Attorney - JM/rm   
[   ] City Engineer 
[X] Exec. Dir. of Community Development   

Approved for Submittal 
to City Council: 
   
 
 
Robert Gracia 
City Manager 

EXECUTIVE SUMMARY 

On November 1, 2005, the City of Rosenberg entered into an Agreement Concerning Development of Land with 
Rosenberg FM 2218, LTD., regarding the development of approximately 15.0069 acres of land located inside 
the City Limits. Additionally, the Agreement consented to the annexation of said 15.0069 acres into Fort Bend 
County Municipal Utility District No. 150 (MUD No. 150). Subsequently, water and sanitary sewer utility lines 
were installed and street and drainage improvements were constructed and accepted by the City.  
 
In 2013, 13.8385 acres of the original 15.0069 acre tract was annexed into Fort Bend County Municipal Utility 
District No. 167, eliminating the need for capacity from MUD No. 150. The reason for the difference in acreage 
between the 15.0069 and 13.8385 acres is due to street right-of-way. This, in conjunction with the proposed 
Wind Meadows development not materializing and the City reaching an Agreement in 2013 for the majority of 
property in MUD No. 150 to be developed as the Rosenberg Business Park, essentially made MUD No. 150 no 
longer necessary.  On December 5, 2013, the MUD No. 150 was dissolved.  This Resolution serves to formally 
terminate the Development Agreement with Rosenberg FM 2218, Ltd.  
 
Since MUD No. 150 has been dissolved, this item and the succeeding three (3) items will offer the City an 
opportunity to clean-up and finalize the documentation necessary to conclude any further action associated with 
the dissolution of MUD No. 150. 
 
Staff recommends approval of Resolution No. R-2037 as presented.
 



RESOLUTION NO. R-2037 
 

A RESOLUTION OF THE CITY COUNCIL OF THE CITY OF 
ROSENBERG, TEXAS, AUTHORIZING THE CITY MANAGER TO 
EXECUTE, FOR AND ON BEHALF OF THE CITY OF ROSENBERG, 
TEXAS, A TERMINATION AGREEMENT BY AND BETWEEN THE CITY 
OF ROSENBERG, TEXAS, AND ROSENBERG FM 2218, LTD. 
 

*  *  *  *  * 
 
 WHEREAS, the City Council of the City of Rosenberg, Texas, passed and 
approved an Agreement Concerning Development of Land (Development Agreement) 
with Rosenberg FM 2218, Ltd., on November 1, 2005, regarding the development of 
approximately 15.0069 acres of land within Fort Bend County Municipal Utility District 
No. 150 (District); and, 
 

WHEREAS, the Board of Directors of MUD No. 150 annexed said 15.0069 acres 
of land into the boundaries of the District on November 1, 2005, and the City of 
Rosenberg consented to said annexation on November 1, 2005; and, 
 
 WHEREAS, the Board of Directors of MUD No. 150 approved an order dissolving 
the District on December 5, 2013; and, 
 
 WHEREAS, the Board of Directors of Fort Bend County Municipal Utility District 
No. 167 approved an order annexing 13.8385 acres of the 15.0069 acre tract of land 
into Fort Bend County Municipal Utility District No. 167 on December 5, 2013; now, 
therefore, 
 
BE IT RESOLVED BY THE COUNCIL OF THE CITY OF ROSENBERG: 
 

Section 1. The City Manager is hereby authorized to execute a Termination 

Agreement by and between the City of Rosenberg and Rosenberg FM 2218, Ltd., to 

formally terminate the above-named Development Agreement dated November 1, 2005, 

and any amendments thereto. 

Section 2. A copy of said Termination Agreement is attached hereto as Exhibit 

“A” and made a part hereof for all purposes. 

PASSED, APPROVED, AND RESOLVED this _____ day of ___________ 2015. 

 
ATTEST:      APPROVED: 
 
 
 
              
Linda Cernosek, CITY SECRETARY   Amanda J. Barta, MAYOR PRO TEM 



TERMINATION AGREEMENT BY AND BETWEEN 
THE CITY OF ROSENBERG, TEXAS AND ROSENBERG FM 2218 LTD. 

 
 
THE STATE OF TEXAS   § 
      § 
COUNT OF FORT BEND   § 
 

 The City of Rosenberg, Texas (the “City”) and Rosenberg FM 2218, Ltd. (the 
“Developer”), entered into an Agreement Concerning the Development of Land dated November 
1, 2005 (the “Development Agreement”), which land was more particularly described in the 
Development Agreement (the “Land”).   The parties now desire to terminate the Development 
Agreement as it is no longer needed. 

For and in consideration of the premises and other good and valuable consideration, the 
City and the Developer agree that the Development Agreement is terminated effective this ____ 
day of _________, 2015.   

Agreed to and accepted this ____ day of _________, 2015.  

  

 CITY:  

 CITY OF ROSENBERG, a Texas  

 home rule municipal corporation  

 

 By:  ________________________________ 

 Name: ______________________________
 Title: _______________________________ 

Approved: 

_____________________________ 

City Attorney 

Date: _________________________ 

Exhibit "A" to Resolution No. R-2037



 DEVELOPER: 

 ROSENBERG FM 2218, Ltd. 

 A Texas Limited Partnership 

 

By:_________________________________ 

 Name: ____________________________ 

 Title: ___________________________ 



AGREEMENT CONCERNING DEVELOPMENT OF LAND 
BETWEEN THE 

THE STATE OF TEXAS 

CITY OF ROSENBERG, TEXAS AND 
ROSENBERG FM 2218, LTD. 

COUNTY OF FORT BEND 

§ 
§ 
§ 

THIS AGREEMENT CONCERNING DEVELOPMENT OF LAND (the "Agreement") is 
entered into as of the date set forth herein, by and between THE CITY OF ROSENBERG, TEXAS 
(the "City"), a municipal corporation and home-rule city situated in Fort Bend County and 
ROSENBERG FM 2218, Ltd., a Texas limited partnership (the "Developer"). 

RECITALS 

WHEREAS, the City is a home-rule city and municipal corporation that provides a full range 
of governmental services to its citizens; and 

WHEREAS, the Developer has purchased a tract of approximately 15.07 acres ofland which 
is within the City's corporate limits as described in Exhibit "A" attached hereto and incorporated 
herein (the "Tract"); and 

WHEREAS, the City and 2218 Rosenberg, L.P., on behalf of Fort Bend County Municipal 
Utility District No. 150, a conservation and reclamation district created by the Texas Commission on 
Environmental Quality under the provisions of Article XVI, Section 59 ofthe Texas Constitution and 
Chapters 49 and 54, Texas Water Code, as amended (the "District") entered into that certain Water 
Supply and Wastewater Services Contract approved by the City on April 20, 2004 and effective May 
15 , 2004, which contract was subsequently assigned to the District (the " Utility Contract") whereby 
the City agreed to provide water supply and wastewater treatment services to serve the District 
subject to certain obligations set forth in such Utility Contract; and 

WHEREAS, Developer has submitted to the District a Petition for Annexation of Land for 
the Tract to be annexed into the boundaries of the District; and 

WHEREAS, the parties hereto wish to confirm and establish certain obligations on 
Developer in connection with the development of the Tract, and provide for the consent by the City 
to the annexation of the Tract; NOW, THEREFORE; 

AGREEMENT 

For and in consideration of the mutual promises, obligations, and benefits contained herein, 
the City and the Developer agree as follows: 

ARTICLE I. 
DEFINITIONS AND EXHIBITS 

1.1 Definitions. Unless the context indicates otherwise, all definitions in this Agreement 
shall have the same meaning as set forth in the Utility Contract. 

2 



Developer anticipates that construction of Bryan Road, the Tum Lane and the FM 2218 
Improvements will commence upon approval of the applicable plans and specifications by TxDOT, 
the City and the County and will use good faith efforts to complete Bryan Road, the Tum Lane and 
the FM 2218 Improvements by February 28, 2006, subject to the timely receipt of the applicable 
governmental approval of the plans and specifications of such improvements. 

2.3 Utility Improvements. All water, sanitary sewer and storm sewer utility 
improvements ("Utility Improvements") to serve the Tract shall be designed and constructed in 
compliance with all applicable requirements and criteria of the District, the City and any other 
applicable governmental entity. The design and construction ofthe Utility Improvements shall be 
subject to the review and approval of the City. Developer agrees to use good faith efforts to 
complete the Utility Improvements by February 28, 2006, subject to the timely receipt of the 
applicable governmental approval of the Utility Improvements plans and specifications. 

ARTICLETII. 
CITY OBLIGATIONS 

3.1. Off-Site Drainage Improvements. The City hereby agrees to design and construct 
or cause the design and construction, at no cost to Developer or the District, of drainage 
improvements outside the boundaries ofthe Tract which shall benefit the Tract so that no additional 
on-site detention shall be needed (the "Off-Site Drainage Improvements"). The City acknowledges 
that Developer nor the District shall have any obligation to construct additional off-site drainage 
and/or detention improvements to serve the Tract based upon the Final Plat approved by the City. 
The City further agrees to use good faith efforts to complete construction of any required Off-Site 
Drainage Improvements by February 28, 2006. 

3.2. Maximum Number of Connections. The City agrees to provide up to 155 equivalent 
single family connections of water supply and wastewater treatment capacity to serve the Tract. The 
Tract is not currently within an impact fee service area. 

ARTICLE IV. 
ANNEXATION OF 

TRACT INTO DISTRICT 

Upon the execution of the Agreement, the District and the owner of the Tract shall submit to 
the City a Petition for Consent to annex the Tract into the boundaries ofthe District (the "Petition"). 
To the extent permitted by law, the City agrees, upon receipt ofa properly prepared Petition and in 

accordance with law to consent to the annexation of the Tract into the boundaries ofthe District in a 
timely and expedious manner. Additionally, upon annexation of the Tract into the District and 
execution of an amendment to the Utility Contract to include the Tract, the Tract shall be subject to 
all rights and obligations set forth in the Utility Contract. 

3 



ARTICLE V. 
MISCELLANEOUS 

5.1 Law Governing; Venue; Authority for Actions. This Agreement shall be governed 
by the laws of the State of Texas and no lawsuit shall be prosecuted on this Agreement except in a 
court of competent jurisdiction located in Fort Bend County. 

The parties hereto recognize and understand that disputes may occur or actions may be 
required under this Agreement and that this Agreement involves a governmental entity and, as such, 
there can be no delegation to a third party individual or third party entity of the duties and obligations 
of the parties as herein provided. Thus, the parties agree that actions of the City hereunder with 
respect to its duties and obligations may be submitted to the City Council of the City for 
consideration and resolution if and as required by the City'S Code of Ordinances. In such event, the 
City Council of the City, after consideration and hearing, shall render a final decision thereunder and 
the decision of the City Council shall be the final, binding, and conclusive action of the City with 
respect thereto. Likewise, the decision of the Board of Directors of the District with respect to the 
District's duties and obligations hereunder shall be the final, binding, and conclusive action of the 
District with respect thereto. 

5.2 No Additional Waiver Implied. No waiver or waivers of any breach or default (or 
any breaches or defaults) by any party hereto of any term, covenant, condition, or liability hereunder, 
or the performance by any party of any duty or obligation hereunder, shall be deemed or construed to 
be a waiver of subsequent breaches or defaults or any kind, under any circumstances. In addition, the 
City specifically reserves all defenses, privileges, and immunities provided by law. 

5.3 Addresses and Notice. Unless otherwise provided in this Utility Contract, any 
notice, communication, request, reply, or advice (herein severally and collectively, for convenience, 
called "Notice") herein provided or permitted to be given, made, or accepted by any party to the 
other (except bi lis), must be in writing and may be given or be served by depositing the same in the 
United States mail postpaid and registered or certified and addressed to the party to be notified, with 
return receipt requested, or by delivering the same to such party, addressed to the party to be notified. 
Notice deposited in the mail in the manner herein above described shall be conclusively deemed to 

be effective, unless otherwise stated in this Utility Contract, from and after the expiration of three (3) 
days after it is so deposited. Notice gi ven in any such other manner shall be effecti ve when received 
by the party to be notified. For the purpose of notice, addresses of the parties shall, until changed as 
hereinafter provided, be as follows: 

If to the City, to: 

City Manager 
City of Rosenberg 
P. O. Box 32 
Rosenberg, Texas 77471-0032 
Attn: City Manager 

4 



If to the Developer, to: 

Rosenberg FM 2218, Ltd. 
c/o Todd McCombs 
17424 W. Grand Parkway South, No. 116 
Sugar Land, Texas 77479 

With copy to: 

Coats, Rose, Yale, Ryman & Lee, P.C. 
Attn: Julianne B. Kugle 
3 Greenway, Suite 2000 
Houston, Texas 77046 

The parties shall have the right from time-to-time and at any time to change their respective 
addresses and each shall have the right to specify any other address by at least fifteen (15) days 
written notice to the other. 

5.4 Merger and Modifications. This Agreement, including the exhibits that are attached 
hereto and incorporated herein for all purposes, embodies the entire agreement between the parties 
relative to the subject matter hereof. This Agreement shall be subject to change or modification only 
with the written mutual consent of the parties. 

5.5 Reservation of Rights. All rights, powers, privileges and authority of the parties 
hereto not restricted or affected by the express terms and provisions hereof are reserved by the parties 
and, from time to time, may be exercised and enforced by the parties. 

5.6 Captions. The captions of each section of this Agreement are inserted solely for 
convenience and shall never be given effect in construing the duties, obligations or liabilities of the 
parties hereto or any provisions hereof, or in ascertaining the intent of either party, with respect to the 
provisions hereof. 

5.7 Severability. The provisions of this Agreement are severable, and ifany part of this 
Agreement or the application thereof to any person or circumstances shall ever be held by any court 
of competent jurisdiction to be invalid or unconstitutional for any reason, the remainder of this 
Agreement and the application of part of this Agreement to other persons or circumstances shall not 
be affected thereby. 

5.8 Assignability. This Agreement may not be assigned by either party except upon 
written consent of the other party hereto, which shall not be unreasonably withlleld. 

5 



5.9 Term and Effect. Except as otherwise specifically set forth herein, this Agreement 
shall become effective on the date of approval and execution by the City. This Agreement shall 
remain effective for thirty-five (35) years from the Effective Date hereof. 

5.10 Stipulations Relied Upon by City. The Developer understands that the City desires 
to follow applicable law in all respects; that the City does not want to subject its taxpayers to the 
costs oflitigation and damages for which it has not set aside funds; and that the City has a legitimate 
interest in wanting to know if Developer believes that a condition is unlawful or of questionable 
validity or otherwise judicially untested when it is accepting the benefits of this Agreement, so that 
the City may review the subject condition administratively to make a focused inquiry as to whether 
in fact it is unlawful based upon the authority provided by Developer, and if found to be unlawful, 
detennine whether to proceed without the condition. Accordingly, for valuable consideration, the 
Developer stipulates and agrees that the City has relied upon the following in approving this 
Agreement: 

(a) Any protest to any fee, dedication, reservation, condition, or any purported 
exaction imposed herein shall be filed pursuant to the procedures contained in paragraph 5.1 herein, 
at the time of approval, or conditional approval or no later than 60 days after the date of the subject 
approval. 

(b) Developer acknowledges that it understands the conditions, voluntarily accepts 
them, and agrees that they are lawful and constitutional in all respects . 

(c) That the benefits of the City's approval to this Agreement equal or outweigh the 
costs of any conditions imposed upon the Developer in this Agreement. 

[EXECUTION PAGES TO FOLLOW] 

6 



IN WITNESS WHEREOF, the parties hereto have executed this Agreement in mUltiple 
copies, each of equal dignity, on this Mday of 11112;/, ,2005. 

ATTEST 

~~ CITSECRET ARY 

THE STATE OF TEXAS 

COUNTY OF HARRIS 

§ 
§ 
§ 

CITY OF ROSENBERG, TEXAS 

By: fh)~ 
Name~~~ 
Title: City Manager 
Date: ___________ _ 

APPROVED : 

CITY ATTORNEY 

DEVELOPER 

ROSENBERG FM 2218, Ltd., a Texas 
limited partnership 

This instrument was acknowledged before me on this the 2"#\ day of octoW 
2005, by Todd MCCombS , 6enrral PO(tner of Rosenberg FM 2218, Ltd., a Texas 
limited partnership, on behalf of said limited partnership. 

~ LESLIE A. CODE for.., ~ ':'~ NOTARV PUBLIC 
... . \.; STArE OF TEXAS 
~ Comm. Exp. 10-09-2006 

Notary Public 
In and For the State of Texas 

7 



, , ,. " .. '" '. .. . . '. .' .. ~ ., ---
EXHIBIT .. A" - Page 1 of 2 pages 

February 20, 2004 

15.0069 acres of land in the J.D. Vermillion Survey, Abstract No. 340, 
City of Rosenberg, Fort Bend County, TerIL.\· 

A FIELD NOTEDESCIUrnON ofl5.0069 acres (653,699 square feet) of land in the J.D. 
VenniJJion Survey, Abstract No. 340, City of Rosenberg, Fort Bend County, Texas; Said 15.0069 acre 
tract ofland being out oftbe rcmalllder of 8 19.641 acre tract conveyed to Werner Partnership, LTD., 
as recorded under Fort Bend County Clerk's File No. 2001006679 and being more particularly 
descn"bed by metes and bounds as follows with the bearings being based on the TeXlls State Plane 
Coordinate System, South Central Zone, as recorded under Fort Bend County Clerk's File No. 
9763n5; 

COMMENCING FOR REFERENCE at a 'I.-inch iron pipe found in the southerly right-of-way 
line oeu.s. Highway 59 (width varies) in the ea~1""1y line ofLoI I. Danziger - Reese Subdivision, 
according 10 the map or plat recorded in Volume 28, Page 17 oftbe Fort Bend County Plat Records 
conveyed to SJC Properties, LTD., as recorded under ForI Bend County Cleric's F'1Ie No. 2000052452 
for the southwesterly comer of a tract of land conveyed to the City of Rosenberg, as recorded under 
Fort Bend County Clerk's File No. 9763775 for the widening of said U.S. Highwuy 59; from which 8 

%-inch iron rod fOWld bears North 51 0 \8' 5 I" East - 0.16 feet, 

THENCE; in a northeasterly direction with the southerly right-of-way line of said U.S. 
Highway 59, with the northerly line of said 19.641 acre tract and with a cwve 10 the left having 8 

radius of 11,679.1 9 fuet, 8 central angle of 00· lO' 58", a length of37.25 feet and a chord bearing 
North 79° 25' 08" East - 37_25 feet to a %-inch iron rod with cap set for the most northerly 
northwesterly comer and POINT OF BEGINNING of tins tract; 

THENCE; in a northeasterly direction with the southerly right-of-way line of said U.S. 
Ilighway 59, with the northerly line of said 19.641 acre Irdct and with a curve 10 the left having a 
radius of 11,679.) 9 ft."'I, a central angle of 03° 52' 51 n, a length of791.06 feet and 11 chord bearing 
North 77° 23' 14" East - 790.91 fect to a %-inch iron rod found for the northeasterly corner of this 
tract; 

THENCE; South 10" 58' 43" East - 237.71 feet ..... ith the weslerly line of Reserve "A-I ", 
Replat of Gri72.ard I Flint Divi~ion, Section One, according to the map or plat recorded undcr Slide 
No. I B03A of the Fort Bend Cowlly Plat Records conveyed 10 Bayou Holdings, L.L.C., as recorded 
under Fort Bend County Clerk's Hie No's 9883128 ~nd 9700925 to a 'YO-inch iron rod with cap sct for 
a poiot-of-curv8turc; 

THENCE; in a southeasterly direction with the southwesterly line of said Reserve "A- I' and 
with a curve to the left baving a radius of260.oo feet, a central angle of 36° 58' 44", a length of 
167.80 feel and a chord bearing South 290 28' 05" East - 164.91 reet 10 a %-inch iron rod witb cap set 
for a point-of-langency; 

THENCE; South 47° 57' 27" East - 30.1 8 feel with the southwesterly line of said Reserve "A-
1" 10 a %-inch iron rod found for the easterly corner of this IrdCt; 

II 

I \,\ A " 



EXHIBIT" A" - Page 2 of 2 pages 

THENCE; South 42° 02' 52" West - 1,161.17 feet with the northwesterly right-of-way line of 
State Farm-Market Road 2218 (I 00 feet wide) 8Ild with the southeasterly line of said 19.641 acre tract 
to a o/e ... inch iron rod fowxl for the southerly comer of this tract; 

THENCE; North 09° 26' 25· West - 1,019.63 feet with the easterly line of Lot 16 of said 
Danzjger - Reese Subdivision conveyed to Rhoda Leah DlUlZiger Saka, as recorded under Fort Bend 
County Clerk's F"t1e No. 9339888, with the easterly line of said Lot I and with the westerly line of said 
19.641 acre tract to a ¥a-inch iron rod with ClIp sct for the most westerly northwesterly WmeT oflhi:; 
tract; 

THENCE; North 80° 33' 35" East - 3724 feet to 8 Sfa-inch iron rod with cap SCI for an inrcrior 
comer of this \nIct; 

THENCE; North 09° 26' 25" West - 75.8 I fect to the POINT OF BEGINNING and 
containing 15.0069 acres (653,699 square feel) ofland. 

COMPU.F.D By: 

TEXAS ENGINEERING AND MAPPING 

Ci"il EngiDccrs - Land Surveyors 
Stafford, Texas 
Job No. 656- I 
W:I65f>.I .wpd 

Brian Nesvadba 
Registered Pro fessional Land Surveyor 

State ofTcxas No. 5776 



:;::.r~-:';' ..... .. ..........,_.,>0 ..... _0, ___ _ ._ 

;;~i-~:: -.:::~~~::~;;~ 
=:::..:::;. :-;'::::"'-:-.-::-.-":..: ==:: =.:: -:::.::; =-... -::-: ... --::-: -

.... -.~-..- ....... , ... --.
--~"",- .. ---- .. ---_ ..... _---

;; '---

._,------..... .. -~ .. - .. -----... ,,_ .. _,-- ....... _--.... __ • • ___ ' __ • __ 4. 

:;£:',S== E-== ,,;=-::: 
S~,~:===-§f..z-@"~_4 

-..... ~ .... -- -"" ....... .. .... .. -. -------_._-.. _-_ ....... " ...... _---
E!.:::;' .:::-:. ==_-:." -:,.:. ~:--

•. 0;,;;:;;;----.---- -

F~·IRT BEND COUNn . T£.\45 
J 0 VeRMILLION SURVEr. ~SSTRt1CT J.JO 

/ , 
/ 

: H:.'" Dr 
rl.~ " .I"· 

~ 
I. 
r 

.-'!~-

/ 

_-1 

/ 

/ 

/ 

) 

/ 
/ 

, 

"'CH1T \.tAP 
'·.,11 ..... • n .", ,,,,,, 

~-=-":'~"":. .. ..;:::::-=;-; .... "'-::"".:"_ ""'::7' ..... ~:: ;::::.; ~ ",. .... .. ~,., .. ".-, 
-.-~' E-:"::SZ::::;'::"'::.,--"'_. - ." . 
- .-- .... 
E::~-::==;;::.;': .. =:..-- ... -.. - .. h 

~ ---. ---_._ .. ... '-_ .. ...... " .. , ___ ~n __ ~. _. ______ _ 

---~--- , .. ,----. .. -""-....... - .. .. _, ...... --.--
:..=-:: ;'.:::::= =-~ - - ~ ... - ~--

ROSENBERG 
MULTI-USE 

CENTER 

~ .. 
~~ .. n'&ll t ,_,,,,,,,_ ,,r.U.,, 

.......... , "v.s "',., 
"",,,,~~--., 

". ---::~ 

eM!. OOotll't!o .... ':) "'~ __ 

REKHA ENGINEERING INC . 

~ 
~, _,_ S. h ' f: 

....... "'" ... .... 111)') 
" J -ft';t:> -~ 
Jtl_'~ _ &;)l! ' 
f •• ,,~. ]~~ 

C""'.<I .J<Yo~ .. r ... ... ' $0 " u " ........... 



· 
~
 

., 

, 
, 

--h
) 

I 
'r?~~

 
,,~, 

~-7
~
 

~
 ,., 

. 
~/. 

:1 
~ 

I 
". ; 

!t 
_

. 
:
:
 : 

EX
H

IBIT C
 

I I I I 
I I 
I I 
I I 
I I 
I I 
I I I I 

I ' 
I 

I \ II 
I 

i 
I III, I \ I 



E
X

H
IB

IT
 D

 



























201 31 55306
ELECTRONICALLY RECORDED
fficialPublic Records
12t17t2013 2.16 PM

Dianne Wilson, County Clerk
Fort Bend County Texas
Pages: 12 Fee. $ 60.00

*

llLip document ls beirrg re-i<rcorded to atsEach trxh{blt
CERTIIIIC ATE FOI* gRtrEB

THESTATE ()F TEXAS

C(rUNTY OF TORT BEI{D

I, thu unrlc-rsigncd o8ficcy uf tlrc Bo;rrd. of Directors of l*ort Bend Counry Municipal
Utility District IrIo. L67 hr-.reby cerdfy as folltrws:

Prcsident
Vice Presidcnt
Secrctanr
Assistant Sccrctiry
Assistant Secrctary

anri all ot saiel p€rsons were present except Director(n) 
- ---l- 

. *r.,r"
constituting a quorum. Idhereupon, amelng other husiness, the follouring .was trarnsactetf at the
rneehing: a written

()RDER ADDING T,ANT)

rv.rs inbroclucer.I for the consieleration of ttre Board. It was then duly nrowerl rurrl su.concleel that
the orr,{er tre adopterl, and, after due discussion, the motion, carrying with it the adoption of the
orck:r, prc vailcd anr.l c a rried unanirtously.

2. A trre, full, and correct copy of the aforesaid r:rder adoptcll irt the meeting
describcci in the abowe and foregoing para5;raph is attacherd to anc{ Iollows this c*:rlificate; the
actiolr approwi*g the ordcr hi:rs bl'crrr duly recorded in the Board's rninutes of the rneetir.rg; the
persons named in tfre ab<lve and foregoing paragraph nre thr: rluly chosen, qualifie.t, and a"cting
officers and members of the Boarr"l as indicated therein; uaE-h of dre officers and rnr:rnbers of the
Board was duly and sufficiently notified officially and personally, in aclvance, of the time, place,
and purpose of the afote*aid meetinfl, and that the urrlcr woulcl be introelucerl ancl consirlere.j.
fr:r adoption at the meeting, ald each of the officers anrr{ urerntrer$ coriserrtecl. in aclvancl,, to the
holcling o{ the rneeting for such pulptrre; the meetirrg }l/ari t:Fefl to t}rc public as requirecl by law;
and ptrblic notice of the time, place, and sulrject of the m. wars giv+:n as reqrri.re<l by
Clrapter 551, Tc'xzrs Governrn*rnt Code, and Section 49 r Cr:dc.

A"

s
s
s

1- Tt.e Eioart-l of Directrrrs,gf Fort Bencl C<-runry &{unicipal Utility District hlo. '162
c$r-rverted in regular sessiotr on the .lTh"V uf Dcccrrrbcr, 2O1.3, outside the to*nclaries of the
f)i$rrict" ancl the roll r,uas called oI thc mcfibers of ttre Bunrd:

Ileana f)ay
Leanne Pfisfe'r
Je-rry L. Schutza

r jim Otrcrmtrior
Yvonne Cum"srirr.s

el-'1
SEALED on the -J dav I)ecember,2013.

ffi

459038



2013155306 Page Z, at 12

ORDER ADDING LAND

THE STATE OF TEXAS

COUNTY OF FORT BEND

WHEREAS, there hss been presented to and filed with the Boarcl of Directors oI
Fort Bend County, Municipal Utility District No. 167 (the "District,,) the petitio* of
Rosenberg FM221B, Ltd., a Texas limitecl partnership, formerly known as itr:senburg
FM2218, L.L.c., a Texas limitecl liahitity cCImpany (the ,,petitioner,,), praying that thI
landf escribed as {ollows:

13.8385 acres, being all of RESTRICTED RESERVES ,,A,,, ,,8,, and ,,C,' ot
THREE MILE cRossING, a subdivision in Fort Bentl county, Texas,
according to the map or plat theteof recr:rcled uncler Clerk's File No.
20(170127 in the Plat Records of Fort Bend County, Texas,

be added to and become a part of the District ancl

WHEREAS, the Br:ard r:f Directors, after carefully considering the facts and
evidence, hereby finds and determines eonclusively that:

(1) all of the allegations and statements ceintainecl in sai,l petition, including
all attachments, are true and coffecu

(2) the annexation of the Land is feasible and practical and it is to the
at*v4ntage of the District to add the Land ti:r the District and it will bc a benefit to the
Land to add it to the Dishict;

(3) the waterworks, sanitary sewer, and rlrainage systems and other
improvements of the Diskict are sufficient or will be sufficient to supply the a<lcled
Land without injuring the land already within the DistricU

(4) the I"and is correctly above, and the petition requesting the adtlition of
said l-and has been signed and executed in the manner provide.I by law for the
conveyailce of real estate and in fullconlormiiy with the law;

(5) there are ni) qualificd voters residing on the Land;

(6) Petitioner and the District have subrnitter.{ a petition to the City af
RosenberB Texas (the "City"), requesting consent to the proposer-t annexation, anel thc
City has consented to the District's annexation of the Land; NOW THEREFORE;

' BE IT ORDERED BY THE BOARD OF DIRECTORS OF FOI{]' BEND COUNTY
MUNICIPAL UTILITY DISTRICT NO" 167 THAT:

459038

s
$

$



2013ISf306 page 3 ot 12

a

$ectiqnL: It is-hereby affyy-matively founcl anrl rieterrninert that all of the-reeitations, matters, and {acfs sei oui in the preambltl of this order are 1..ue antl correct.

$ecljon 2t The Land is hereby addetl to the District and hereby beconres a partof the District.

Secti<tq 3: The Land and atl present ancl future irnpr*vements thereol shall beliable ft:r all present and future delrts of the Disfrict in &e sarne manner as other lantis
and improvements in the District are liable for saiti rlebts, and future taxes levietl by theDistrict shall be levied upon all taxable l-and and all improvemcnts thereon u,i{ormly
and equally on an ad valorem basis with the taxes levierl on all other taxable propertywithin the District.

Secfion 4: The Diskict shall continue to be authorizetl t6 issue the trorrrisauthorized at an election or elections helc.l within the Disfrict but not yet issuetl, far the
purpDses and upon the terms and conditions such bonds wc.re votei, ir-, onu or ffiore
issues or series, at a future date or dates, when in the Boart{'s judgnnent such arnountsare required far the authorized purposes, and the District shall continue to be
authorized to levy taxes to pay principit anr-{ interest an the Diskict's l"mnds ancl *ther
obligations payable from taxes.

Section 5: The District shall continue to be authorizetl to levy and collect a
maintenance tax not to exceed the amount per $100 of assessed valuation of all taxable
properiy within the District, including the Lantl, which tax was approvetl by the
District's voters at an election held within the District.

Section 6: The District secretary, or their designee, is authorizctl and 4irectetj
to file for record a copy of the petition describcd in the-preamble hereof anrl a certified
copy of this order in the office of the County Clerk oi County. Texas and with the
Texas Commission on Environmental euality.

' Section 7: The Board enters this order Arlcling Lanri ancl re4efines the
boundaties of the District to include all of the land described on Exhibit A attacher-{
hereto and incorporated herein for all Furposes^

$ection 8: This Order shall be effecHve irnmediately upon irs adoption.

IEXECUTTON PAGE FOLLOWSI

/)45gfl38



201315530S page 4 of 12

,.+ l.\
PASSED AND AppRovED on rhis 1 ' aly of December, a0.rg.

FORT BEND COUNTY MUNICIPAL UTILiTY
DISTRICT NO, 167

By,

Narne:

Title:

PSfkx

+

THE STATE OF TEXAS

COUNTY OF FORT BEND

s
$

$

ment was acknowle'dged befor,e mq u*. f . 2o'13, by

Attachnrent:
Exhibit A: Description o{ the Revised District Boundariss"

After recording, return to: Alle'n Boone Humphries Robiruon LLp, 320ll Sguthwest
Freeway, suite 2600, Houstory Texas z?fr27, Att,: yvo*e onak.

This

AS and
of the Boartl oI Directors of FORT

BEND TY MUNICIPAL UTILITY D CT NO. 167, a political subdivision of
the state of Texas, on behalf o{ sairl p*}itical subdivision.

(NOTARY

-J-

-,fiffF*Utlmm
t'rv commriitli"r#;l
- Atgust 29,2017

159038

as

'\;:t::.'ic.
, -L,

,,,.. is,
'"":'rt* !:f,,'.r,JiI

,,''7.<S:
F"gl^*$



August, 3 2006

Three tracts,

zo I 3 15tso#^&t$5ts"or r z

eouprising a total oE 4ZB.23B acres,
Trset tr

118,7858 acre{ itt the Robert E" H*ndy Survey, Abstract No. lg7,
and the Simon Janes Labor Suruey, "/lbstra$ Na Zf I -' '
Ci4t of Rosenherg, Fort Bcnd County, Texus

A FIELD NoTE DESCRIPTI0N of I18.?858 acres of land in the Rohert E. Handy Survey,'Abstracr Ns" 187 and the simon Jones Labor survey, nbshact No, 271 , Ci*y;iRr;nberg, Fort Bendcounty, Texas; said 118,7858 asre tract being out oia tract of land conveyed to Tristar Rea! EstateInveshnents, [nc., as recorded under File No. 9885910 of tho po,t grrd county Deed Records; said tractbeing more particularly described by metes and bounds as fbllows with the hearings being based on theTexas state Plane coordinate system, south cenkal zun. uring National Geodetil survey continuouslyOperatin g Reference S tations :

BEGTNNING at a broken concrete monument found at the intersestion of the southwest right-of:wav line of the BNSF Railroad (100 feet wide) with the northwest right-oflway rir" 
"rr ivr. Highway2971 tl00 feet wide) for the northeast cor*Er of this tract;

THENCE; South 22 23' 46" West - 1,42fi.34 fe* {called South 25" 2T,30,lWes1- 1,420.g4 feet)with the northwest right-of-way line of said r.M. HighwuyNo. zg77 taa broken *oilcrere rnonumentfound for the beginning of a non-tangent curve to tnJrigtri;

THENCE; in-a soulhwesterly direclion with snid curve to the right having a central angle of 0l o
29' 22u (called 0t o 29' I g"), a radius of 5,6?9.65 fe€t, a lcngttr of l4T.6i feet (called l4?.ss fee:), and achord bearing South 23o 08' 26" West - 147.65 feet (ealled"south 26" l0,35Jwest - l4?.55 feet) andwith tfe northwest right-of-way line of said F.M. Highway No- zg77 toa lzr-inch iron pipe found for thaend of said crnvc;

THENCE; South 23" 46'21" West - 41.2O tbet (called South 26" 54' SZ,, West - 4l "25 feet) wi&
the northwest right-of-way liffi of said F.M. Highwuy t*o. 297'l to a ,4-inch iron pipe found for thebeginning of a non-langent curve to the le&;

THENCE; in a southwesterly direction with said curve to the letl having a central angle of,6lo29' 5l' (called 01" 29' 49"), aradius of 5,?79.65 feet, fl length of 151.05 feet (called 151.00 feci), and achordbearingSouth 23o 13' (6" Wegt- 151.05 fettcafleAtouth 26o lT,09,kest- isf .OO fe*)andwith the northwest right-of-way lins of s*id F.M. Highway No. 2g17 toa %-inctriron pips found for theend ofsaid curve;

'IHENCE; South 22o 2A' 42" West- 
1M.72 feet {called South 2So 26,0S'West) with thenorlhwest righrof-way lins of said F,M. Highway No. zill toaye-inch iron rod with cap stamped

'"TEAM" set for the south comer of thie tract;

'THENCE; North 67" 08' 16n West - 1,125"25 {bet (called North 6?0 07, 5g,, West - t;tzs,oo teeqwith thc northeast right-of-way line of Raading Road {100 feet wide} to a Vo-jnch iron rod with capstamped "TEAM" set for a west comer of this trect;

THENcE; North 22. 5l'44" East '326.7ti feet with fhe southeast line of a l.sOo acre rracrconveyed to the city of Rosenbarg, as recordcd in Fort Bcnd county clcrk's File N{). 2o{,2o68257 to a
7a-inch iron rod with cap starnped "1399206* found for an interior iorn*r of this kact;



201315f906 page 6 of i2
TI{ENCE; Nort}r 670 08' 16" west - 200.00 feet with the northqst line of said 1.s00 acre tract toa ,'la-inch iron rorl with cap slamped .'TEAM" 

set for an i-&;; fiorner of this traet;

THENCE; south 22 51' 44" we$t - 326.?0 feet with the northwest line of said 1,500 acrs tract toa s/a-inch iron rod with cap stamped "Tf,g1tr4'o set for a south comcr of this tract;

THENCE; North 670 08' 1 6n west - 281 .Zofeet with the northeast right-of-way line of saidReading Road to a s/a-inch iron rod with cap stamped "Kalkomey', found for a point-of-eurvafure;

THENCE, In-a northwestcrly direction wirh a surve to the left having a cerrtral angle of 30o 00,00!', a radius of609'81 feet, a length af 319.29 feet {called 319.3f} feet) andi chord iearingNorth gz"
08'15" west - 315'66 fe€t {calledNorth 82" 07' 58" west - 315.66 foeii ana with thenortheasr righr-of-way line of said Reading Road tc a 6/a-inch iron rod vnt]r cap siarnpea ,,TEAM.,, 

tbund for a point-of-tangenoy;

'THENCE; south 82o 5l'40" west - 36.61 feet with the northeast right-oGway line of saidReading Road to a To"inch iron rod *ittt .ap stamped "Geneo Texas" found"for * .igl*point of thislract;

T}TENCE; North 6?" 08' 16u west - 948.86 feet wiih the northeast line of a 100 foot Easemenrgranted to Richmond Ric* Association, as recorded in volume l2S, pagc 1?g and Vofume zl?, Fage254 of the Fort Bend County Deed Records to a 6la-inch jron rod *in ip stu-psd *Gerr* Texas,, foundtor tho southwest corner of this tract;

TIIENCE, [n a northrrye.sterly direction with a curve to the left having a cenhal angle of 42o l l,27", a radius of 183.73 feet, a ltngth of 135.29 fret erd a ehord bearing norih 06' 16i20' West - 132.26feet and with a tract of land conveyed t* the city of Rosenberg as recordrd in Fort Bend county clerk,sFile No' 1999030872 to a 6/ainch iron rod with cap starnped 'Tcatkomey' found for a point-of-tangency;

THENCE; North 27" o7' 44'West " 215.2CI {brt {called North 2To 06, l3'West - 2i5,51 feet)with said city ofRosenberg tract to a point in powsr poll for a point-of-cmvaturo;
a

THENCE, ln a northeasterly ditection with a curve t* the right having a centoal angle of 90" I g,
46' {ealled 90" l8' 22"\, a radius of 100.39 feeq a le*gth of 158.24 feet (called l Ig.23 feer} a'd a chordbearing North l8o 02' 02" East' 142.36 fi:et {cB:ld Norttr t 8o 02' 5g* East - 142.36 feet) and with saidcity of Rosenberg tract to a point in power pole for a point-of-tanBency;

THENCE: North 63" I I' I3" East - 326"30 feet (called North 63" I ?' 10,, East - 326.30feet) withsaid city of Rosenberg tract to a s/e'inch iron rad with eap starrnped "Kalkomef' tbund for an anglepoint;

THENCE; North 7i" 3l' 31" Easr - 164.81 feet {cnlled North 72o 32,20,8ast - 164"?E feet} withsaid city of Rosenberg tr,act to a ?einch iron rod with cap stamped..Kalkorrrey''fourrd (or an anglepoint;

THENCE;North 69"33' 12"East -l7l"87fset(eelledNorth6qo34,0l,,East-lTl.gSfcet)with
said City of Rosffiberg trast to a Ya-inch iron rod with cap stemped "Kalkomey,, found for an interior
corner.of this tract;



THENCE; North 00" 25'38I#SfTf6 trfle lrrffUfrrnh 00" 26, 12,, wesr - 136.42 fee,with said ciry of Rosenberg kact t$ a bsnt 7z-inch iron pipe tound for * ang" point oirtris tract;

THENCE; North 62" 36'47* East - 825.33 feet with the south right-of-way line U.S. Highway
No. S9"(width varies) to a consete monumcnt found for an angle poirrt;

THENCE; North 650 28'47" East -749.61feet (called North 68" 34'5Bn East - ?49.5g feet) with
the south right-of'way line of said U.s. Highway Nu. 59 to a Ya inch iron rod found fnr an angle point;

THENCE; North 62o 39' lg" East - 1,64.02 ftrt (called North d5'43,56n Ensr - 164"0? feet) with
the south right-of-way line of said U.s" HighwayNo. 59 to a broken coRcrete rnonument founel for the
north comer of this trac[

THENCE; In a southeasterly direction with a curve to the left having a centrdl angle of l6o sl,
33"(called 16"0l'22n),aradius of 5,?'79.65feet,alengthof 1,616.60feetlcaltea l,6l{r.2gfeet}a*da
ehord bearing South 54" 53n 49" East - 1,61 !.33 feet (called South 5lo 5l' 0Z* East -' l,6l L02 tbet) and
with the southwest right-of-way line of said BHSF Railroad to the POINT oF BEGINNING and
containing I 18.7858 acres of land.

colaplrp nv,
Texas Engineering And Mnpping Company
CivilEngineers - Land Suwoyors
Stafford, Texa$
Job No, 356-l l9

w:\]5&l l9_TltA*l l _NEW.qpd

Registered Professiorral Land $urucyor
State of Texas No. 5776

.qFfAN NESVADBA
..8....e...r.rr r.i......rj.i,-

$ s77B ;j
gtr*tlV

s'ff;q;



December6" l0l3 2013155306 Page I sf 12

FOltT 8fr:ND t{.tJ.I). t6T B*unit*r,u

295,$1.17 ot:res in tht "f*ne H. Long Le*gat, Abttrud No, SS,
and tht Sim*n Jons Survey, Ah^strad No. l7t,
{'it1,ol ltosr alterg, Fort Bentt Caanty,Iavrs

A rlF'l'D N{}'rF: nk$Cltfi'}'l'l0N of 11)5.61 37 acres of land in rhr .lanc I{. l,ung Lcaguc, Absrracr No.55 and 'in lhe Sirnnn Jones survey, Ahstract No. 271 . City of Ro$enbcrg. Fort lJcncl Ltounty, Texas; saicl
295,62 acre traet heing out of Reserve "H"and ail of Reserve "K", BIo& 4, T'he Villages At Rosenherg,
according to rh+ fiIap or plat rccorcled urrder Slicle hi*. 1954 A&R of the Fort llcnd Counry plat Rec'rds. hcingall of Restricted Reserves "A". "B"o "()", anrJ *l)" and being a part of 'lolr,n Cenler Boulevard (100 feer wi4e).
according tu the map r:r plat recordcd in Plat No" 2005{} I selr *e Fofl Bcnd cnunty lrtat Recnrds. bcirrg all nf
Restrie{ed Reserve "'A"'and heing a parl of Restricterl Ilcserv,e$ 'oB*', "C0,, ,.E,,. Bruos Town Ce,ler, SectionTwo, aecordifig to lhc map of trrlat recorded irr Plat No. 2005fi239 nf the Fort Bcnd couniy plat Recnrds, bcingall of Reslrictectr Rcscrv€ "A"' rrB':" 1{f1r' 

and part of Reserve "L)", I}razos T'own Ceuter, Sectio* Tfuee.
aecarfing to tlrc map or plat reci:rded iu Plat Nn, ?{i0600081 of the lbrt IJencJ Courty plat Rec.rtls, hci,g,ur
of Reserve "8", Fort Bend Business Cenler. arcording tri the map or plat recorded under Slide No,. l46lB ol
tlre Fc,d Bend County Plat Records" being out of Reseive'0E", RJplat nf R.*.rye ,C,, Fort Ben4 Business
cellter" section Trvc. according 1o ihe nrap *r plat record under lilide No. 200gA of the liort LSend county l,lat
Records' and bcing all of a traet af land conveyed to A-li [13 Town Ccnter-F.M .LZlf.,L.p., as recorcled under
I;ort Bend (lounfy Clerk's File No. Z00SI45 I43 anrl 2005145149; sairl facr heing more particularly clescribed
hy n:etes and bounds as follows with the bearings bcing trased on'I'exas State trlane Coordinate System, South
central Zone (NAD83) per GPS observations on May 07, 2004 usiug Natianal (iet:6etic survey ilo.timro*sly
Operating Reference Stations:

gfCrrrnEn'ic at a Z-inch iron pipe founcl in the nortleasterly right-ol-way line uf Reading Road (60
lbet uide) for s westerly comer of said Resen'e "H" and tbr a w*sterly c*mer nfihis tract;

THE}ICE; North 22n 1'7* 1l " East '974.821bet with the ssutheasterly line of Fprt Bend grminess
Center accolding to the map or plat recorded under Slide No. ,461B of'the Fort Bencl Ckrunty plat Rccorcls t*
a Ye-inch iron rod rvitfi cap set for an interior $$mer;

'l'llblNCH; North 67o 45'06" West - 800.?3 fbet to a Ys-inch iron rocl wilh cap ser fix an intericr corner
eif this tract;

TIIENCE; South 22" 23'09" West' %2.09 f'eet to 6/a-ineh iron rod wirh cap set in t5e portheastcrly
right-erFway line of said Reading Road fur a soutlrerly comer of this tract;

"l"l-lI1N(lE; North $4o 53' 47" West - 3 t 2.00 lber with the northeasrerly right-of-rryay line *f saitl
Reacling Road to a Ya-ineh iron rod with cap set for arr angle point of this traet; 

*

I'HENCE; Nonh 67" 14'51" West - 7,372.27 fect with the nr:rtheasrerly riglrr-of-way line of said
Rcading Rtmd ta a 5/a-inch iron rod with cap set 1br a westerly comer of rl.ris tract;

THENCE; North d9n 3B'0g" west - 316.47 ti:et with the *r:rrheasterl3r right-of-way li'e of saitl
Readirlg Road to a sle'itrch iron rod with cap f<rund for the southerly eornsr ni" Rir**r* .f)' of saicl Replat <rf
lteserve 'C', F{trl Renci Business Center. Scclion Twr: ar:d for a rvesterly eorner of r1ris 6act;

THENCE: North 2'2o 18'40" llast - 223,96 tbet wilh the southeasrerly line r:f saicl Rcserve ,D, to a yo-
i'ch iron rod with cap found for zui interior corrcr of rhis trast;



201315$306 Page I of lt

'I'HENCIE;North 6i)" 40'22" West -223.71 f'eet lvith lhe northcastcrly line of saicl Rese*,e.D' to a yr-
inch iron rod rvith cap lound in the southcasterly righr-of:way line of F,L4. zi t x L l 00 f'eet rvicle). as recorded
irT Vo'lume 335, Ilage 547 oJ'the Fort lJend CounLy Deecl Recorcls for a westgly corner of'this lract;

THENCE;North 27" 20'30" Hast - 1.168.26 fect rvitlr the southeasterly line of saicl F.M. 22lg ru a % -
inch iron pipc lbund f.or an angle point of this tracr;

'l I{LNCEI Nor-th 22 14' 43" East - 713.51 fect with the southeastetly right-of-way linc said FM 22l g
1o a %-inch iron pipe found for an nngle point of this ract;

TFfiNCE; biorth 22" 2$'3-5" Iiast - 107.56 {bet rvith southeasterly righi-ofl.way line of saitl F.M, zzlg
to a 7u-irrch iron pipe founcl for a point-of-curvanrre;

'IHENCE; wiLh southeasterlv right-of-way line af said F.M. 22lB and u,ith a cune to the right lravi,g
a radius of I ,383.00 feet. a central angle of 12" l0' 4 1", a length cf 293"96 feer a66 a chord bearirrglNortr, ig.
28' 48 East - 293.40 feet tn at/z-irtch iron pipe in tree lbuntl Itrr the northerly c$rner of this tract; irom which
a l4-inch iron pipe found bears North i I o 55' 23,' Easr - I 1 "g9 feer;

TI-IENCE; South 68" 07'55" F,ast - 1"193.28 feet with the muthwcsterly line of rhe remtrinder of a
,15.7247 acre I'ract of lzurd conveyed to C. [. Myska- Trustee, as reconied in Volurne 934,Irage 66 o{,lhe lrort
Bend County Deed Recarels ttt a 6la-inch iron rql with cap set for an angle point of this tract;

'I'IIENCE; South 37o I3' I ?" East - 194.66 feet to a Ye-inch in:n rod wirh cap set for an angle point of
this tract;

]'I'IENCH; South 68u 07' 55" fiast - 1,085.49 feet tn a s/a-inch iron mtl with cap set filr an angle point
of this trarl;

THENCE; South 68o 04' 1 I " East - 51.4? feet to a s/a-inch iron rod witir cap set fbr an arrgle point rrf
this tract;

THENCE; North 78o 47'?9" East - 1&2.5? feet t*r a Ya-inch iron rod rvith cap set for an angle point of
this tlact;

THC'NCEI North 68o 04' I l " Wcst -2fi4.21fcct with a southwesteLly linr" cf saiil The Villages ar
Rosenbcrg to a 2-inch iron pipe &rund frrr a westerry comer o['this rract;

THENCE; North 2lo 4l'0(>" llast - t,919.04 feet *ith the southeasterly lile 6f a cailetl 115.724? acrc
tract of la*d canveyeri to c.E. N{yskn Trustcc. as recorded in volume g34, Page 66 of the rort Bend county
lleed Rec'orrJs to a s/s-ineh iror: rod with cap set for the nortl,criy comer of tlris tract;

TI{ENCE; Sr"rrrth 37o 0?'26" East - 3,3'14,42 teet with the soutfirvesrerlr. righr-ot r,vay lirre of rhe BNS}.
ltailroad right-oflway' as recorded in V*lnnre 75, Page 312 of rhe Fort Bt-ucl Cougty Deecl Records to point
for nn east8rly comcr of this tract;



20'13155306 Page iA af 12

[rlrNcr';.$outh 52* 42'48" west - g74.q|(bcr with t]rc nofihr.vesterly line 9f lteserve ..o,, 
oJ,saril Thevillages At Rfisenhetg to a ,/a-inch iron rorl witlr cap sc.t frrr an angle point 6f this tract;

THENCE; sr:uth 62o 39' l3' west - 1,205.30 ibet r.vith tlrc northwcsrerlv line r:f Reserve ,.8,, 
andReserve "F'" of said The villages At Rosenberg to a cut 'ox";n 

"un*r*r*lr;;;i"ilr;';"j;;r;i";;;;r;;^"
T|-IENCE; in an easterly directicn with the northerly line ol,sairl Reserve.,F,, a,d Reserve .,(j,,of silid'l'hr: villages At Rosenberg and with said crrve to rhe righihaving a ratlius of 100.00 fcer. * eenrral angie r:rli50o 13' 34", a length of 87'66 tbet and a chord bearing {iouth g7" 46' 00" Wcst - g4.gg fbet tn a c.ut ..x., 

ir1concrelc ftrund for a point-ofltarlgency for this tract;

l-HEltCE; North 67" 07' 14" west - 2fi*.27 feet with the nnrtheasterly line of said Reservc ,.G,- [* aelrt "x" ill concrcte tbund for a soutllwestorly con.)er of this tract:

'fIjllNCD; Noflh 22" 52' 43" East - 838.38 feet with the soulheasterly line ol Reserr,,eo,A,,. 
.I11c

Villages At Rosenherg, Section 2' arcordi[g to the mnp or plat recorded under Slide Nu. 22148 ol thc forlBend County Plat Records conveyed to &osenberg lrentureI..TD., as recordcd undr'r Forr lJerrd Co*nty
Clcrk's File No. 2001I19747 to a Va-inch irnn r*cl firund fbr an intericrr cor.ner of this tlact;

THENCII: Nnrth 63" 20' 55" West - 400.66 feet q,ith thc nonheastcrly line ol'sairl Reserve,.A,nto a
gxrint t'or an interior comer of this lract;

TI{ENCE: South 6lo {)?'04" West - ?1.39 fbet with a nofthlvesterly lint: ot'said Re.serve '.A,.to an
a;rgle poinr of this tract;

'l'FIENCE; North 7? 59'22" Wesl - 163.95 feet rvirh a norilreecterly line of sai,J Reserve .0A,, 
to a hole

punch in reinforced concrste pipe lbund for an angle point of this tract;

THENCE; North 5.1" l9' 13" West - 1q.63 feet with a northeasterly line otsaict Resene,.A'' to a E/n-
inch iron rod found for an angle poir:t of this tract;

TH."!IICE; North 22" 1?' 51" Liast - 55.94 feet witli tlre southeaslerly right-of-way line ollVisk t)rive
{r:$ fbei wide} according to the map or plat recorded under slide No. 2214 Brr}the Irod Bcntl county plar
Records to a ye-inch iron rod with cap set for an irrterior corner of t6is tractl

]'LtENCts; North 67" 47'09" West - 60.00 feet to a ./s'inch iron rr:tl rvith r:ap set ii:r an interior comrer
of this tract;

THENCE: south 22o 12' 51" \,vest - 767.&8 feet with the norrhivesrerly right-ot:w.v line r.rf said vistaDrive to an angle point of this uact;

l HLNCE; south 22" 17' 31 " West - 1,416.44 feet ivitlr the nolthrrycsterly tight-of,r.vny lin* of saiclvista Drive to S/a-inch iron rod radth cap set for fh* easterly entl of a cuthack ar ihe Inters..ction of th* 
-

nofihrveslerly right-of-rtay line of said vista l-)rive with tlic n0r1he;:-sterly right-ol.-rvay Iine of sairi Reading
Roadl



20{3r5S30S Page 11 aI 12

THEN(:E': Souilr 670 "34' 19 " Wcst - 2 I . i l fuer rvith saici cutback to a s/s*inch iron rori lvilh caP set lor
an irngle ;ruint o1'this tract;

THI:I'iCE; Norrh 67" 08'54" Wc.s{ - 84.71 ltet rvith the northeasterly right-oirvay lirre p{'sai4 1teacli,g
R*ad to thc POJNT ot, IIEGINNINLi and containing :95.613? acres of lanrJ.

(:Olv1P1,.Ot Or,

Texas [.ngineerirrg Arrd Mappirrg Conrpany
{livil Engineers - Land Sureyors
Staft'ard. Texas
Jrrb No. 356-72
W.$5{j.? thldd*ordffi ll_r:.:tulxr.N gl

Registercd Professional Lanil Surveyor
State of Texas No. 5776

Brian Nesvariba

ffis. OF rS

:#pf!iid:r.*,
::.lgiill.,ryqy.iirff:

'-.3, s;#'.;r..'"'
,.#ss..r.:l'ii ^y$u-';.4



!$13155306 Page 12 ot 12

13.&?85 acres, being ail of RESTRiCTED RESERVES ,,A;, ,,g,, 
antJ ,,c,, of THREE hdILE

CROSSING, a sul"rdivision 'in Fort Bentl County, Texas, accorr.iing ter the map or plat
thereof recorded under Clerk's File No. 2fr070127 in the plat Recorcls of Fort Bend
County, Texas.

46321{t























ORDINANCE NO. 2013 -46

AN ORDINANCE PROVIDING FOR APPROVAL OF AN EXPANSION TO
THE TERRITORY OF FORT BEND COUNTY MUD NO. 167 OF FORT
BEND COUNTY, TEXAS, TO INCLUDE THAT AREA, WITHIN THE
CORPORATE LIMITS OF THE CITY OF ROSENBERG, TEXAS, AS
FURTHER PROVIDED FOR HEREIN; AND MAKING CERTAIN FINDINGS
OF FACT AND OTHER CONCLUSIONS AS HEREIN SET OUT. 

WHEREAS, Fort Bend County MUD No. 167 of Fort Bend County, Texas represents
it was previously created in accordance with the provisions of applicable law; and, 

WHEREAS, a majority of the owners of the underlying realty and the Board of
Directors of Fort Bend County MUD No. 167 ( MUD No. 167), Texas have represented and
do represent as evidenced by their acceptance of this consent, by instrument filed in the
Office of the City Secretary of the City of Rosenberg, that MUD No. 167, was in all things
properly created in accordance with the laws of the State of Texas and that there is no
reason or impediment of any type which would prevent MUD No. 167 from adding that
certain additional territory, specifically described hereafter, the consent of which is hereby
requested of the City of Rosenberg, Texas, (Annexation Consent); and, 

WHEREAS, the City Council of the City of Rosenberg did previously give its consent
for the creation of said MUD No. 167 as to that territory within the corporate limits of the
City of Rosenberg; and, 

WHEREAS, MUD No. 167, despite its earlier creation, expressly stipulates and
agrees, that as part of the consideration for the requested Annexation Consent, it willfully

comply with the Rosenberg Code of Ordinances, specifically including Chapter 29, entitled
Utilities," Article V, entitled " Creation of Certain Special Districts," Division 1, " In City

Municipal Utility Districts," and that such stipulation and agreement is an express condition
precedent on the part of the City of Rosenberg ( City), for the Annexation Consent and
related agreement to provide utility services to MUD No. 167; and, 

WHEREAS, the City Council of the City of Rosenberg finds and determines that the
Board of Directors of MUD No. 167 have duly and properly requested the area, boundaries
and configuration of said MUD be altered and adjusted to include additional territory within
the corporate limits of the City of Rosenberg as herein set out; now, therefore, 

BE IT ORDAINED BY THE COUNCIL OF THE CITY OF ROSENBERG: 

Section 1. That the City Council of the City of Rosenberg finds and adopts the
findings of fact as herein previously set out as being true and correct findings of fact. 

Section 2. That the City Council of the City of Rosenberg, Texas, does hereby
acknowledge that the Board of Directors of MUD No. 167 have previously requested that

Page 1 of 3



the City Council of the City of Rosenberg give its formal consent in accordance with the
referenced condition precedent and applicable law for the expansion of the territory of said
MUD No. 167 to include additional area and territory located within the municipal
boundaries of the City of Rosenberg. 

Section 3. That the City Council of the City of Rosenberg, expressly subject to the
condition precedent that MUD No. 167 fully comply with the Rosenberg Code of
Ordinances, specifically including Chapter 29, entitled "Utilities," Article V, entitled "Creation
of Certain Special Districts," Division 1, " In City Municipal Utility Districts," does hereby give
its consent and approves the expansion of the territory of MUD No. 167 to and include all of
that area and territory, as set out in the certain exhibit attached hereto and marked Exhibit
A," to include all of the area and territory as therein set out. The consent and approval as

herein provided shall be final and binding upon the Board of Directors of MUD No. 167 and
the majority of the property owners of the property described and included in the newly
configured MUD No. 167, executing and filing a letter with the City Secretary of the City of
Rosenberg which shall state that MUD No. 167 is a MUD lawfully created and existing
under the laws of the State of Texas, that there is no legal impediment or reason why the

area and territory of MUD No. 167 should not be enlarged and configured as described in
Exhibit 'A" and that MUD No. 167 expressly stipulates and agrees to comply with the
above referenced Rosenberg Code of Ordinances. 

Section 4. That the City Council of the City of Rosenberg does hereby further
direct that the Mayor and City Secretary of the City of Rosenberg, and such officers of the
City as shall be necessary and required, shall execute such approvals and other
documents that shall be required from time to time in order to effectively place of record
and acknowledge that the City Council of the City of Rosenberg has duly and properly
approved and consented to this change and modification in the area and territory of the
boundaries of the said Municipal Utility District pursuant to the conditions contained herein. 

Section 5. That, in addition to the conditions and requirements otherwise set out

herein, the consent as herein provided shall be conditioned on the owners of the real

property within the geographical configuration of MUD No. 167, hereinafter referred to as
MUD No. 167 property," fully complying with all rules, regulations and requirements that

may be in existence or later provided as the same relates to all construction, configuration
and the use of land located within the MUD No. 167 property, whether directly expressed or
provided by the City of Rosenberg in such other agreements and documents that may be
executed relating to the development or use of the MUD No. 167 property. 

PASSED AND APPROVED by a vote of 4 " ayes" in favor and 0 " noes" 

against on this first and final reading in full compliancewith provisions of Section 3. 10 of

the Charter of the City of Rosenberg on this the , of 2013. 

Page 2 of 3



ATTEST: APPROVED: 

4
Linda Cernosek vin

CITY SECRETARY MA

APPROVED AS FORM: 

Lora' Jean b Lymszll CITY ATTORNEY

G) 

Page 3 of 3



Exhibit "A" to Ordinance No. 2013 -46

EXHIBIT A

Description of the Land

13.8385 acres, being all of RESTRICTED RESERVES " A," ' B" and " C" of THREE MILE
CROSSING, a subdivision in Fort Bend County, Texas, according to the map or plat
thereof recorded under Clerk's File No. 20070127 in the Plat Records of Fort Bend

County, Texas. 

447597



Ms. Beck reported that the proposed changes would account for approximately $119,700, leaving a deficit of 
$8,300. Councilor Hopkins, Councilor Suter, and Mayor Gurecky, members of the Employees Benefit 
Committee, briefly recounted the challenge to keep up with the spiraling costs for insurance coverage. It was 
stressed that a great deal of consideration went into the decisions of how to handle the increased costs. 

Ken Barefield, 3914 Marilyn Street Rosenberg, TX, spoke as follows: 
1 Stated appreciation for the City's effort concerning the insurance, noting that these issues present a 

challenge to the City. 
Expressed concern at the amount of increase in the premium for the retirees, who have a reduced 
income, with Medicare costs as well. Asked Council to consider lower insurance premiums for 
retirees who still work for the City on a part-time basis. 
Referred to the cost of $1300 for a spouse to get back into the insurance program and requested 
that Council consider letting him back into the program without that expense. 

It was pointed out that it is estimated that health care costs would rise from 9% to 12% per year and these 
costs had to be spread out to retain the coverage. Ms. Beck said that the changes they proposed were 
consistent with the trend for co-payments, deductibles, and premiums nation-wide. She advised that a 
memorandum regarding their benefits and compensation package will be sent to City employees. 

ACTION: Councilor Hopkins made a motion, seconded by Councilor Suter, to approve the recommendation 
of the Employee Benefits Committee to implement changes to the City's self-funded health insurance plan. 
The motion carried by a unanimous vote. 

RECESS REGULAR SESSION, RECONVENE SESSION 
Mayor Gurecky recessed the Regular Session at 8:51 p.m. and reconvened the Session at 9:06 p.m. *He 
said that Councilor Martinez had to leave the meeting due to illness. 

CONSIDERATION OF AND ACTION ON AUTHORIZATION FOR CITY MANAGER TO EXECUTE, FOR 
AND ON BEHALF OF THE CITY OF ROSENBERG, AN AMENDMENT TO WATER SUPPLY AND 
WASTEWATER SERVICES CONTRACT BETWEEN THE CITY OF ROSENBERG, TEXAS, AND FORT 
BEND COUNTY MUNlClPAL UTlLlTY DISTRICT NO. 150. 
Mr. Kalkomey advised that the developer of a 15.07 acre tract of land located between US 59 and FM 2218, 
just west of the intersection of these two highways, requested annexation into Fort Bend County Municipal 
Utility District No. 150 (MUD No. 150). He noted that the proposed amendment would add an additional 155 
equivalent single family connections to MUD No. 150 for this tract. Kalkomey said the petition for annexation 
into MUD No. 150 will be presented at the next Council meeting. There was a lengthy discussion of this 
request. David Neeley, City Manager, Charles Kalkomey and Bill Olson, City Attorney, provided members of 
Council with information relating to the proposed amendment. 

ACTION: Councilor Hopkins made a motion, seconded by Councilor Grigar, to approve authorization for the 
City Manager to execute, for and on behalf of the City of Rosenberg, an Amendment to Water Supply and 
Wastewater Services Contract between the City of Rosenberg, Texas, and Fort Bend County Municipal 
Utility District No. 150. Mayor Gurecky asked if the City had the capacity to satisfy this additional service and 
Mr. Kalkomey confirmed that the City has the capacity now. The motion carried by a unanimous vote of 
those present. 

a 

CONSIDERATION OF AND ACTION ON AUTHORlZATlON FOR CITY MANAGER TO EXECUTE, FOR 
AND ON BEHALF OF THE CITY OF ROSENBERG, AN AGREEMENT CONCERNING DEVELOPMENT 
OF LAND BETWEEN THE CITY OF ROSENBERG, TEXAS, AND ROSENBERG FM 2218, LTD. 
Mr. Kalkomey advised that the proposed agreement was for the development of the tract of land discussed in 
the previous item. He reported that the developer of this 15.07 acre tract of land located between US 59 and 
FM 2218 requested annexation into Fort Bend County MUD No. 150, so this agreement would outline the 
responsibilities of both the developer and the City. Kalkomey said that the developer is obligated to construct 
Bryan Road between US 59 and FM 2218 and for improvements to FM 2218. Mr. Kalkomey said the City is 
obligated to provide drainage improvements to allow for the development of the tract without detention. He 
provided details relating to the road improvements, costs and the drainage issues. Mr. Kalkomey advised 
that the City will request Fort Bend County's assistance wlth the drainage project. 

PACE 3 of 6 0 REGULAR COUSCIL RlEETlSC 0 NOVEiMUEIt I .  2005 

jasmineb
Rectangle



ACTION: Councilor Grigar made a motion, seconded by Councilor Hopkins, for authorization for the City 
Manager to execute, for and on behalf of the City of Rosenberg, an Agreement concerning Development of 
Land between the City of Rosenberg. Texas, and Rosenberg FM 2218, Ltd.. amended to insert the word "off- 
site" between the word "additional" and the word "drainage" on line 5, in Article 111. City Obligations, 3.1 Off- 
Site Drainage Improvements, of the Agreement. The motion carried by a unanimous vote of those present. 

CONSIDERATION OF AND ACTION ON ORDINANCE 2005-27 TO AMEND THE CODE OF 
ORDINANCES OF THE CITY OF ROSENBERG, TEXAS, BY DELETING PARAGRAPH (7) OF SECTION 

DISPENSES CLASS 1A LIQUIDS: AND PROVIDING FOR SEVERABILITY. 
Rick Todish, Interim Fire Chief, reported that the circumstance that initiated the need to require a locking 
device on nozzles is no longer valid, partially due to changes in vapor recovery systems, and that the 
proposed ordinance would delete the portion of the Code of Ordinances adopted in 1989 that prohibited any 
locking device on a nozzle. He answered questions from the members of Council. 

ACTION: Councilor Suter made a motion, seconded by Councilor Grigar, to approve the first and final 
reading of Ordinance 2005-27, caption as follows: "AN ORDINANCE AMENDING THE CODE OF 
ORDINANCES OF THE CITY OF ROSENBERG, TEXAS, BY DELETING PARAGRAPH (7) OF SECTION 

DISPENSES CLASS IA LIQUIDS: AND PROVIDING FOR SEVERABILITY." The motion carried by a 
unanimous vote of those present. 

11-82 OF CHAPTER 11, THEREOF, WHICH PROHIBITS ANY LOCKING DEVICE ON A NOZZLE THAT 

11-82 OF CHAPTER 11 THEREOF, WHICH PROHIBITS ANY LOCKING DEVICE ON A NOZZLE THAT 

CONSIDERATION OF AND ACTION ON ORDINANCE 2005-23 REGARDING THE CREATION OF THE 
ROSENBERG MUNICIPAL COURT JUVENILE CASE MANAGER FUND AS AUTHORIZED BY STATE 
LAW BY AUTHORIZING AND DIRECTING THE CREATION OF SAID FUND AND THE USE OF THE 
PROCEEDS OF SAID FUND IN ACCORDANCE WITH THE ORDINANCE AND STATE LAW. 
James A. Baker, Municipal Judge, advised that the Texas Code of Criminal Procedure authored the creation 
of the Municipal Court Juvenile Case Manager Fund and he requested permission to assess this court fee. 
Baker reported that if after a year, the collections justified hiring a juvenile case manager, he would like to 
appoint one. Judge Baker reviewed and discussed the advantages to having a juvenile case manager assist 
with these juvenile cases. He requested approval of the proposed ordinance. It was pointed out that when 
this position is considered, space, salary and benefits will have to be included in the cost estimate. 

ACTION: Councilor Hopkins made a motion, seconded by Councilor Suter, to approve the first and final 
reading of Ordinance 2005-23, caption as follows: "AN ORDINANCE AMENDING CHAPTER 19 OF THE 
CODE OF ORDINANCES OF THE CITY OF ROSENBERG, TEXAS, BY ADDING THERETO A NEW 
SECTION 19-39 TO ARTICLE II THEREOF: PROVIDING FOR THE CREATION OF A ROSENBERG 
MUNICIPAL COURT JUVENILE CASE MANAGER FUND; PROVIDING FOR THE CREATION, 
ASSESSMENT AND COLLECTION OF A MUNICIPAL COURT JUVENILE CASE MANAGER FEE IN 
ACCORDANCE WITH ARTICLE 102.0174 OF THE TEXAS CODE OF CRIMINAL PROCEDURE: ADDING 
SECTION 19-39 OF ARTICLE 11, CHAPTER 19; REPEALING ALL ORDINANCES OR PARTS OF 
ORDINANCES INCONSISTENT OR IN CONFLICT HEREWITH: PROVIDING FOR SEVERABILITY; AND 
PROVIDING OTHER PROVISIONS RELATED TO THE SUBJECT." The motion carried by a unanimous vote 
of those present. 

0 

REVIEW AND DISCUSS THE BAMORE BRIDGE PROJECT, AND TAKE ACTION AS NECESSARY. 
Mr. Kalkomey advised that as a part of the agreement with the developer of Fort Bend County MUD No. 148, 
the City is committed to construct a two-lane road section of Bamore Road from US 59 to the north side of 
the subdivision, including a bridge structure over Seabourne Creek. He said the funds for this project were 
provided by the Rosenberg Development Corporation (RDC) in the amount of $460,000 and City Council 
originally wanted to build a concrete bridge, but the construction costs have recently risen sharply. Kalkomey 
reviewed alternate designs--a corrugated metal arch pipe and a galvanized multi-plate arch structure. Each 
of those structures would include a simple, concrete headwall; but, a decorative headwall could be provided 
at an additional cost. He discussed the bridge construction and the costs associated with each option, as 
outlined. 

During this discussion, the following subjects were reviewed: (1) Who, besides the developer would be 
served by the construction of the bridge; (2) TX DOT does not desire to build any more farm-to-market roads, 

0 

jasmineb
Rectangle



KAYES
Rectangle



jasmineb
Rectangle



jasmineb
Rectangle



CITY COUNCIL COMMUNICATION 
 
September 15, 2015  
 

ITEM # ITEM TITLE 

C 
Resolution No. R-2035 – Agreement and Acknowledgement of 
Termination of Water Supply and Wastewater Services Contract 

ITEM/MOTION 

Consideration of and action on Resolution No. R-2035, a Resolution authorizing the City Manager to execute, 
for and on behalf of the City, an Agreement and Acknowledgement of Termination of Water Supply and 
Wastewater Services Contract Between the City of Rosenberg, Texas, and 2218 Rosenberg L.P.  

FINANCIAL SUMMARY ELECTION DISTRICT 

Annualized Dollars: 

[   ] One-time 
[   ] Recurring 
[X] N/A 

Budgeted: 

[   ] Yes  [   ] No  [X] N/A 

Source of Funds:   N/A 

 

[   ] District 1 
[   ] District 2 
[   ] District 3 
[X] District 4 
[   ] City-wide 
[   ] N/A 

SUPPORTING DOCUMENTS: 
 

MUD #:  150 (Wind Meadows) 

1. Resolution No. R-2035 
2. MUD No. 150 - Water Supply and Wastewater Services Contract with Amendment - 04-20-04 
3. MUD No. 150 - Assignment of Water Supply and Wastewater Services Contract - 12-14-04 
4. Ordinance No. 2013-46 - 12-03-15 (See Item No. B) 
5. MUD No. 150 - Certificate for Order Dissolving the District - 12-05-13 (See Item No. B) 
6. City Council Meeting Minute Excerpt - 04-20-04 
7. City Council Meeting Minute Excerpt - 12-14-04 
8. City Council Meeting Minute Excerpt - 11-01-05 (See Item No. B) 
9. City Council Meeting Minute Excerpt - 12-03-13 (See Item No. B) 

 

APPROVALS 

Submitted by:  

 
Randall Malik 
Economic Development 
Director 

Reviewed by:   
[   ] Exec. Dir. of Administrative Services 
[   ] Asst. City Manager of Public Services  
[X] City Attorney - JM/rm   
[   ] City Engineer 
[X] Exec. Dir. of Community Development  
 

Approved for Submittal 
to City Council: 
   
 
 
Robert Gracia 
City Manager 

EXECUTIVE SUMMARY 

On April 20, 2004, the City of Rosenberg entered into a Water Supply and Wastewater Services Contract 
(Contract) with 2218 Rosenberg, L.P. The Contract provided the developer the authority to utilize Fort Bend 
County Municipal Utility District No. 150 (MUD No. 150) to construct, finance, own and operate a water 
distribution system and a wastewater collection system to serve development occurring within their boundaries. 
This was specifically for the Wind Meadows development, consisting of 655 proposed residential lots at the time.  
Subsequently, the Contract was assigned to the MUD No. 150 on December 14, 2004. Additionally, the City and 
MUD No. 150 amended the Contract on November 1, 2005, to service 15.0069 acres including acreage owned 
by Rosenberg FM 2218, Ltd. However, the proposed Wind Meadows development did not materialize and the 
City reached an Agreement in 2013 for the subject property to be developed as the Rosenberg Business Park.  
Further, the acreage owned by Rosenberg FM 2218, Ltd., was annexed into MUD No. 167. The latter two (2) 
events essentially made MUD No. 150 no longer necessary.  The Board of Directors of MUD No. 150 approved 
an order dissolving the District on December 5, 2013.   
 
This Resolution No. R-2035 serves to formally terminate the Contract between the City of Rosenberg and the 
District as agreed upon by the City and MUD No. 150.  Staff recommends approval of Resolution No. R-2035 as 
presented. 
 



RESOLUTION NO. R-2035 
 

A RESOLUTION OF THE CITY COUNCIL OF THE CITY OF 
ROSENBERG, TEXAS, AUTHORIZING THE CITY MANAGER TO 
EXECUTE, FOR AND ON BEHALF OF THE CITY OF ROSENBERG, 
TEXAS, AN AGREEMENT AND ACKNOWLEDGEMENT OF 
TERMINATION OF WATER SUPPLY AND WASTEWATER SERVICES 
CONTRACT BETWEEN THE CITY OF ROSENBERG AND 2218 
ROSENBERG, L.P. 
 

*  *  *  *  * 
 
 WHEREAS, the City Council of the City of Rosenberg, Texas, passed and approved a 
Water Supply and Wastewater Services Contract (Contract) between the City of Rosenberg and 
2218 Rosenberg, L.P., on April 20, 2004; and, 
 
 WHEREAS, the Contract was assigned by 2218 Rosenberg L.P., to Fort Bend County 
Municipal Utility District No. 150 (MUD No. 150) on December 14, 2004; and, 
 
 WHEREAS, the City and District amended the Contract on November 1, 2005, to service 
15.007 acres owned by Rosenberg FM 2218, Ltd.; and,  
 
 WHEREAS, the Board of Directors of MUD No. 150, approved an order dissolving the 
District on December 5, 2013; now therefore, 
 
BE IT RESOLVED BY THE COUNCIL OF THE CITY OF ROSENBERG: 
 
 Section 1. The City Manager is hereby authorized to execute an Agreement and 

Acknowledgement of Termination of Water Supply and Wastewater Services Contract by and 

between the City of Rosenberg and 2218 Rosenberg, L.P. 

Section 2. A copy of said Agreement and Acknowledgement of Termination of Water 

Supply and Wastewater Services Contract is attached hereto as Exhibit “A” and made a part 

hereof for all purposes. 

PASSED, APPROVED, AND RESOLVED this _____ day of ___________ 2015. 

 
ATTEST:      APPROVED: 
 
 
 
              
Linda Cernosek, CITY SECRETARY   Amanda J. Barta, MAYOR PRO TEM 



Exhibit "A" to Resolution No. R-2035

























































































































































APPROVAL OF THE WATER SUPPLY AND WASTEWATER SERVICES AGREEMENT 
BETWEEN THE CITY OF ROSENBERG, AND 2218 ROSENBERG, L.P., MUD #150, AND TYEE 
MANAGEMENT, LLC; AND, APPROVAL OF AUTHORIZATION FOR MAYOR TO EXECUTE, 

WASTEWATER SERVICES AGREEMENT. 
Mr. Neeley advised that the proposed utility agreement would establish the criteria to provide utility services 
to the 2218 Rosenberg, L.P., MUD#150, and Tyee Management, LLC, development project; h o w n  as Wind 
Meadows Subdivision. He recommended approval of the proposed agreement, with the understanding that 
the staff will continue to work on the outstanding issues and bring those forward in a separate development 
agreement. 

Councilor Hopkins made a motion, seconded by Councilor Becerra, to approve the Water Supply and 
Wastewater Services Agreement between the City of Rosenberg, and 2218 Rosenberg, L.P., MUD #150, and 
Tyee Management, LLC; and, approval of authorization for the Mayor to execute, for and on behalf of the 
City of Rosenberg, said Water Supply and Wastewater Services Agreement. The motion carried by a 
unanimous vote. 

RECESS REGULAR SESSION, RECONVENE SESSION 
Mayor Gurecky recessed the Regular Session at 8:OI p,m. and reconvened the Session at 8:16 p.m. 

APPROVAL, OF AUTHORIZATION FOR MAYOR TO EXECUTE, FOR AND ON BEHALF OF 
THE CITY O F  ROSENBERG, ADDENDUM “B” TO THE WATER SUPPLY AND WASTEWATER 
SERVICES CONTRACT BETWEEN THE CITY OF ROSENBERG, TEXAS, BROOKLINE 
DEVELOPMENT COMPANY, AND ELAN DEVELOPMENT, L.P., TO ADD OBRA HOMES, INC., 
AS AN ADDITIONAL DEVELOPER. 
Steve Weathered, City Attorney, advised that the Addendum “B” to the water supply and wastewater service 
contract with Brookline Development Company and Elan Development, L.P., would add Obra Homes, Inc. 
as an additional developer for Municipal Utility District 147. He noted that this addition would include Obra 
Homes, Inc. in all the developer obligations contained in the original Utility Agreement. 

Councilor Naylor made a motion, seconded by Councilor Grigar, to approve authorization for the Mayor to 
execute, for and on behalf of the City of Rosenberg, Addendum “ B  to the Water Supply and Wastewater 
Services contract between the City of Rosenberg, Texas, Brookline Development Company, and Elan 
Development, L.P., to add Obra Homes, Inc., as an additional developer. The motion carried by a unanimous 
vote. 

APPROVAL O F  AUTHORIZATION FOR MAYOR TO EXECUTE, FOR AND ON BEHALF OF 
THE -CITY O F  ROSENBERG,AN ASSIGNMENT OF THE WATER SUPPLY AND 
WASTEWATER SERVICES CONTRACT BETWEEN THE CITY OF ROSENBERG, TEXAS, AND 
TERRAMARK HOLDINGS L.C, TO CENTEX HOMES, A NEVADA GENERAL PARTNERSHIP. 
Mr. Weathered advised that the proposed assignment of all rights and obligations under Temamark Holdings 
L.C.’s Utility Contract relating to Municipal Utility District 148 would be transferred to Centex, if the 
assignment is approved. Steve Robinson, of Allen Boone and Humprhies, L.L.P., provided information on 
Centex Homes and its decision to buy all the lots in the project so it could essentially assume the role of 
developer in the subdivision. Mr. Robinson introduced Brian Smith, of Centex Homes, who was present to 
answer any questions from Council. 

Councilor Hopkins made a motion, seconded by Councilor Becerra, to approve authorization for the Mayor 
to execute, for and on behalf of the City of Rosenberg, an Assignment of the Water Supply and Wastewater 
Services contract between the City of Rosenberg, Texas, and Terramark Holdings L.C, to Centex Homes, a 
Nevada general partnership. The motion carried by a unanimous vote. 

FOR AND ON BEHALF OF THE CITY OF ROSENBERG, SAID WATER SUPPLY AND 

0 

PAGE 4 OF 6 + REGULAR COUNCIL MEETING APRIL 20.2004 

jasmineb
Rectangle



PAGE 2 of 5 �� SPECIAL COUNCIL MEETING � DECEMBER 14, 2004

CONSIDERATION OF AND ACTION ON ORDINANCE 2004-29, TO CONSENT TO THE CREATION OF MUNICIPAL 
UTILITY DISTRICT #158 BY VENTANA DEVELOPMENT READING, LTD., WITHIN THE EXTRATERRITORIAL 
JURISDICTION OF THE CITY OF ROSENBERG. 
Mr. Kalkomey advised that approval of this ordinance would provide for the creation of Municipal Utility District #158; 
provided information on the location of the development; and reported that the necessary documentation was submitted and 
reviewed. 

ACTION:  Councilor Hopkins made a motion, seconded by Councilor Warstler, to approve the first and final reading of
Ordinance 2004-29, caption as follows: “An ordinance providing for approval of the creation of Municipal Utility 
District No. 158 of Fort Bend County, Texas, within the extraterritorial jurisdiction of the City of Rosenberg, Texas 
as further provided for herein, making certain findings of fact and other conclusions as herein set out.” The motion 
carried by a unanimous vote.

CONSIDERATION OF AND ACTION ON AGREEMENT CONCERNING DEVELOPMENT OF LAND BETWEEN THE 
CITY OF ROSENBERG, TEXAS, AND 2218 ROSENBERG, L.P. (MUD #150).  
Mr. Kalkomey advised that approval of this annexation agreement would allow the developer to provide a second point of 
access to the Wind Meadows subdivision. He reported that the Planning and Zoning Commission approved the Land Plan. 
Members of Council confirmed that there were provisions to notify individual property owners about the proximity of the 
subdivision to the airport and that impact fees could be imposed in the area.

ACTION:  Councilor Hopkins made a motion, seconded by Councilor Becerra, to approve an Agreement Concerning 
Development of Land between the City of Rosenberg, Texas, and 2218 Rosenberg, L.P. (MUD #150). The motion carried 
by a unanimous vote.

CONSIDERATION OF AND ACTION ON ORDINANCE 2004-30, TO CONSENT TO THE ADDITION OF LAND TO A 
MUNICIPAL UTILITY DISTRICT BY FORT BEND COUNTY MUNICIPAL UTILITY DISTRICT #150 AND WESTFIELD 
FOREST, L.P.,  (14.5366 ACRES) WITHIN THE CORPORATE LIMITS OF THE CITY OF ROSENBERG.
Mr. Kalkomey advised that approval of Ordinance 2004-30 would provide for Municipal Utility District #150 to add property to 
its district into the City of Rosenberg.

ACTION:  Councilor Hopkins made a motion, seconded by Councilor Grigar, to approve the first and final reading of 
Ordinance 2004-30, caption as follows: “An ordinance providing for approval of an expansion to the territory of MUD 
No. 150 of Fort Bend County, Texas, to include that area, within the corporate limits of the City of Rosenberg, 
Texas, as further provided for herein, making certain findings of fact and other conclusions as herein set out.” The 
motion carried by a unanimous vote.

CONSIDERATION OF AND ACTION ON ASSIGNMENT OF WATER SUPPLY AND WASTEWATER SERVICE 
CONTRACT BETWEEN THE CITY OF ROSENBERG, TEXAS, AND 2218 ROSENBERG, L.P. 
Steve Weathered, City Attorney, advised that the City of Rosenberg entered into a utility agreement with 2218 Rosenberg, 
L.P. on April 20, 2004, and that approval of this agreement would assign this area to Municipal Utility District #150.

ACTION:  Councilor Grigar made a motion, seconded by Councilor Talasek, to approve the assignment of the Water Supply
and Wastewater Service Contract between the City of Rosenberg, Texas, and 2218 Rosenberg, L.P. The motion carried by 
a unanimous vote.

REVIEW AND DISCUSS PROPOSED WATER SUPPLY AND WASTEWATER SERVICES AGREEMENT BETWEEN THE 
CITY OF ROSENBERG, FORT BEND COUNTY MUNICIPAL UTILITY DISTRICT #144, AND SUMMER CREEK 
DEVELOPMENT, LTD., (SERVICE TO 35.46 ACRES).
David E. Neeley, City Manager, advised that this development, Summer Creek Development, Ltd., included in the original 
water supply/wastewater contract a provision that anticipated the service of a 35-acre tract across FM762 that is currently 
not in either the City of Richmond or the City of Rosenberg’s extraterritorial jurisdiction (ETJ); although the balance of the 
tract is wholly within the City of Rosenberg’s ETJ. 

Mr. Neeley reported as follows:
� The City agreed to allow the district to service that tract through the municipal utility district (MUD).
� The City staff concluded that both water and wastewater service lines should be constructed under FM762, and that 

the City would assess them an impact fee, just as if they were in the City’s ETJ.



CITY COUNCIL COMMUNICATION 
 
September 15, 2015  
 

ITEM # ITEM TITLE 

D 
Resolution No. R- 2036 – Assignment and Assumption of Utility 
Commitment Letter 

ITEM/MOTION 

Consideration of and action on Resolution No. R-2036, a Resolution authorizing the City Manager to 
execute, for and on behalf of the City, an Assignment and Assumption of Utility Commitment Letter by and 
between the Fort Bend County Municipal Utility District No. 150 (Wind Meadows) and the City of 
Rosenberg.   

FINANCIAL SUMMARY ELECTION DISTRICT 

Annualized Dollars: 

[   ] One-time 
[   ] Recurring 
[X] N/A 

Budgeted: 

[   ] Yes  [   ] No  [X] N/A 

Source of Funds:   N/A 

 

[   ] District 1 
[   ] District 2 
[   ] District 3 
[X] District 4 
[   ] City-wide 
[   ] N/A 

SUPPORTING DOCUMENTS: 
 

MUD #:  150 (Wind Meadows) 

1. Resolution No. R-2036 
2. MUD No. 150 - Certificate for Order Dissolving the District - 12-05-13 (See Item No. B) 

 

APPROVALS 

Submitted by:   

 
 
Randall Malik 
Economic Development 
Director 

Reviewed by:   
[   ] Exec. Dir. of Administrative Services  
[   ] Asst. City Manager of Public Services  
[X] City Attorney - JM/rm   
[   ] City Engineer 
[X] Exec. Dir. of Community Development  
 

Approved for Submittal 
to City Council: 
   
 
Robert Gracia 
City Manager 

EXECUTIVE SUMMARY 

Fort Bend County Municipal Utility District No. 150 (MUD No. 150) has previously allocated detention 
volume of 13.28 acre feet to Vincent and Regina Morales. Prior to dissolution, MUD No. 150 assigned this 
detention capacity reservation to the City so that the City would be advised of and acknowledge this 
reservation. The Assignment and Assumption of the Utility Commitment Letter is necessary due to the 
dissolution of MUD No. 150. 
 
Staff recommends approval of Resolution No. R-2036 as presented. 
 



RESOLUTION NO. R-2036 
 

A RESOLUTION OF THE CITY COUNCIL OF THE CITY OF 
ROSENBERG, TEXAS, AUTHORIZING THE CITY MANAGER TO 
EXECUTE, FOR AND ON BEHALF OF THE CITY OF ROSENBERG, 
TEXAS, AN ASSIGNMENT AND ASSUMPTION OF UTILITY 
COMMITMENT LETTER BY AND BETWEEN THE FORT BEND 
COUNTY MUNICIPAL UTILITY DISTRICT NO. 150 AND THE CITY OF 
ROSENBERG. 
 

*  *  *  *  * 
 
 WHEREAS, On September 19, 2006, Fort Bend County Municipal Utility District 
No. 150 (MUD No. 150) allocated and committed 13.28 acre feet of detention capacity 
to Vincent and Regina Morales; and, 
 
 WHEREAS, the Board of Directors of Fort Bend County Municipal Utility District 
No. 150, approved an order dissolving MUD No. 150 on December 5, 2013; and, 
 
 WHEREAS, MUD No. 150 has requested the Assignment and Assumption of 
Utility Commitment Letter (Utility Commitment Letter) between Fort Bend County 
Municipal Utility District No. 150 and Vincent and Regina Morales; now, therefore, 
 
BE IT RESOLVED BY THE COUNCIL OF THE CITY OF ROSENBERG: 
 
 Section 1. The City Manager is hereby authorized to execute an Assignment 

and Assumption of Utility Commitment Letter by and between the Fort Bend County 

Municipal Utility District No. 150 and the City of Rosenberg. 

Section 2. A copy of said Utility Commitment Letter is attached hereto as 

Exhibit “A” and made a part hereof for all purposes. 

PASSED, APPROVED, AND RESOLVED this _____ day of ___________ 2015. 

 
ATTEST:      APPROVED: 
 
 
 
              
Linda Cernosek, CITY SECRETARY   Amanda J. Barta, MAYOR PRO TEM 



Exhibit "A" to Resolution No. R-2036

KAYES
Typewritten Text

KAYES
Typewritten Text

KAYES
Typewritten Text



KAYES
Typewritten Text

KAYES
Typewritten Text

KAYES
Typewritten Text



KAYES
Rectangle

KAYES
Typewritten Text
2015

KAYES
Typewritten Text

KAYES
Typewritten Text

KAYES
Typewritten Text







 CITY COUNCIL COMMUNICATION 
 

September 15, 2015 
 

ITEM # ITEM TITLE 

E Resolution No. R-2034 - Assignment of Sanitary Sewer Easement 

ITEM/MOTION 

Consideration of and action on Resolution No. R-2034, a Resolution authorizing the City Manager to 
execute, for and on behalf of the City, the Assignment of Public Infrastructure, 10' Sanitary Sewer 
Easement, dated December 5, 2013, which assigns to the City the Easement Agreement (10’ Sanitary 
Sewer Easement) dated February 1, 2006, from WM Commercial, L.P., a Texas limited partnership to Fort 
Bend County Municipal Utility District No. 150 recorded under Document No. 2006012967 of the Official 
Public Records of Fort Bend County, Texas, for the sum of $10.00. 

FINANCIAL SUMMARY ELECTION DISTRICT 

Annualized Dollars: 

[   ] One-time 
[   ] Recurring 
[X] N/A 

Budgeted: 

[  ] Yes  [   ] No  [X] N/A 

Source of Funds:  N/A 

[   ] District 1 
[   ] District 2 
[   ] District 3 
[X] District 4 
[   ] City-wide 
[   ] N/A 

SUPPORTING DOCUMENTS:  MUD #:  150 (Wind Meadows) 

 
1. Resolution No. R-2034 
2. MUD No. 150 - Certificate for Order Dissolving the District- 12-05-13 (See Item No. B) 

 

APPROVALS 

Submitted by:   
 

 
 
Randall Malik 
Economic Development 
Director 

Reviewed by:  
  
[   ] Exec. Dir. of Administrative Services  
[   ] Asst. City Manager of Public Services 
[X] City Attorney - JM/rm 
[   ] City Engineer 
[   ] Other 

Approved for Submittal 
to City Council: 
 
 
Robert Gracia 
City Manager 

EXECUTIVE SUMMARY 

This item serves to accept assignment of a 10' Sanitary Sewer Easement from Fort Bend County 
Municipal Utility District No. 150 (MUD No. 150). MUD No. 150 was granted the easement from WM 
Commercial L.P., on February 1, 2006. The easement provided the MUD No. 150 with the ability to 
construct and operate sanitary sewer lines to the proposed Wind Meadows development. However, the 
proposed Wind Meadows development did not materialize and the City reached an agreement in 2013 for 
the property to be developed as the Rosenberg Business Park. This Resolution services to assign the 
Sanitary Sewer Easement from the MUD No.150 to the City.  
 
Staff recommends approval of Resolution No. R -2034 as presented.  
 



RESOLUTION NO. R-2034 
 

A RESOLUTION OF THE CITY COUNCIL OF THE CITY OF 
ROSENBERG, TEXAS, AUTHORIZING THE CITY MANAGER TO 
EXECUTE, FOR AND ON BEHALF OF THE CITY, THE ASSIGNMENT 
OF PUBLIC INFRASTRUCTURE, 10' SANITARY SEWER EASEMENT, 
DATED DECEMBER 5, 2013, WHICH ASSIGNS TO THE CITY THE 
EASEMENT AGREEMENT (10' SANITARY SEWER EASEMENT) 
DATED FEBRUARY 1, 2006, FROM WM COMMERCIAL, L.P., A TEXAS 
LIMITED PARTNERSHIP TO FORT BEND COUNTY MUNICIPAL 
UTILITY DISTRICT NO. 150 RECORDED UNDER DOCUMENT NO. 
2006012967 OF THE OFFICIAL PUBLIC RECORDS OF FORT BEND 
COUNTY, TEXAS, FOR THE SUM OF $10.00. 
 

*  *  *  *  * 
 
 WHEREAS, The Fort Bend Municipal Utility District No. 150 (MUD No. 150) 
entered into an easement agreement (10' Sanitary Sewer Easement) with WM 
Commercial L.P., on February 01, 2006, for the purposes of constructing, repairing, 
maintaining, re-constructing, and operating sanitary sewer lines and related 
appurtenances and facilities; and, 
 
 WHEREAS, MUD No. 150 was dissolved on December 05, 2013; now therefore, 
  
BE IT RESOLVED BY THE COUNCIL OF THE CITY OF ROSENBERG: 
 
 Section 1. The City Manager is hereby authorized to execute the Assignment 

of Public Infrastructure, 10' Sanitary Sewer Easement, accepting assignment of a public 

utility easement more particularly described as 4,200 square feet of land, out of the 

11.37 acre tract described in the deed from Windmeadows Investors, LTD., and 

Westfield Forest, L.P., to WM Commercial, L.P., recorded under File Nos. 2005-095387 

and 2005-095388, in the Official Public Records of Fort Bend County, Texas.  

Section 2. A copy of said 10' Sanitary Sewer Easement [4,200 square feet] is 

attached hereto as Exhibit “A” and made a part hereof for all purposes. 

PASSED, APPROVED, AND RESOLVED this _____ day of ___________ 2015. 

 
ATTEST:      APPROVED: 
 
 
 
              
Linda Cernosek, CITY SECRETARY   Amanda J. Barta, MAYOR PRO TEM 



Exhibit "A" to Resolution No. R-2034

KAYES
Typewritten Text

KAYES
Typewritten Text



KAYES
Typewritten Text

KAYES
Typewritten Text



KAYES
Rectangle

KAYES
Typewritten Text
2015

KAYES
Typewritten Text

KAYES
Typewritten Text

KAYES
Typewritten Text

KAYES
Typewritten Text

KAYES
Typewritten Text

KAYES
Typewritten Text

KAYES
Typewritten Text

KAYES
Typewritten Text

KAYES
Typewritten Text



KAYES
Typewritten Text

KAYES
Typewritten Text



KAYES
Typewritten Text



KAYES
Typewritten Text









CITY COUNCIL COMMUNICATION 
 
September 15, 2015 
 

ITEM # ITEM TITLE 

F Ordinance No. 2015-28 – MUD No. 155 Disannexation  

ITEM/MOTION 

Consideration of and action on Ordinance No. 2015-28, an Ordinance providing for the disannexation from 
the corporate boundaries of the City of Rosenberg, Texas, of 1.393 acres (60,689 square feet) located in 
the Wiley Martin League, A-56, Fort Bend County, Texas (Fort Bend County Municipal Utility District No. 
155 – Bonbrook Plantation), pursuant to the petition for disannexation; adjusting the boundaries of Council 
District No. 4 to exclude the tract disannexed hereby; containing certain findings; providing for non-
severability; and establishing an effective date. 

FINANCIAL SUMMARY ELECTION DISTRICT 

Annualized Dollars: 

[   ] One-time 
[   ] Recurring 
[X] N/A 

Budgeted: 

[   ] Yes  [   ] No  [X] N/A 

Source of Funds:  N/A 

 

[   ] District 1 
[   ] District 2 
[   ] District 3 
[X] District 4 
[   ] City-wide 
[   ] N/A 

SUPPORTING DOCUMENTS: 
 MUD #:  155 (Bonbrook 

Plantation) 

1. Ordinance No. 2015-28 
2. Vicinity Map 
3. Local Government Code Excerpt – Chapter 43, Subchapter G 
4. City Charter Excerpt – Article I, Section 1.04 
5. City Council Meeting Draft Minute Excerpt – 09-01-15 

 

APPROVALS 

Submitted by:   

 

Travis Tanner, AICP 
Executive Director of 
Community Development 
 

Reviewed by:   
[   ] Exec. Dir. of Administrative Services 
[   ] Asst. City Manager of Public Services 
[X] City Attorney DNRBHZ/tt 
[   ] City Engineer 
[   ] (Other) 
 

Approved for Submittal 
to City Council: 
 
 
Robert Gracia 
City Manager 

EXECUTIVE SUMMARY 

As discussed at the September 1, 2015 City Council meeting, staff received a request from Beazer Homes 
and current property owners/residents regarding the disannexation of approximately 1.393 acres from the 
City of Rosenberg City Limits and in Fort Bend County MUD No. 155 (Bonbrook Plantation).  The tract was 
originally annexed by the City in 1990 and happens to intersect with a small portion of what is now MUD 
No. 155, or Bonbrook Plantation.  The property in question was platted in 2014 as part of Bonbrook 
Plantation North Section Nine.  In many cases, lots were subsequently built on and sold, resulting in 
homeowners or residents being part in and part out of the City. 

 
As discussed, while the City did not develop the property or necessarily create the situation, having lots in 
multiple jurisdictions is not a situation that staff recommends continuing.  Further, the estimated fiscal 
impact or loss of ad valorem tax revenue is only approximately $900 annually based on 2014 City taxes 
levied. 

 
Per state law (Local Government Code, Ch. 43) and City Charter (Sec. 1.04), if property is occupied, 
disannexation requires a petition from the majority of voters residing in the area and additional notification 
requirements to be completed by petitioner/s.  It appears at this time all registered voters (7 out of 7) have 



signed the petition.  This has been verified by the Fort Bend County Elections Administrator’s office.  The 
City Attorney has reviewed the petition and attached exhibits and found them to be in conformance with 
the requirements of the City Charter and the Local Government Code and has also found that any 
publishing, posting, voting and timing requirements have been met.  Additionally, the petition specifically 
waives the right for petitioner/s to recover any City property taxes paid to date, so there should not be a 
negative fiscal impact from that standpoint. 
 
On September 1, 2015, City Council directed staff to move forward with preparing an Ordinance for this 
Agenda item.  Staff recommends approval of Ordinance No. 2015-28, thereby disannexing 1.393 acres of 
land in MUD No. 155 pursuant to the petition. 
 



 

ORDINANCE NO. 2015-28 
 

AN ORDINANCE PROVIDING FOR THE DISANNEXATION FROM THE 
CORPORATE BOUNDARIES OF THE CITY OF ROSENBERG, TEXAS, 
OF 1.393 ACRES (60,689 SQUARE FEET) LOCATED IN THE WILEY 
MARTIN LEAGUE, A-56, FORT BEND COUNTY, TEXAS (FORT BEND 
COUNTY MUNICIPAL UTILITY DISTRICT NO. 155), PURSUANT TO THE 
PETITION FOR DISANNEXATION; ADJUSTING THE BOUNDARIES OF 
COUNCIL DISTRICT NO. 4 TO EXCLUDE THE TRACT DISANNEXED 
HEREBY; CONTAINING CERTAIN FINDINGS; PROVIDING FOR NON-
SEVERABILITY; AND ESTABLISHING AN EFFECTIVE DATE. 

 
 WHEREAS, Texas Local Government Code Section 43.142 provides that a home-
rule municipality may dis-annex an area in the municipality according to rules as may be 
provided by the charter of the municipality and not inconsistent with the procedural rules 
prescribed by Chapter 43; and, 
  
 WHEREAS, Section 1.04 of the City Charter provides that the City may dis-annex 
territory by ordinance; and, 
  
 WHEREAS, the City Council of the City of Rosenberg, Texas, has received a 
Petition for Disannexation (the “Petition”) regarding 1.393 acres (60,689 square feet) 
located in the Wiley Martin League, A-56, Fort Bend County, Texas (Fort Bend County 
Municipal Utility District No. 155 – Bonbrook Plantation), from a majority of the qualified 
voters residing in such territory; and, 
  
 WHEREAS, the City Council hereby finds and determines that all requisites for dis-
annexation pursuant to the applicable provisions of the Texas Local Government Code and 
the Home Rule Charter of the City have been followed; and, 
  
 WHEREAS, the petitioner acknowledges, and City Council finds, that the amount 
of property taxes and fees collected by the City during the time the land was located 
within the City is less than or equal to the amount of money that the City has spent for 
the direct benefit of the land during the that period; and, 
  
 WHEREAS, the petitioner acknowledges, and City Council finds, that the petition 
waives any remedies or rights in law or equity pertaining to recovery of property taxes 
and fees collected by the City; and, therefore, the City shall not be required to refund 
any taxes or fees to the petitioner; and, 
 
 WHEREAS, the petitioner acknowledges, and City Council finds, that the petition 
does not allege that the City Council failed or refused to provide services or to cause 
services to be provided within the territory with a period required by statute or specified 
in a service plan prepared for the territory; and, therefore, the dis-annexation does not 
fall under the purview of Texas Local Government Code Section 43.141; and, 
  

 



Page 2 of 3 

 

WHEREAS, the petitioner acknowledges, and City Council finds, that the territory 
to be dis-annexed does not include the dis-annexation of a road or highway except for a 
minimal portion of the Lockridge Hill and Conchola Lane right-of-way; and, 
  
 WHEREAS, the City Council hereby further finds and determines that the dis-
annexation of the 1.393 acres is necessary and appropriate and in the best interests of the 
City; now, therefore, 
 
BE IT ORDAINED BY THE COUNCIL OF THE CITY OF ROSENBERG: 

  Section 1.  The above findings are hereby incorporated for all purposes as if 

each word was set out herein; the petition for dis-annexation is attached hereto as Exhibit 

“A” and is hereby incorporated for all purposes as if it were set out fully herein. 

 Section 2.  As of the effective date of this Ordinance, the land and territory 

shown on Exhibit “A” is hereby dis-annexed from the corporate limits of the City of 

Rosenberg, Texas, and said territory as described shall hereafter be removed from the 

boundary limits of said City, and the present boundary limits of said City are altered and 

amended so as to remove the territory from the corporate limits of the City of 

Rosenberg, Texas. 

 Section 3. The City Council hereby finds and determines that the property herein 

dis-annexed should be excluded from Council District No. 4 and, in this regard, hereby 

approves the exclusion of such tract and parcel of property from Council District No. 4, and 

directs that the City’s official map depicting the boundaries of the City’s four (4) single-

member district be modified, amended, and redrawn to reflect such exclusion. 

 Section 4. As of the effective date of this Ordinance, the land and territory so 

described and so amended shall no longer be part of the City of Rosenberg, Texas, and 

the land and territory shall no longer bear any of the taxes levied by the City of 

Rosenberg, Texas, and the future inhabitants thereof shall no longer be entitled to any 

rights or privileges as citizens; nor shall they be bound by the acts, ordinances, 

resolutions, and regulations of the City of Rosenberg, Texas, as such shall be limited in 

application to the citizens and corporate limits of said City. 

 Section 5. The City Secretary be, and she is hereby, authorized and directed to 

forthwith cause a certified copy of this Ordinance to be delivered to the County Clerk of 

Fort Bend County, Texas, as required by § 41.0015, TEXAS LOCAL GOVERNMENT CODE. 

 Section 6. This Ordinance is not severable. 



Page 3 of 3 

 

 Section 7. This Ordinance shall be effective immediately from and after passage. 

 

PASSED AND APPROVED by a vote of ______ “ayes” in favor and _______ 

“noes” against on this first and final reading in full compliance with the provisions of 

Section 3.10 of the Charter of the City of Rosenberg on the ______ day of 

____________ 2015. 

 
ATTEST:      APPROVED: 
 
 
 
             
Linda Cernosek, City Secretary    Amanda J. Barta, Mayor Pro Tem 
 
 
 
APPROVED AS TO FORM: 
 
 
 
      
Scott M. Tschirhart, City Attorney 
Denton Navarro Rocha Bernal Hyde & Zech, P.C. 

 



KAYES
Rectangle

KAYES
Typewritten Text
Exhibit "A" to Ordinance No. 2015-28

KAYES
Typewritten Text

KAYES
Typewritten Text

KAYES
Typewritten Text





























KAYES
Typewritten Text









KAYES
Typewritten Text









Proposed For
Disannexation

B O N B R O O K
P L A N T A T I O N  N O R T H

S U M M E R
L A K E S

B R I D L E W O O D
E S T A T E S

@A762

@A2759

READING

BRIDLEWOOD

GRANDE
GABLES

BE
NT

ON

RU
ST

LIN
G

OA
KS

27
59

Å

Û

N

S

EW

Interstate
US Highway
State Highway
Public Road
Private Road
Railroad

Brazos River
FBCAD 2015 Parcels (2nd Quarter)
Rosenberg City Limits
Rosenberg ETJ
Other Jurisdictions

Created by: City of Rosenberg GIS - Cory Vardaman
Date Created: August 19, 2015
Original Size: 8.5" x 11"
K:\GIS\MAPS\Planning\2015\Bonbrook_Disannex_8_5x11.mxd

Proposed Disannexation
Bonbrook Plantation

City of Rosenberg, Texas
This product is for informational purposes and 
may not have been prepared for or be suitable 
for legal, engineering, or surveying purposes.  
It does not represent an on-the-ground survey
and represents only the approximate relative
location of geographic features.

1:12,000
1 inch = 1,000 feet

Scale:
or

0 500 1,000 1,500 2,000 2,500
Feet

The 2014 Aerial Imagery Data is the sole property of Houston-Galveston Area Council, which
reserves all rights thereto.  Use or reproduction of this data is strictly prohibited absent written
consent from the Houston-Galveston Area Council, which may be contacted at www.h-gac.com.



reneel
Rectangle



reneel
Rectangle



 

  Page 1 

Sec. 1.04. - Contraction of boundaries.  

Whenever there exists within the corporate limits of the City of Rosenberg any territory not suitable or 
necessary for city purposes, the city council may upon a petition signed by a majority of the qualified voters 
residing in such territory if the same be inhabited, or without any such petition if the same be uninhabited, 
by ordinance duly passed, discontinue said territory as a part of said city; said petition and ordinance shall 
specify accurately the metes and bounds of the territory sought to be eliminated from the city and shall 
contain a plat designating such territory so that the same can be definitely ascertained; and when said 
ordinance has been duly passed the same shall be entered upon the minutes and records of said city, and 
from and after the entry of such ordinance said territory shall cease to be a part of said city, but said territory 
shall still be liable for its pro rata share of any debts incurred while said area was a part of said city, and the 
city shall continue to levy, assess and collect taxes on the property within said territory to pay the 
indebtedness incurred while said area was a part of the city as though the same had not been excluded 
from the boundaries of the city.  

State Law reference— Disannexation, V.T.C.A., Local Government Code § 43.141.  

reneel
Text Box
Rosenberg Code of OrdinancesPart I:  The CharterArticle I. - Form of Government and Boundaries

reneel
Rectangle



Page 7 of 9 * Regular City Council Meeting Minutes * September 1, 2015 * DRAFT 
 

existence should not be promoted in the future). 
 
(2) The granting of the variance will not be detrimental to the public safety or welfare, or injurious to 
other property in the area;  
 
Staff cannot identify any safety concerns or specific negative impacts associated with this request 
(based in part on many of the nearby properties also having carports without any apparent issues).  
The applicant claims it will be structurally sound; additionally, it will be required to comply with 
applicable international codes and would be inspected by the City. 
 
(3) The granting of the variance will not have the effect of preventing the orderly subdivision of other 
lands in the area in accordance with the provisions of this chapter; and  
 
The granting of the variance should not prevent orderly subdivisions in the area.  New subdivisions 
are required to have building lines in accordance with City codes and in that way are not the same 
as older subdivisions with lesser or nonexistent building lines.  Applicant claims no existing carports in 
the neighborhood are close to meeting the required setback, which is an accurate statement.  They 
(carports) appear to range from zero (0) to five (5) feet from the street right-of-way. 
 
(4) A more appropriate design solution exists which is not currently allowed in this chapter. 
 
The proposed design solution does not appear to be inappropriate for the particular area.  It has 
apparently not been deemed inappropriate for the area in the past (pre-2005). 
 
Staff has no objection to the proposed variance with the condition of a minimum five (5) foot 
setback from the right-of-way.  Lack of objection is based on the surrounding residential 
character and not being inconsistent with the four (4) criteria as outlined in the Code.  The 
condition of having a five (5) foot setback is recommended to comply with international code 
requirements.  With the latter condition in place, staff sees no further issues. 
 
The Planning Commission recommended approval to City Council of the variance on August 
19, 2015.  Per the Code, City Council has the ultimate authority to grant variances if it finds that 
a hardship exists. 
 
Key Discussion Points: Travis Tanner, Executive Director of Community Development, read the 
Executive Summary and gave a presentation on the proposed carport. The consensus of 
Council was supportive of the variance, and staff was instructed to review the current 
Ordinances to accommodate some of the older neighborhoods. 
 
Action: Councilor Barta made a motion, seconded by Councilor Wallingford, to approve 
Variance Decision and Order No. V2015-01, a Variance Request by Victor Macha to the 
requirements of Section 25-68 of the Code of Ordinances relating to the building lines for single-
family residential lots, allowing for a proposed carport addition to the property located at 1509 
George Street (Allendale Manor, Block 12, Lot 3). The motion carried by a unanimous vote. 
 

9.  REVIEW AND DISCUSS A PETITION FOR DISANNEXATION OF 1.393 ACRES (60,689 SQUARE FEET) 
LOCATED IN THE WILEY MARTIN LEAGUE, A-56, FORT BEND COUNTY, TEXAS (FORT BEND COUNTY 
MUNICIPAL UTILITY DISTRICT NO. 155), AND TAKE ACTION AS NECESSARY TO DIRECT STAFF.   
Executive Summary: City staff has received a request from Beazer Homes and current property 
owners/residents regarding the disannexation of approximately 1.393 acres from the City of 
Rosenberg City Limits and in Fort Bend County MUD No. 155 (Bonbrook Plantation).  It should also be 
noted that the petition suggests making said disannexation retroactive prior to January 01, 2015.  
However, staff has consulted with the City Attorney and we do not believe the latter can be done 
legally. 
 
As discussed, the petition involves a 1.393-acre tract of land.  The tract was originally annexed by the 
City in 1990 and happens to intersect with a small portion of what is now MUD No. 155, or Bonbrook 
Plantation.  The property in question was platted in 2014 as part of Bonbrook Plantation North 

janete
Rectangle



Page 8 of 9 * Regular City Council Meeting Minutes * September 1, 2015 * DRAFT 
 

Section Nine.  In many cases, lots were subsequently built on and sold, resulting in homeowners or 
residents being part in and part out of the City. 
 
While the City did not develop the property or necessarily create the situation, having lots in multiple 
jurisdictions is not a situation that staff recommends continuing.  Further, the estimated fiscal impact 
or loss of ad valorem tax revenue is only approximately $900 annually based on 2014 City taxes 
levied. 
 
While staff does not object to releasing the property from the City’s jurisdiction based on the 
circumstances, it is a more rigorous process than if the land was unoccupied.  If unoccupied, such a 
disannexation can be initiated simply by a petition from the property owner.  If occupied, however, 
per state law (Local Government Code, Ch. 43) and City Charter (Sec. 1.04), it requires a petition 
from the majority of voters residing in the area and additional notification requirements to be 
completed by petitioner/s. 
 
It appears at this time all registered voters (7 out of 7) have signed the petition.  This has been verified 
by Fort Bend County as of August 24, 2015.  Additionally, the petition specifically waives the right for 
petitioner/s to recover any City property taxes paid to date, so there should not be a negative fiscal 
impact from that standpoint. 
 
This request was initially submitted in May 2015, with the City Attorney commenting that the 
disannexation needed to follow publication, posting, voting and timing requirements per state law.  
According to a letter received from Beazer Homes, dated August 13, 2015, the publishing, posting, 
voting and timing requirements have been fulfilled.  The City Attorney has reviewed the resubmitted 
petition and attached exhibits and found them to be in conformance with the requirements of the 
City Charter and the Local Government Code. 
 
Staff believed it was important to first bring this item to City Council for discussion purposes 
since it will set a precedent for how the City deals with future potential disannexation of 
occupied property.  Therefore it is important to review the requirements per state law. 
 
Key Discussion Points: Travis Tanner gave an overview and presentation of the item. Scott 
Tschirhart, City Attorney, explained that the petition has been reviewed and is binding, but the 
ultimate decision of whether to disannex this property is at the discretion of Council. After 
discussion, Council directed staff to move forward with the disannexation of the property. This 
item will be brought before Council in the form of an Ordinance at a future meeting. 
 

10.  CONSIDERATION OF AND ACTION ON RESOLUTION NO. R-2031, A RESOLUTION WITHDRAWING 
CONSENT TO THE ESTABLISHMENT OF ANY DEVELOPMENT STANDARDS OR GUIDELINES OF THE 
WEST FORT BEND MANAGEMENT DISTRICT AND REPEALING ALL PRIOR DEVELOPMENT STANDARDS 
AND GUIDELINES ADOPTED BY THE WEST FORT BEND MANAGEMENT DISTRICT.  
Executive Summary: This item has been added to the Agenda to provide City Council with an 
opportunity to consider Resolution No. R-2031 (Resolution).  Standard and guideline adoption 
by the West Fort Bend Management District (District) must be approved by the cities of 
Rosenberg and Richmond.  This Resolution will withdraw consent by the City of Rosenberg from 
all previously adopted development standards and guidelines so that no such development 
standards and guidelines will be enforceable within the District. 
 
Resolution No. R-2031 was attached in the agenda packet for review and consideration. 
 
Key Discussion Points: Mayor McConathy gave an overview of the item. Scott Tschirhart 
explained his concern that we would not want to leave a space where there are no 
development standards whatsoever. He recommended delaying the effective date of the 
Resolution, and providing interim standards before reaching a final solution during a workshop 
meeting. After discussion, Council requested that an amendment be made to Section 2 to 
include the following language: "This Resolution shall be effective sixty (60) days from passage." 
 
Action: Councilor Pena made a motion, seconded by Councilor Moses, to approve Resolution 

janete
Rectangle


	Regular City Council Meeting Agenda - 09-15-15
	- Announcements
	-- General Comments from the Audience
	-- Comments from the Audience for Regular and Consent Agenda Items
	1 - Review of Consent Agenda
	A - Minutes
	Regular City Council Meeting Minutes - 08-18-15
	Special City Council Meeting Minutes - 08-25-15
	City Council Workshop Meeting Minutes - 08-25-15
	Regular City Council Meeting Minutes - 09-01-15

	B - Resolution No. R-2037  -Termination Agreement Rosenberg FM 2218
	Resolution No. R-2037
	MUD No. 150 - Development Agreement 15.0069 Acres - 11-01-05
	MUD No. 150 - Certificate for Order Dissolving the District - 12-05-13
	MUD No. 167 - Certificate for Order Add Land - 12-05-13
	Ordinance No. 2005-31 - 12-13-05
	Ordinance No. 2013-46 - 12-03-13
	City Council Meeting Minute Excerpt - 11-01-05
	City Council Meeting Minute Excerpt - 12-13-05
	City Council Meeting Minute Excerpt - 12-03-13

	C - Resolution No. R-2035  -Agreement and Acknowledgement of Termination of Water Supply and Wastewater Services Contract RFS
	Resolution No. R-2035
	MUD No. 150 - Water Supply and Wastewater Services Contract with Amendment - 04-20-04
	MUD No. 150 - Assignment of Water Supply and Wastewater Services Contract - 12-14-04
	City Council Meeting Minute Excerpt - 04-20-04
	City Council Meeting Minute Excerpt - 12-14-04

	D - Resolution No. R-2036 - Assignment and Assumption of Utility Commitment Letter
	Resolution No. R-2036

	E - Resolution No. R-2034 - Assignment of Sanitary Sewer Easement
	Resolution No. R-2034

	F - Ordinance No. 2015-28 - MUD No. 155 Disannexation
	Ordinance No. 2015-28
	Vicinity Map
	Local Government Code Excerpt - Chapter 43, Subchapter G
	City Charter Excerpt - Article I, Section 1.04
	City Council Meeting Draft Minute Excerpt - 09-01-15




